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RESULTS

Revenues
Gross profit
Operating (loss)/profit
(Loss)/profit attributable to:
(i) Equity holders of the Company
(ii) Non-controlling interests
(Loss)/earnings per share - Basic
(RMB cents)

Financial Highlights and Summary

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total debt
Total liabilities
Equity attributable to:
(i) Equity holders of the Company
(i

) Non-controlling interests

2013

—Z-=f

RMB'000

AR%T R

WA 270,326

7 76,047

e (5B) /A (499,116)

T EIBEN (B518) /5F):

() AREEEEEA (516,834)

(i) FFERER 2,499
BR(BE)/RF-£

(ARES) (0.6153)

2013

—B-=f

RMB'000

AR®ETR

BEE 595,576

BEE =

BafE 82,911
N TEEELER

() AREEEHEEAA 502,861

(i) FEiEmREs 9,804

%m
For the year ended 31 December
HE+T-A=t-BLEFE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
T ZT——% ZZT-TF ZTTNFE ZTI)N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARETR ARETR ARETT AR®TR
377,242 529,034 529,940 462,967 361,706
111,875 266,305 255,796 219,877 130,204
(112,912) 82,041 186,623 168,649 93,945
(137,940) 52,978 161,095 140,819 79,775
7,568 6,043 (15) 39) (545)
(0.1799) 0.0727 0.2858 0.2564 0.1453
Y 25
B AU
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2012 20M1 2010 2009 2008
“E2-—f ZEZ-——% ZE2-ZF CZRETAF CZZIT)\F¥
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL ARETR ARETR ARETT AR®TR
1,308,971 1,414,639 1,285,003 499,588 364,599
44,539 49,685 54,764 84,107 103,477
246,966 258,589 213,417 197,808 203,599
1,018,831 1,119,045 1,071,114 301,293 160,474
43,174 37,005 472 487 526

+HRERERAT “R—SER
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Financial Highlights and Summary
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FINANCIAL RATIOS

B 25 LB

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

47.5%
40.1%

61.9%
92.2%

36.4%
30.4%
46.6%
28.2%
106
23
16.8%

2008
—ZEENF

36.0%
30.4%

62.8%
96.6%

26.0%
21.9%
49.2%
21.7%

84

42
28.4%

BABMBREREARN (BB, SEFIRIAEER

EERRERFER (BR), EHNBUREEE

2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-=f <-Z--F Z—T——-F ZZ-%F
Gross profits margins: ER=x:
(i) Overall (i =B 28.1% 29.7% 50.3% 48.3%
(ii) Newspaper advertising (i) BWERES 21.4% 19.9% 41.9% 41.9%
(i) Marketing, distribution (i) B DHER
management, consulting R EN R
and printing services R % 45.0% 51.5% 63.4% 56.2%
(iv)  Online services (v) BERE 38.9% 67.2% 92.2% 91.2%
() Television and radio advertising vy EERELES (4.3%) (95.3%) (174.1%) 14.8%
Operating margins TEFIEx (184.6%) (30.0%) 15.5% 35.3%
Net margins FRER (190.3%) (34.6%) 11.2% 30.4%
Return on equity " P NEEES (100.3%) (12.3%) 5.1% 15.0%
Return on assets @ BEERE (86.4%) (10.0%) 4.2% 12.5%
Trade receivables turnover (days) BOEYFIERAER(R) 171 226 177 141
Trade payables turnover (days) BHENHERER(H) 50 7 6 5
Gearing ratio BEABLE - 3.4% 3.5% 4.3%
Notes B 51
(1):  Return on equity is calculated based on (loss)/profit for the year (1):
divided by total equity. It o
(2):  Return on assets is calculated based on (loss)/profit for the year ):
divided by total assets. HEo
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Chen Zhi B&
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

TE BEBITERNTES

The world economy experienced a lacklustre recovery in 2013
amid multiple crises, thereby posing downward pressure on
the Chinese economy. In 2013, China’s gross domestic product
("GDP") recorded a year-on-year increase of 7.7%, which
was the lowest in four years. In addition to the slowdown in
economic recovery, the advertising market was restructuring as
the placement strategy of advertisers was disrupted by the new
media, which was rising rapidly and taking up more market share.
Furthermore, the advertising spending from most of the industries,
with the exception of the fast-moving consumer goods industry,
lacked clear signs of rebound last year. Given these trends,
competition in the traditional advertising industry intensified,
print media’s advertising revenue fell across the board, and the
operating environment was bleak for the tradition advertising
industry, which in turn impacted and adversely affected the
Group’s businesses during the year under review. Affected by
the external pressure, revenue of the Group’s core businesses for
2013 dropped. On the other hand, the development of our online
business was still in an investment stage. These factors, coupled
with provisions made for the persistent uncertainties in the
recovery of certain receivables and part of the amounts receivable
from contracted business partners, resulted in a revenue and net
loss after tax from our core businesses of approximately RMB270.3
million and RMB514.4 million, respectively.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

B E s

REFINING BUSINESS MODEL AND
CREATING SYNERGIES

Nonetheless, the Group has responded proactively to the
challenges posed by the external, macro-economic and industrial
environments. It has formulated strategies to promote long-
term and sustainable development by optimising its operating
structure, adjusting its business model and developing new media
and new technologies. During the year under review, the Group
continued to invest in its online services business in a cautious
and orderly manner while maintaining growth in its traditional
advertising business. With its existing platforms and resources
such as the Cloud Call technology and Duk, the Group has
established an operation technologies and channels database for
online advertising with the aim of complementing its traditional
media channels, creating synergies and realising seamless online

to offline integration.

OPTIMISING CLIENT BASE AND
EXPANDING INCOME SOURCE

Clients’ trust and support are the engine of the Company's
long-term growth. Being a cross-media advertising company,
we devoted immense effort to solidify and strengthen its client
base in the face of tough external operating environment during
the year under review. Although traditional advertisers, such
as real estate and automotive corporations, have reduced their
spending, the Group has actively expanded its client portfolio and
income source by exploring the advertising market of fast-moving
consumer goods, which saw rising spending and are closely
related to everyday life. Such move has diversified the Company’s
business and demonstrated our cautious but flexible hand in
dealing with external challenges and achieving balanced growth.
Moreover, the Group has made extra effort to establish itself as a
multi-channel all-round turnkey marketing service provider. In the
future, the Group will offer comprehensive advertising solutions to
its advertisers with its online and offline multimedia resources. The
Group endeavours to deliver value-adding services and optimised
solutions to its newspaper advertisers and extend their reach to
other advertising media such as new media. With such services,

the Group can also expand its income source, enhance incomes

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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from its clients and broaden its client base. The Group believes
that with the sustained and booming development of new
communication media such as the internet and mobile network,
its online and new media business will seize fruitful opportunities

in the future.

PERFECTING COMPREHENSIVE
ADVERTISING CHANNEL AND GETTING
PREPARED FOR REBOUND

Looking ahead, the Group believes that as China’s traditional and
new media are fusing together, the traditional media will embrace
new media while the new media will need the support of their
traditional counterparts. The emergence of online and new media
will continue to make room for domestic advertising demand to
grow sustainably. It is high time for the advertising market to
realise online to offline integration and interactive marketing. As
the advertising channels continue to diversify, competition in the
Chinese advertising market will intensify. In 2014, we will uphold
our established dual development strategy of fostering both
traditional and new media, focus on nurturing and perfecting
new technologies and platforms for online and new media,
constantly improve our comprehensive advertising portfolio and
build ourselves up into an outstanding turnkey marketing service
provider. In the light of the high social awareness and rapid
development of new media, the Group is confident of capturing
market opportunities, reviving and delivering business growth
and preparing ourselves for rebound with our experience and

initiatives.

Last but not least, on behalf of the board of directors, | would like
to thank the management and all staff for their efforts and selfless
contributions. | would also like to express my sincere gratitude to
our valued shareholders, clients and business partners for their

continual trust and unceasing support.

Chen Zhi

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pt i i 5L

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2013, the world economy showed signs of recovery but the
outlook remained uncertain. Given the economic environment
and owing to a variety of external factors, China’s economic
growth rate slowed down and was subject to downward pressure.
According to the Statistical Communiqué on the 2013 National
Economic and Social Development released by the National Bureau
of Statistics of China, China’s gross domestic product (“GDP") in
2013 was nearly RMB5.69 trillion. Despite a year-on—year increase
of 7.7% growth in GDP, the growth rate was the lowest in four
years. The continued macroeconomic decline has posed immense
challenges to the development of the advertising market. The
Group’s businesses faced constant difficulties brought by the
macroeconomic downturn during the year under review.

For the industry as a whole, according to the most recent China
Advertising Market Review for 2013 published by the newspaper
branch of the China Advertising Association and CVSC — TNS
Research (“CTR"), both of which are authoritative research
institutions, advertising market share of print media contracted.
Advertising spending on newspapers and magazines shrank by
8.1% and 6.8%, respectively, indicating a further decline in the
newspaper advertising sector. According to a survey on media
credibility in 2013, television, as a traditional media platform, was
still the best-rated media. The internet, representing new media,
overtook newspapers and took the second place. Newspaper,
a traditional media outlet, ranked third. Social media Weibo
and WeChat came in fourth and fifth. In terms of advertising
resources, newspaper advertising resources decreased by 16.9%
and magazine advertising resources saw the largest decline
at 20.8%. Newspaper continued to struggle as newspaper
advertising revenue and newspaper credibility experienced further
decline amidst the tough economic environment. In terms of
spending on newspaper advertisement in 2013, the growth
of real estate advertisement spending became almost the only
bright spot and source of support. Other pillar industries such
as retailing, automotive, service industries, financial services,
telecommunications and pharmaceuticals all saw varying
degrees of reduction in advertising spending. This was largely
due to a change in spending strategy and competition from the
online media. In particular, the drop in spending on newspaper
advertisement by the pillar industries has restricted the overall
development of the newspaper advertising industry and has led to
a general shrinkage of the newspaper advertising business. Print
media has entered an ice age and is undergoing a difficult test.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As for the advertising market for other traditional media, Nielsen
highlighted that China’s television advertising spending increased
by 13.3% year-on-year, becoming the only traditional media type
to record a higher than average year-on-year growth as compared
to the overall advertising market. Radio advertising spending saw
a change from years of high growth and recorded only a slight

increase of 2.9% due to stagnant growth in its customer base.

The internet and new media advertising market experienced
rapid growth worldwide in 2013. According to a report on
global advertising market research released by market research
firm Nielsen, global online advertising spending across the web,
mobile internet and application software collectively grew by
32.4% in 2013, by far the largest increase of any media platform.
The firm stated that one area in which the internet plays an
increasingly strong role is in multiscreen, multi-network and
mobile advertising. In addition, as the current share of the internet
advertising market is still small, accounting for only 4.5% of the
overall spending in advertising, there is ample room for growth in
this field.

The Third Plenary Session of the 18th CPC Central Committee
provided support to the development of small and micro cultural
enterprises. The State Council set an industrial development
target last year for the consumption of information products and
services to grow at an average annual rate of at least 20% to
reach a target output of more than RMB3.2 trillion in 2015. This
development spur the new output of related industries to reach
more than RMB1.2 trillion during the year under review. New
internet-based information consumption reached RMB2.4 trillion,
translating to an average annual growth of more than 30%. It is
expected that the internet and new media advertising market will
continue to benefit from related policies. Traditional advertising
media will continue to face challenges and undergo relatively

stable development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pt i i 5L

BUSINESS REVIEW

The advertising industry has always served as a bellwether of
economic development. The slowdown in the Chinese economy
has also impacted the advertising industry, resulting in a tough
operating environment in 2013. Affected by the impact of
internet and new media, placement strategy of advertisers and
the restructuring of the advertising market, there was a reduction
in advertising spending from our pillar industries such as retailing,
automotive, financial, telecommunications, pharmaceutical and
service industries, with the exception of the real estate industry.
The Group’s revenue from newspaper advertising has declined as a

result.

In view of a challenging operating environment, the Group
actively responded during the year under review by optimising its
business model. It also strived to maintain strict cost control and

broaden its source of revenue.

STABLE CLIENT BASE

The Group has an established and stable client base of advertisers
from various business sectors such as consumer products, real
estate, 3C (computer, communication and consumer products),
telecommunications, home appliance retailing, automotive, home
construction materials, healthcare and medicine, education, and
classified advertisements. The Group’s client base remained largely
unchanged compared with last year, notwithstanding a fall in

clients’ reliance on newspaper advertising.

In addition to maintaining the existing advertising client base,
the Group has not only actively sought new customers, but has
also helped existing clients to penetrate into other advertising
fields by leveraging the wide readership of newspaper advertising
to develop the Group’s online services and provide value-added

service to clients.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

NEWSPAPER ADVERTISING

With China’s economic slowdown, as well as the decline in
advertising in traditional publications in terms of spending and
volume due to the rapid growth of new media distribution
channels, advertising in Chinese newspapers continued to dwindle
in 2013. In addition, the Group's investment in newly-published
newspapers were still at an early stage, and the integration
with new media platforms is still in progress, generating limited
revenue for the Group. The combined effect of the above factors
contributed to the decline in newspaper advertising revenue to
RMB181.3 million, down by 29.3% year-on-year. Gross profit was
RMB38.8 million, down by 23.9% year-on-year. The drop in gross
profit was mainly due to the significant reduction in revenue,
while the payments to media partners were basically fixed
with minimum guaranteed payment. In particular, the Group's
newspaper advertising turnover from comprehensive collaborative
media partners amounted to RMB154.1 million, accounting for
85.0% of the total revenue from newspaper advertising, while
newspaper advertising revenue from partial collaborative contracts
amounted to RMB27.2 million, or 15.0% of the total revenue
from newspaper advertising. Despite the decline in revenue, the
newspaper advertising business remained one of the Group’s core
businesses, accounting for approximately 67.1% of revenue from

its core businesses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pt i i 5L

To mitigate the Group’s operating pressure and risk amidst the
challenges faced by the domestic newspaper advertising industry,
and to strengthen the comprehensive collaborative contract
business model, the Group actively and effectively negotiated with
some comprehensive collaborative media partners during the year
under review to adjust their advertising cost arrangements to a
cost-based system that based on the reporting, editing and office
expenses of the comprehensive collaborative media partners. This
was so that the Group could cease paying advertising costs of
these comprehensive collaborative media partners in accordance
with the minimum guaranteed payment commitment under the
original comprehensive collaborative contracts. Under the new
arrangements, the Group will bear the newspaper printing costs,
newsprint paper costs, and distribution costs of its partners, while
enjoying advertising and circulation income from those operations.
As of 31 December 2013, the Group had nine media partners,
including Southeast Express, Lifestyle Express, Modern Life Daily,
Southeast Business, Central Guizhou Morning Post, Xiamen Daily,
Xiamen Evening News, City Lifestyle Weekly, and a magazine, TV
Friends. The Group's operations span more than seven second and

third tier cities across six provinces in China.

Meanwhile, the Group continued its cooperation with Liaoning
Baixin Media Company Limited through City Lifestyle Weekly
(formerly known as Liaoning Broadcasting & TV Weekly) and
TV Friends by ShiFang XinDa Culture Media Company Limited,
a part-owned subsidiary of the Group. These moves further
reinforced the Group’s market position as an integrated printed
media service provider, as it continued to seize the opportunities

brought by the restructuring of non-political newspapers in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ONLINE SERVICES

In 2013, the world experienced a boom in the internet industry.
The growth of internet penetration in China was no exception.
Around 230 million people accessed the internet with personal
computers on a daily basis, while mobile online penetration
continued to rise, reaching 200 million users each day for the
year under review. With China’s flourishing internet community,
the advertising market associated with the industry continued to
grow rapidly and has high growth potential. As such, the Group
has been active in allocating additional resources to its online
businesses consisting of the Group’s cloud call technology, Duk,
DNKB and Life News. The Group has continued to establish its
internet media platform with technologies and channels that
complement existing traditional media channels and boost the
online to offline integration. During the year under review, the
Group's online services and digital media businesses were at a
stage of active exploration and achieved initial success. Such
exploration is expected to last for a relatively long period. During
the year, Duk tested its business model in the market. The Group
believes that the full implementation of paid subscriptions and a
profit-sharing system with licensors will further reduce the number

of readers with free membership.

The Group is also actively building up an online advertising
platform for data operations of content interaction of new media,
online media, traditional media and client resources, and accurate

content distribution. A new round of operation is well underway.
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During the year under review, the Group’s operations were
further impacted by the fact that its internet platforms and online
operations had not yet matured, and the reduction in clients’
spending on non-portal websites had intensified competition
within the online services and digital media industry. Revenue
from this business in 2013 fell 43.2% to RMB6.3 million
compared with the previous year, representing 2.3% of the
Group's total revenue. Gross profit was RMB2.5 million, down
66.2% year-on-year. Nevertheless, the Group will continue to
speed up the construction of an integrated multimedia platform,
and stay committed to expanding its market share and enhancing
its position in the new media industry, and to seize advantage of
the market opportunities brought by the flourishing online media.

During the year under review, being the first private enterprise
in Fujian Province engaging in online new media under an
internet publication permit from the General Administration of
Press and Publication of the PRC, Duk maintained its market
position as one of the largest digital media publishing platforms
in China. Duk has online cooperative publishing rights with over
300 publishers, 860 magazine publishing houses, and 5,000
magazines, as well as digital cooperative publishing rights with
17 metropolitan daily, evening, and commercial newspapers. The
Group went on to launch new versions of Duk and established a
competitive business model that builds on its extensive copyrights
and readership base. By cooperating with third-party digital
platforms and setting up marketing channels for institutional
users, coupled with effective marketing strategies, the Group
endeavours to raise its writers’ profile and maximise revenue
from their works, achieving a win-win situation for the writers
and the Group. In the next phase, Duk will enhance the features
of its information and servicing webpages, and will promote the
concept of city directories to improve the market penetration of
its clients’ advertisements. Building on existing page views, Duk
will further expand its stable readership base. It will also offer
charts of top local, national, and international news to improve
reading efficiency and the credibility of the website. From now
on, Duk will develop a one-on-one service and marketing model
for advertisers with its key events and promotional spaces. To
strengthen its ties with advertisers, Duk will make marketing
effectiveness its top priority. Furthermore, it will offer more highly
readable leisure and entertainment contents to raise its value and
reader loyalty.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

REBEFRN AERAEENGHEEETA M
REHA - MEREFPRALEIIFFIPRUNFAZTE
B RERS MBS R EBMITERFEM
Bl - HASBEMAERBSEN —CTOFE - ZHE
B T —=FIWAREFRELERD432%E
ARB63FEL HAEEBRIAR23% - F
FMAEARE25BET RAFH66.2% &
Em AEEBEENRGEMZERETS
MER BN EATSNE  NRAXREEE
IERBITEMMA  LIRRAGEEEDER
B T 45 3 o

REBEFA FAEREEERESBERFEL
RABEBEMEBELRFAIENEETEER
LhE EEBEEBB300K LR 860K
RS [ 5,000% AN G HY A% B R AE - I B2
17X AR BRI REBERARLT
BORERER AR THPERANBIBRER
TFaz—omsi AEEERRERTH
HETTERAR - B AR R AL - AR P i R
HBW M ABRF INEERRN  BREF=T
BFFamaE BUBBRAFPMNEHRE
I (& B R ME RO HE SR B BIRIEE MR E MR
T RAEmU S B R AR - AREE R EE B
SEERNBN -BEBEET —FTHAIMRE
SRRGE B TIRE - T B S A
RiBENRHBRAE WA TIE - ERBPVEE
EMEARLE E-SHRERENEER UK
BEHROAM - BA - BEERAEEERRRE
B RS ASRMENREORRLEA BN A
EH-SREHMTNEHREERE KHER
R —H—0REEHAERA - AL HR
RIEREENAERI BAERRNBES
FBEE: ST EEE RO IREREEHE
NBESHEEZBF M INEE—FRA &
RN EPN IR



Management Discussion and Analysis

For DNKB, a market-oriented new version was launched during
the year under review. With the new version, DNKB took the
number of its advertisers and operating revenue to new heights.
With a clearer separation of the healthcare, travel, automobile and
real estate sections, the links will be more user-friendly and will
greatly enhance the value of DNKB, and will encourage interaction
between netizens and the public. In addition, DNKB successfully
rolled out a new marketing model with graphics, stories and
videos tailored to events such as car shows. DNKB has also
stepped up cooperation with enterprises such as China Mobile and

Changfu Dairy.

In respect of Life News, its sub-pages, namely Fangshou
(http://fs.shxb.net) and Yishuo (http://ys.shxb.net), have already
conducted online trials and have seen initial success through
interaction and cooperation with newspapers. Guiwang
(www.gbnews.cn) also achieved a major breakthrough in
marketing events, such as the themed online activities in relation

to “lawful administration” and Junping Xijiu Liquor.

PR o i L2 Ay

RIRAB B F AT — IRIBFET 5 K AR -
EM5HAEHIER P RERE L UIER
RER -RF IRKE - E FEFHRRESS
B AR B [EREE ] S ARETT RS IEME A
M- ENERE  MRAEE - ULINZRE T
EREFHTHNEHER ROZEE B
BRES DSREFER MEBE REIXS
EENEFEE— MR-

EREFTHRBERETNFHEBERE H
(http://fs.shxb.net) }&z & &% (http://ys.shxb.net) B
AIAE ERAS TRBEBENEHAE:
HEC R - & B (www.gbnews.cn)fE 4
EHEBOBMIT L BUSERRE SR
HET ORI [EnE B S8REE
EE o

THFEREBRAT B 44

17



18

Management Discussion and Analysis

Pt i i 5L

In August 2012, the Group completed the acquisition of 34.0%
of the issued shares in Skybroad International Limited, a company
which developed the Voice over Internet Protocol (VolP) based
"Cloud Call” (“Cloud Call/

Cloud Call App”) for mobile devices and personal computers.

communications software known as

The main feature of the system is to allow users, wherever they
are, to make calls and conference calls with phone users in China
and around the world via 3G, wireless networks or the internet
without paying roaming or long distance telephone charges.
With a clear target audience and outstanding features, Cloud
Call has built up a user base of almost 3 million, and has started
to generate revenue for the Group. Skybroad International
Limited launched Tianyi Group Call, a professional conference
call software, with China Telecom and Huawei in December
2013. Tianyi Group Call provides audio and video conference
call and instant messaging features, and conference calls can
be initiated by pressing only one button. It also supports multi-
platform interoperability, mainly based on enterprise applications
of telecommunication platforms, and provides corporate
meetings, instant messaging (IM) and business networking
functions. Currently there is a huge market for turning instant
communication to group call, and the market demand has not
yet been fully tapped. The Company will focus on markets for
company-level meeting and personal mobile group chat in the

future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group also operates Fangke Web (www.fangke.cc) through
its part-owned subsidiary, Fujian Fangke Network Technology
Corporation Limited. Being an advocate and forerunner of
new and effective business marketing models for the real
estate industry, Fangke Web stayed focused on resource
integration, brand-building, and research and development of
electronic business platforms for the real estate sector. It offers
comprehensive industry information, integrated marketing
services, and business applications to players in the real estate
sector as well as homebuyers. Fangke Network is mainly
responsible for completing the networking projects for Fangke
Holdings and future strategic planning for Fangke Web. Fangke
Network has, on one hand, provided technical support in
comprehensive networking to real estate marketing planners and
agencies. It has also managed the platform and completed the 2.0
commercialisation project of the local real estate portal systems of
Fangke Web. On the other hand, Fangke Network will focus on
completing the overhaul and technical upgrade of the old second-
hand and unsold real estate leasing and sales platform in 2013
to explore new target user bases and new sources of revenue for
Fangke Web with its market positioning as an “intelligent search

engine for real estate marketing”.

In terms of online services and mobile network, the Group has
accumulated an enormous database of data. It has also built
up a comprehensive product portfolio with numerous technical
restructuring and collaborative developments. The Group has now
developed several user-end applications and separate products,
collected and classified numerous databases, rolled out practical
products, developed an integrated service and sales business
model based on the original print media sales system, and
established the necessary technological and product support for

the development of ShiFang’s cloud computing platform.

PR o i L2 Ay

AEETBRIEZEWNBRARIERETHER
B0 B R A EE S E R (www.fangke.cc) °
NEEFBERBEENESEMBITELR
RECEBEINEHETEERES mEE
BEERENEHNES TFEBTYAME REME
X¥ARBEEREEZFMNNITERSS BEHE
BREBER BERAEEERERBERM
FEHNEERABIBEEERARRERBRZ
RE REELHRIAREBEERREE LA
BITERMXHILITETFAREERRE RFHRE
TREEBMSTEEMS ZRREMIHRE2.0
IR Z—FH EE@KRNR_T—=F5%
HY _FREHEEBRFEFMSETKETR
PEMEEBMAR U EIREHE 5512
REMEETEN REFEHEFOAFPESS
EPSE=Rl ¢ B3

AEBEPERYE BHEMEED L BB
EAMBEMER GFERE ERAGBTHR
MBEE VERYBTENERBR - BA
SECKERAETETAPPE P M KB &
m REA DB TZHEEEARE HLETE
RETAFER YARBFREEZRG A
BTREE HER 2RESTVANBEE
N AEERBETTEFAMK T HEHRIM
ME m> e

THFEREBRAT B 44

19



20

Management Discussion and Analysis

Pt i i 5L

The Group’s online services business aims to build a service
portfolio comprising a wide selection of products with different
functions. First, the Group will strive to establish China’s leading
consumption trend dynamics database (;& £ )8 5 i1 X &)
for gathering and organising massive amounts of information
and data on the web. By grouping, comparing and screening all
data, it can analyse major social data on behavioral characteristics,
attitudes, interests and consumption patterns of the network
community, as well as outline consumption trends and patterns of
consumers using new media. Second, the Group has developed
the cloud call user product, a social tool featuring instant
network messaging and instant communication applications
similar to WeChat based on the Linux operating system. It has an
independent and comprehensive cloud platform and is available
to mobile device users in the form of a mobile application.
Currently, the Cloud Call products have accumulated downloads
of almost 3.2 million. Third, the Group has launched local daily
service products in the form of applications and promoted them
to companies in different regions to provide local communities
information using the resources of those companies. Fourth, the
Group will develop a mobile marketing system that will encompass
functions such as two-dimensional barcode generation, official
websites for handsets, business platform and custom-made
modular applications. Fifth, the Group has developed an online
marketing system to provide comprehensive services such as
accurate online viewers search, Weibo marketing and WeChat
services. The online marketing system provides solutions to clients
who have difficulty locating suitable potential consumers and
tackling problems caused by the lack of market data, consumption
analysis and competitor analysis. The system also furnishes full-
range data for clients’ comprehensive marketing projects; offers
one-on-one tailor-made services to clients, plans and promotes
online Weibo and WeChat events, explores multi-media marketing
channels, and flags up brand defects at an early stage. This
product charges annual package fees. Sixth, the Group has
developed a social analytic system based on ShiFang’s Zhengtong
platform. This system collects, classifies, compares and monitors
data across the internet to provide comprehensive timely alerts to
governments and companies, and charges annual package fees.
Meanwhile, the Group’s branches across the country will capitalise
on local resources and market demand to develop and roll out
new localised applications and products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MARKETING, DISTRIBUTION
MANAGEMENT, CONSULTING, AND
PRINTING SERVICES

Revenue from the Group's marketing, distribution management,
consulting and printing services for the year under review fell by
27.8% to RMB77.7 million, accounting for 28.7% of the Group’s

total revenue.

To offer integrated print media advertising solutions to clients
from various sectors, the Group has entered into exclusive
cooperation contracts with some of its newspaper partners for the
sale of advertising space and the provision of integrated services.
The Group also offers certain ancillary services, including printing,
distribution management, consulting and marketing advice. It
is committed to maintain close relationships with its newspaper
partners, to help publications maintain their excellent printing
quality, and to increase revenue from the provision of integrated

print media services.

During the year under review, the Group continued to provide
comprehensive distribution and management services to Southeast
Express and Lifestyle Express. In terms of printing services, the
Group's three factories located in Fuzhou, Kunming and Guizhou
operated smoothly and printed Southeast Express, Lifestyle Express
and Central Guizhou Morning Post respectively. In addition to the
printing of Southeast Express, the Fuzhou factory also continued
to print China Securities Journal and Shanghai Securities News,
which are distributed in Fujian. To make them more attractive to
readers, the Group maintained strategic and close cooperative
relationships with its newspaper partners and maintained
advertisement quality through more stringent quality control in
2013.
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Leveraging Fangke Web, a website operated by Fujian Fangke
Network Technology Corporation Limited, the Group continued to
provide clients with professional integrated marketing solutions,
including comprehensive property marketing planning and
property management. The Group continued to consolidate its
cooperation with clients by offering one-stop marketing services,
striving to maintain stable progress in its operational efficiency
and effectiveness. However, given the fact that the real estate
sector were affected by the macroeconomic regulation and the
resulting delays in new property projects launches, the Group's
revenue from planning and marketing services provided to real
estate clients declined to RMB46.3 million in 2013.

Through its subsidiary, ShiFang Healthcare Technology Corporation
Limited, the Group has established + 772 F 4 (www.sfikw.com).
This integrated information service platform, which includes
websites, call centre platforms and appointment registration

systems, provides experts, readers and members with an
interactive platform for the provision of comprehensive medical
and healthcare information. During the period, the Group
continued its strategic cooperation with public hospitals and
served the end-market with various products such as healthcare
information advisory, consultancy services, and newspaper
features on health. In addition, the Group strengthened the
promotion of this business by continuing to collaborate with 10
public hospitals in Fuzhou to disseminate comprehensive medical

and healthcare information.

TELEVISION AND RADIO ADVERTISING

Television and radio advertising revenue in 2013 reached RMB5.0
million, an increase of RMB2.9 million from 2012, accounting
for 1.9% of the Group's total revenue. The Group's television
advertising business provides real estate and automobile

companies with diversified and extended auxiliary services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year under review, the Group maintained an amicable
cooperative relationship with Nanning Television Station in
Guangxi Province, and broadcasted advertisements for home
improvement, building materials and automobile companies in
advertising time slots on four channels of Nanning Television
Station. The Group will be active in exploring opportunities for
cooperation with other television stations to expand its television
advertising business. The Group will strive to establish itself as a

major television media operator and a media resource provider.

In terms of the radio advertising business, the Group received
the judgement of the China Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission in April 2013. The judgement award confirmed
that the licensing and collaborative development agreement
with YangGuang DuShi (Beijing) Culture and Media Co. Ltd.
(“YangGuang DuShi”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
National Radio, was terminated on 11 June 2012. After deducting
the contractual deposit and the relevant legal and arbitration
fees, the Group received a net payment of prepaid royalty for
the copyrights under the collaborative development project of
RMB8,797,000 from YangGuang DuShi during the year under

review.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Total revenue decreased significantly by 28.3% from RMB377.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB270.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2013, primarily because
domestic economic growth slowed down due to a variety
of factors, thereby posing downward pressure on the total
revenue. Besides, due to the proliferation of online new media,
as well as the change in clients’ advertising strategy and the
restructuring of the advertising market, revenue from newspaper
advertising decreased from RMB256.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2012 to RMB181.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2013 and revenue from marketing, distribution
management, consulting and printing services decreased from
RMB107.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to
RMB77.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit decreased by 32.1% from RMB111.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB76.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013. Gross profit margin decreased
from 29.7% for 2012 to 28.1% for 2013, which was primarily
attributable to the unsatisfactory performance of newspaper
advertising and marketing, distribution management, consulting

and printing services.

Other income

Other income decreased by 61.1% from RMB9.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB3.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013, primarily due to the decrease in the

income from government subsidies.

Other gains
Other gains amounted to RMB33.7 million was recorded for the
disposal of Group’s entire remaining interest in Yunnan Handing

Investments Co. Limited for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses decreased by 15.9% from
RMB38.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to
RMB32.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2013, mainly
because of the decrease in wages paid to marketing staff, which

was in line with the decline in income during the year.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses increased significantly by
35.0% from RMB164.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2012 to RMB221.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2013, mainly because of the increase in the disposal loss of asset
held for sale of RMB7.7 million and increase in the provision for

impairment of trade receivables of RMB75.7 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Provision for impairment of prepayments, deposits,
long term investment and other receivables
Provision for impairment of prepayments, deposits, long term
investment and other receivables increased significantly by
718.9% from RMB43.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2012 to RMB358.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2013,
mainly because of increase in the provision for impairment of
long term investments, long term deposits, prepayments, and
deposits and other receivables of three metropolitan newspaper
publishers and outdoor advertising projects of RMB345.7 million

and RMB13.0 million respectively.

Loss before income tax

As a result of the foregoing factors, loss before income tax
for the year ended 31 December 2013 was RMB500.7 million,
representing a significant increase of 338.8% as compared to loss
before income tax of RMB114.1 million for the year ended 31

December 2012.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense decreased by 16.0% from RMB16.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB13.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013 as a result of the decrease in

taxable income for the year.

Loss for the year

The Group recorded a loss for the year of RMB514.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013, mainly attributable to the
significant decline in revenue and the significant increase in the
provision for impairment of long term investments, long term
deposits, prepayments, and deposits and other receivables during

the year.

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests decreased from
RMB7.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB2.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company

As a result of the foregoing factors, loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company increased from RMB137.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2012 to a loss of RMB516.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group’s management monitors current and expected liquidity
requirements regularly to ensure the Group has sufficient working
capital to satisfy its future obligations as and when they fall due.
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded a
loss of RMB514.4 million and a net cash inflow of RMBO0.5 million.
The management closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position
and is implementing measures to improve the Group’s cash
flows. The management believes there is no significant liquidity
risk as the Group has sufficient cash and cash equivalents and

borrowings facilities to fund its operations.
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-BA=+—HBLHE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——-%
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T AR¥F T
Net cash used in operating activities CEXBARSFE (71,248) (61,355)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEEME (FA)
investing activities HeFE 202,122 (78,572)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEHTAIR S F5 (130,398) (21,015)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RekFeSEEE
cash equivalents o, G F58 476 (160,942)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FUMReRBESFEIER
of the year 53,435 214,377
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FRORSRRESFMEIEAE 53,911 53,435
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Cash flow used in operating activities
For the year ended 31 December 2013, net cash used in operating
activities amounted to RMB71.2 million, primarily attributable to

the loss for the year amounted to RMB514.4 million.

Cash flow generated from investing activities

For the year ended 31 December 2013, net cash generated from
investing activities amounted to RMB202.1 million, resulted
primarily from cash receipt for the disposal of available for
sale investment of RMB108.8 million, return of deposits from
marketing and promotion projects of RMB150.0 million, offset by
payments for the additions of plant and equipment of RMB5.3
million and placement of term deposits with original maturities

over three months of RMB50.0 million.

Cash flow used in financing activities

For the year ended 31 December 2013, net cash used in financing
activities amounted to RMB130.4 million, primarily attributable to
repayments of loans advanced from a related party of RMB51.4
million and net repayments of bank borrowings and other loans of
RMB44.5 million, and distribution of dividend to non-controlling

shareholders of a subsidiary of RMB35.4 million.

Capital expenditures

The Group's business generally does not require significant
ongoing capital expenditures. Capital expenditures incurred mainly
for the purchase of printing machinery and office equipment.
Capital expenditures were RMB6.6 million and RMB5.3 million
for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013,

respectively.
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Trade receivables — net
The following table sets out the aging analysis of the Group's

trade receivables at the dates indicated:

ESREWRIE—FE
TR REHARNEEE FERFIERNER
AT

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2013 2012
—EB—=F —E—-F
RMB’000 RMB'000
Aging analysis of trade receivables B S RWEIENIRER DT AR T ARBTT
1 - 30 days 1230H 17,543 25,519
31 - 60 days 31£60H 8,170 14,604
61 — 90 days 61290H 5,535 9,090
91 - 365 days 912365H 30,471 61,540
Over 1 year —F M E 164,645 203,151
Total wEt 226,364 313,904
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables & - & 5 Jf& U 5% T8 ol B 18 1 (179,040) (107,426)
Total trade receivables — net BE GG F5 47,324 206,478

Trade receivables decreased by 77.1% from RMB206.5 million
as at 31 December 2012 to RMB47.3 million as at 31 December
2013. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the reduced
income from newspaper advertising and the increase in the
provision for impairment of certain long outstanding trade
receivables. Trade receivables turnover days decreased from 226
days for the year ended 31 December 2012 to 171 days for the
year ended 31 December 2013, primarily due to the implemented
measure taken by the Group on the customer management and

shorter payment time from customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Assets held for sale
The properties for which the Group is given the contractual right
to sell under these arrangements are held under the line item

"assets held for sale”.
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BFFHE&EE
AEERBZERFESENHHERNMET
REHELEEE] RERKHE-

As at 31 December

RE= B =5
2013 2012
—E—=F e — &
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETT

Assets held for sale BIEHEEE

The Group recognises revenue from advertising services upon
obtaining the contractual rights to sell the relevant properties.
Such revenue recognised from the relevant real estate customers
were RMB17.0 million and RMB2.4 million for the years ended
31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013, respectively, which
accounted for 4.5% and 0.9% of total revenue, respectively. For
the same periods, the amount of proceeds received from the
sales of such properties was RMB1.4 million and RMB5.6 million,

respectively.

Trade payables

27,492 44,969

REBREFSLEHEBYENS L ER KR
REERBEHRA -BEZE=_FT—=F+=A
=+ —AKkKZE—=F+-A=+—HLHF
B AEEBERAZEREEEFHER K
ADRARKE1I7T0BEETEARK 2458
ARMEBIAL 5% %0.9% - A AHEZS
MEWRDRBFFEREI N ARARBIABEE T
MARBS6HET

BEZRENRE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARB T ARETT

1 - 30 days 1230H
31 - 90 days 31&290H
Over 90 days 90H I
Total @t

2,533 991

769 2,675
3,351 1,978
6,653 5,644
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Trade payables increased by 19.6% from RMB5.6 million as at 31
December 2012 to RMB6.7 million as at 31 December 2013. Trade
payables turnover days increased from 7 days for the year ended
31 December 2012 to 50 days for the year ended 31 December
2013, which was mainly due to the increase in purchases of

newsprint paper during the year.

Indebtedness
Indebtedness consists of obligations to lenders, including
commercial banks and certain related parties and companies. The

following table shows the total borrowings at the dates indicated:

ESRERNREH-_E——F+=-_A=+—H
WARBSEEETIEMOINE_T—=4F
TZA=+t—HMARK6TEE L - B HEN
HEREASREBE T ——F+A="1—
BIEFEMN/AENEHE-_T—=F+=A
=+—HALFENSR FERAFAFHEE
MEEEEM-

&1

ERERRERA (BREEERT NG THE
ALRAB)MEER TRHEIIEBZEFRRAH
B 8 RAR R

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—-8
2013 2012
=—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
Borrowings B AREBT T ARBTT
Short-term bank loans, secured RERTTE R B HEE - 44,000
Other loan EMER = 539
Total et - 44,539

Total borrowings amounted to RMB44.5 million as at 31
December 2012 and nil as at 31 December 2013, respectively.
The Group obtained a renewal of banking facilities amounted to
RMB55.0 million and has not been utilised as at 31 December
2013.

Loans included borrowings secured by equipment and buildings
with carrying values of RMB44.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Gearing ratio decreased from 3.4% as at 31 December 2012 to

0% as at 31 December 2013 primarily due to the repayment of

borrowing during the year.
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Commitments '
The future aggregate minimum advertising payments under non- TAIHHBERESHENB R RERS IR
cancellable exclusive advertising agreements are as follows: B -
As at 31 December
R+=ZBA=+—H
2013 2012
—EB—=F o= %=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETF T
Not later than 1 year —FUT 119,910 191,418
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FUAERAFNUT 259,240 707,000
Later than 5 years HFEE 891,040 1,890,000
1,270,190 2,788,418
Contingent liabilities XEEE

The Group follows the guidance of 1AS37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” to determine when should
contingent liabilities be recognised, which requires significant

judgement.

A contingent liability will be disclosed when a possible obligation
has arisen, but its existence has to be confirmed by future events
outside the Group's control, or when it is not possible to calculate
the amount. Realisation of any contingent liabilities not currently
recognised or disclosed could have a material impact on the

Group's financial position.

The Group reviews significant outstanding litigations in order to
assess the need for provisions. Among the factors considered are
the nature of the litigation, legal processes and potential level of
damages, the opinions and views of the legal counsel, and the
management’s intentions to respond to the litigations. To the
extent the estimates and judgements do not reflect the actual
outcome, this could materially affect the results for the period and

the financial position.
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(a) AEEEERER LD AHFA

(a) Lawsuits between the Group and Shenyang

32

Media Corporation
On 26 July 2011, Shenyang Media Corporation unilaterally
terminated the comprehensive cooperation contract with the

Group.

The Group received a summons issued by the Shenyang
Intermediate People’s Court in Liaoning Province (the
“Shenyang Intermediate People’s Court”) on 25 October
2011, where Shenyang Media Corporation sued the Group
for, among others, a total sum of RMB17,328,767 being
the outstanding advertising fees payable by the Group to
Shenyang Media Corporation (“Case 1").

On 22 December 2011, the Group filed summons of claim
to the Higher People’s Court of Liaoning Province (the
“Higher People’s Court”) against Shenyang Daily Agency
and Shenyang Evening News Media Corporation Limited,
where the Group sued Shenyang Daily Agency and Shenyang
Media Corporation for, among others, a total sum of
RMB105,579,352, being the outstanding advertising fees
payable by Shenyang Daily Agency and Shenyang Media
Corporation (“Case 2") to the Group.

On 8 March 2012, the Group received a civil judgement
issued by the Higher People’s Court in relation to Case 2,
pursuant to which the Higher People’s Court decided to refer
the case back to the Shenyang Intermediate People’s Court.
As advised by the PRC legal counsel, the Group lodged
an appeal to the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC (the
“Supreme People’s Court”) on 13 March 2012 requesting
the Supreme People’s Court to overrule the Higher People’s

Court’s decision.
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On 30 August 2012, the Group received a judgement of first
instance awarded by the Shenyang Intermediate People's
Court in relation to Case 7, in which the Group was ordered
to pay Shenyang Media Corporation RMB17,250,398 as
advertising fees together with court fees within 10 days after
the judgement becomes effective. On 6 September 2012,
the Group lodged an appeal to the Higher People’s Court to
seek to revoke the judgement of first instance.

On 27 December 2012, Higher People’'s Court of Liaoning
Province ordered the judgement of first instance issued by
the Shenyang Intermediate People’s Court on 30 August
2012 be dismissed and a retrial of the case at the Shenyang
Intermediate People’s Court was ordered (“Case 1”). On
25 June 2013, the Shenyang Intermediate People’s Court
commenced the retrial of the case and the case is once
again in its first instance. The management believes that it
is not probable that this litigation would result in a material

outflow of economic benefits from the Group.

On 5 December 2013, a civil judgement was issued by the
Supreme People’s Court in relation to Case 2. It is ruled
that the civil judgement dated 8 March 2012 by the Higher
People’s Court of Liaoning Province should be dismissed, and
that the case shall be handled by the Higher People’s Court
of Liaoning Province. The management believes that it is
not probable that this litigation would result in any material

outflow of economic benefits from the Group.

The Group is currently waiting for further instructions from
the courts and will notify the shareholders of any progress in

the litigation in a timely manner.

Nevertheless, the management takes into consideration
the economic reasons relating to Shenyang Daily Agency's
and Shenyang Media Corporation’s financial and liquidity
difficulties and has made provision for loss or provision for
impairment of the RMB43,780,000 deposit and prepayment
paid to Shenyang Media Corporation as at 31 December
2012.
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(b) Enforcement order issued by Yueyang City

Intermediate People’s Court ("Yueyang
Intermediate People’s Court”) against the Group
On 4 June 2012, Yueyanglin Paper Co., Ltd. filed a civil claim
against Southeast Express and Lifestyle Express in respect
of an outstanding payment of RMB31,859,018 relating to

certain sales made in prior years.

On 10 July 2012, the Yueyang Intermediate People’'s Court
made a civil judgement that Southeast Express and Lifestyle
Express shall pay Yueyanglin Paper Co., Ltd. the aforesaid

amount.

On 26 October 2012, the Yueyang Intermediate People’s
Court ruled that in view of intentional transfer of assets
among Southeast Express, Lifestyle Express, and the Group,
the court freezes the cash assets of the Company and
its wholly owned subsidiaries, including Fuzhou Aohai
Advertisement Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou AoHai”) and Kunming
AoHai Advertising Co., Ltd. (“Kunming AoHai") up to a
maximum value of RMB31,859,018 (“Freezing Order"”).

On 8 November 2012, the Group appealed to the Yueyang
Intermediate People’s Court against the Freezing Order. The
Freezing Order was revoked 30 January 2013. Yueyanglin
Paper Co., Ltd. has subsequently lodged an appeal to
the Higher People’s Court of Hunan Province against this
decision, but on 22 August 2013, the Higher People’s Court
dismissed the appeal application by Yueyanglin Paper Co.,
Ltd.

However, the Yueyang Intermediate People’s Court issued
two enforcement judgements in favour of Yueyanglin Paper
Co., Ltd. on 22 September 2013. The court judged to
draw the cash deposit of RMB22,000,000 out of the bank
accounts of Fuzhou AoHai and to freeze advertising fee
of up to RMB14,000,000 expected to be paid by Fuzhou
AoHai and Kunming AoHai to Southeast Express and
Lifestyle Express. The Group has subsequently appealed to
the Yueyang Intermediate People’s Court against the court’s
decision together with other economic losses and damages

on the reputation of the Group.
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On 17 February 2014, the Yueyang Intermediate People’s
Court dismissed the application for a leave to appeal by
the Group. As advised by the PRC legal counsel, the Group
lodged an appeal to the Higher People’s Court of Hunan
Province (the “Higher People’s Court”) against the above-
mentioned decision of the Yueyang Intermediate People’s
Court. An application is lodged to the Higher People’s Court
to dismiss the above-mentioned enforcement judgements
and refund the improperly drawn amount of RMB22,000,000
to the Group.

According to the advice from the Group’s PRC legal counsel,
the management believes that it is not probable that this
enforcement order would result in a material outflow
of economic benefits from the Group. Accordingly, no
provision for loss was made in respect of the deduction of
RMB22,000,000 cash deposits and the freezing of up to
RMB14,000,000 advertising fee payables as at 31 December
2013.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had approximately 854 full-
time employees. Total staff costs including directors’ remuneration
for the year ended 31 December 2013 was approximately
RMB78.5 million (2012: approximately RMB93.4 million). The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages to employees,
which include salaries, bonuses and share options to qualified

employees.

The compensation of the directors are evaluated by
the remuneration committee and the committee makes
recommendations to the Board. In addition, the remuneration
committee conducts performance reviews, and determines the

compensation structure of the Group's senior management.

The Company operates an employee share option scheme to
provide incentive or reward to eligible persons who provide
services to the Company for their contribution and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of the Company, and for such

other purposes as the Board may approve from time to time.

PR o i L2 Ay

RZZE—MF_A++B EEHHHEA
ROEBT B B A S B A ESFET A A FE o BIR
FEUZEZEMRNER AEEBHE E
MEBTRRAREROEERHEE
BRARZER ([BRARZER]) RS £
FBERERARER RS LRI E
E - WRAAEEREETEMENARE
22,000,0007T °

RBAESEREAEERNER BEE
BEZRITEEETAAEGERARE
BAESREBEMNZRL B AEERR
—E-ZHF+ - A+ —BYEEREN
ZIMIR 2 FRAK22,000,0007T KR
HEEMNESB&RE AR14,000,0007T
STIREEEE-

ABDER

HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HB £5E#%
BR8 452 BEE -BE-_T—=+=A
=T+ —HIEFENEERAETE (RIFESH

R#93488T) - ARERREERHEARFE S
MFMAS BRFERAGERERRHE
M ERAE-

FNZE 2R AAESTN YRESSF
HEFZ - FHEE T ERIARES
RERBHRARBIFT RSO EE -

ARBEM—HEBBRETE BUARSK
NEARERBNAERALTHARRMELNE
BEB OB RERARANG UAREES
ATREN R L EM R RG TE RS EE -

THFEREBRAT B 44

35



36

Management Discussion and Analysis

Pt i i L

OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2014, the PRC advertising industry is
expected to grow steadily in a favorable government policy
environment. Under the Twelfth Five-Year Plan, “advertising
creation, advertising planning, advertising design and advertising
production” are listed as supported industries in the Guidance
Catalogue for Industrial Structure Adjustment (2011 Version).
Furthermore, various supportive policies for small and micro
cultural enterprises were promulgated at the 3rd Plenary Session
of the 18th Central Committee of the Communist Party of China.
Last year, the State Council announced a development target for
the industry of a 20% annual average growth rate in information
technology spending. This initiative is expected to spur the
development of the related industries, particularly the newly
emerging online shopping industry. We believe that the future
growth of Internet and new media advertising will outpace that of

traditional media advertising.

To fully capitalise on the robust development of new media,
the Group will develop its online services business in a cautious
and orderly manner while maintaining growth in its traditional
media advertising business so as to realise online to offline
integration, perfect its comprehensive advertising platform and
offer more value-adding services to its clients. In order to optimise
its customer portfolio, the Group will also actively explore the
fast-moving consumer goods industry in view of its relatively
high growth rate in terms of the number of advertisers and
scale of business as compared with the traditional real estate
and automobile industries. Along with the Group’s brand name
and comprehensive advertising platform, we have thus a solid

foundation for our sustainable future through these initiatives.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Zhi, aged 48, is the chairman, chief executive officer
and an executive Director. He is a qualified accountant as
conferred by the Ministry of Finance. Mr. Chen was a cadre of
the Fuzhou Minhou Tax Bureau from 1982 to 1989 (during which
he was granted leave from 1985 to 1988 to pursue his studies
at Fujian Radio and Television University), deputy section chief
of the Fuzhou Economic and Technology Development Area Tax
Bureau from 1989 to 1993, and subsequently the section chief
from 1993 to 2002. He joined our Group in 2003 and pioneered
our distinctive business model of cooperating with newspaper
partners to provide integrated print media services to advertisers,
undertook the main decision-making role in the management of
our overall operations and oversaw the strategic development
of our Group. He was appointed a Director of our Company on
9 December 2009. Mr. Chen has accumulated more than eight
years of relevant experience from developing the business of
our Group and possesses a deep understanding of the PRC print
media and advertising industries. Mr. Chen graduated from Fujian
Radio and Television University in 1988 with a diploma in financial
economics. Mr. Chen is one of our controlling shareholders. He
is also a director of TopBig International Development Limited
("TopBig International”) and China TopReach Inc. (“China
TopReach”), a SPAC with its shares traded on the OTC Pink Sheet
in the United States. Mr. Chen is the spouse of Ms. Zheng Shou
Ling and the brother of Ms. Chen Min, a non-executive Director of

the Company.
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Mr. Hong Pei Feng, aged 48, is an executive Director. Mr. Hong
was an administrative officer with Jimei Teachers College from
1985 to 1990, the general manager of Xiamen Yuanhong Group
Co., Ltd, a real estate development company, from 1991 to 2000,
and the general manager of Xiamen Yuantong Chuanbo Co.,
Ltd, a company engaged in the advertising business, from 2001
to 2003. He joined our Group in 2004, and was appointed the
chairman of Olympia Media Holdings Limited (“Olympia Media”)
from 2005 to 2007 before subsequently retiring from that role
and assuming the position of its vice chairman in 2007 due to a
reorganisation of Olympia Media's corporate structure. Mr. Hong
is also a core management member who developed the business
of Beijing HongXinTu Culture Communication Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
HongXinTu"”). Mr. Hong was appointed a Director of our Company
on 18 January 2010 and currently also serves as the vice chairman
of the China International Chamber of Commerce in Fujian
Province. He graduated from Jimei Normal College (presently
known as Jimei University) in 1985 with a diploma in Chinese.
Due to Mr. Hong's substantial experience in publication and
distribution gained from his work with Olympia Media and Beijing
HongXinTu, he has significant expertise in print media business
management. Mr. Hong is one of our controlling shareholders. He
is also a director of Blazing Sun Holdings Ltd. (“Blazing Sun”) and
China TopReach, a SPAC with its shares traded on the OTC Pink
Sheet in the United States.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu, aged 40, is an executive Director and the chief
financial officer. He is a certified public accountant as conferred
by the Ministry of Finance and a qualified lawyer as conferred by
the Ministry of Justice of the PRC. Mr. Zhang was with Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu from 1994 to 2000, an investment director of
TechFoster Technology Ventures Ltd. from 2000 to 2002, a senior
manager with PricewaterhouseCoopers from 2002 to 2005, and
an executive director of Chum Investment Corporation from 2006
to 2009. In 2009, Mr. Zhang was appointed as a director and
subsequently the chief financial officer of China TopReach. Mr.
Zhang is responsible for China TopReach's investor relations and
regulatory compliance, including regular dealings with competent
authorities such as the Securities and Exchange Commission. He
joined our Group in 2010, and was appointed a Director of our
Company on 18 January 2010 and our chief financial officer on 15
February 2010. He graduated from Hua Dong Industrial University
Mr. Zhang

possesses substantial financial experience from his previous work

in 1994 with a bachelor's degree in economics.

with venture capital firms and top global audit firms. Mr. Zhang is
also a director of China TopReach, a SPAC with its shares traded
on the OTC Pink Sheet in the United States.
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Mr. Yu Shi Quan, aged 37, is an executive Director and the vice
president of finance. He is a qualified accountant as conferred by
the Ministry of Finance. Mr. Yu was an accountant at Fujian Lan
Tian Tax Accounting Co., Ltd. from 1996 to 1997, the finance
director of Fujian Huanyu Investment Development Co., Ltd
from 1997 to 1998 and the finance director of Fujian ShiFang
Investment Co. Ltd. (“Fujian ShiFang”) from 1998 to 2000. He
joined our Group in 2000 and was head of finance of Fujian
ShiFang until 2008 when he became the head of finance of
Olympia Media, and, subsequently, vice president of finance of
China TopReach in 2009, and was appointed a Director of our
Company on 20 December 2011. He graduated from Fujian Radio
and Television University in 1996 with a diploma in finance and
accounting. Mr. Yu has gained significant management experience
from his work with Fujian ShiFang and continues to assist our
chief financial officer with the overall financial operations of
our Group. Presently, Mr. Yu is a director of Fuzhou HanDing
Network Science & Technology Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou HanDing"),
Fujian ShiFang Culture Communication Co., Ltd., Shenyang
ZhuQin ShiFang Media Development Co., Ltd., and Beijing
HanDing Advertisement Co., Ltd., which are all subsidiaries of our

Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Ping, aged 44, is a non-executive Director. He is a senior
accountant as conferred by the Fujian Provincial Department of
Personnel. He also serves as a guest professor of the school of
management at Xiamen University. In addition, Mr. Wang is a
director of China Science & Kingwin (HK) Investment Management
Limited (“China Science”), and Cypress Capital International
Investment Management Limited, as well as Shenzhen Rainbow
Fine Chemical Industry Co., Ltd, Shenzhen Beauty Star Co., Ltd.
and Xiamen 35.com Technology Co., Ltd, all three of which are
listed companies in the PRC. Mr. Wang was appointed a Director
of our Company on 18 January 2010. He obtained his doctorate

degree in management from Xiamen University in 2004.
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Ms. Chen Min, aged 43, is a non-executive Director. She

graduated from the Faculty of Arts, Fujian Normal University
with a bachelor's degree in arts in June 1993 and a master's
degree in arts specialising in contemporary Chinese drama in June
2002. She also obtained a doctorate degree in arts specialising
in theatrical aesthetics from the Central Academy of Drama in
June 2006. Ms. Chen had taken up various academic teaching
posts at the College of Chinese Language and Literature Fujian
Normal University between September 1993 and May 2007 and
has been an associate professor of drama literature at the Central
Academy of Drama since May 2007. Ms. Chen has also served
as a secretary and a member of council of the China Branch of
The International Association of Theatre Critics and a member of
the expert panel of academic degrees and graduate education of
the Ministry of Education of the PRC since May 2007. Ms. Chen
currently is a non-executive director of China TopReach (listed
and traded on the OTC Pink Sheet in the United States). She was
appointed as our Director on 20 December 2011 and is also the
sister of Mr. Chen Zhi, an executive Director and the chairman of

the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Chang Ren, aged 66, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as our Director on 8 November 2010,
and is a qualified senior economist as conferred by the Fujian
Provincial Department of Personnel. Mr. Zhou was appointed as
the chairman of the Qingliu Country Party Committee in 1990.
He was engaged in the newspaper industry in the PRC and held
several positions including the deputy bureau chief and editorial
board member of Fujian Daily from 1996 to 2002, and the general
manager, senior economist and Party Committee deputy secretary
of the Fujian Daily Newspaper Group from 2002 to 2008. In
addition, Mr. Zhou was the vice chairman and, later, chairman
of the Fujian Province Newspaper Industry Association during
the same periods, before retiring in 2008. He graduated from
Fujian Provincial Party School of the CPC in 1986 with a diploma
in politics. Mr. Zhou has extensive print media experience and
expertise with particular knowledge of the Fujian newspaper

industry.
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Mr. Wong Heung Ming Henry, aged 44, is an independent
non-executive Director. He was appointed as our Director on
8 November 2010. Mr. Wong took some senior positions, by
serving as the finance directors and the internal audit director,
for some multinationals, the United States and Hong Kong listed
companies engaged in fast-moving consumables, real estates,
shopping malls operation and media industry. Prior to that,
Mr. Wong had worked for two international accounting firms,
Deloitte Touch Tohmatsu and PricewaterhouseCoopers. Mr. Wong
graduated from City University in Hong Kong in 1993 with a
bachelor’'s degree in accountancy and also obtained a master’s
degree in electronic commerce from the Open University of
Hong Kong in 2003. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants as well as a certified internal auditor.
Mr. Wong has accumulated more than 20 years in financing,

internal controls and corporate governance experience.
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Mr. Zhuo Ze Yuan, aged 51, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as our Director on 8 November 2010.
He is a qualified PRC lawyer and qualified professor as conferred
by the Sichuan Provincial Department of Justice and Sichuan
Provincial Leading Group of Professional Titles Reform in 1989 and
1995, respectively. Mr. Zhuo had taught at Southwest University
of Political Science and Law in the 1990s and was subsequently
appointed the vice-chancellor of Southwest University of Political
Science and Law. He had been a professor in political science
and law at the Central Party School of the CPC since 2003 and
is currently a part-time lawyer with Beijing P.H. Law Firm. Mr.
Zhuo has served in various legal institutes in the PRC and received
various awards, including “China's Top 10 Outstanding Young and
Middle Aged Legal Scholars” awarded by the China Law Society
in 1999. He is currently a committee member of the China Law
Society. Mr. Zhuo obtained a bachelor's degree and a master's
degree, both in law, from Southwest University of Political Science
and Law in 1984 and 1990, respectively, and a doctorate in law

from Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 2000.

Mr. Cai Jian Quan, aged 51, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as our Director on 20 December 2011.
He graduated from the Anhui University of Finance Economics
with a bachelor's degree in financial accounting in July 1984. Mr.
Cai was a finance manager of the finance department of Shanghai
Baihuo Headquarters Watches and Glasses Branch between July
1984 and June 1992. He was the general manager of the sales
department of Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co. Ltd. between
June 1992 and June 2002. He has also been the chairman of the
board of directors of Shanghai Guantong Investment Co. Ltd.

since September 2002.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Gang, aged 57, is the assistant to the chief executive officer
of the Group and president of the print media division responsible
for the management of the print media business in the PRC. Mr.
Li served as a reporter and editor of Fujian Daily from 1987 to
1997. He was a member of the editorial board of Strait News
and was responsible for operation from 1997 to 2004. In 2004,
he joined the Group and served as the general manager for the
Digital Media Center of Fujian ShiFang Culture Communication
Co., Ltd., the general manager of Dalian ShiFang Media Co., Ltd.
and the vice president of the Group's office. Mr. Li has worked in
the media industry for over 20 years and has extensive experience

in media operation and management.

Mr. Xu Kai Ning, aged 41,

division of ShiFang Holding. Mr. Xu served as a director and

is the president of the new media

the general manager of ShiFang YaQi Culture Communication
(Xiamen) Co. Ltd from 2004 to 2008 and also took the role of
chairman of Shenyang ZhuQin ShiFang Media Development Co.,
Ltd. from 2007 to 2008. He served as the general manager of the
Investment and Development Center and the general manager of
the Media Commerce Center of the Olympia Media Group and the
vice president of the Integrated Marketing Center of the ShiFang
Holding Group since 2008 until he assumed the current role in
June 2012.

Mr. Zheng Bo Ling, aged 46, is the president of the Group's asset
management and operation division. Mr. Zheng joined the Group
in 2002 and served as the deputy general manager and general
manager of Quan Zhou ShiFang Advertising Company Ltd. from
2002 to 2006. He later served as the general manager of the
Tangshan branch of Fujian ShiFang from 2006 to 2010 and the
general manager of &M+ EREEERDF from 2010 to

2011.
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Mr. Pan Jian Ping, aged 41, is a vice president of finance and
internal control of our Company. He is a qualified accountant as
conferred by the Fujian Provincial Department of Finance and a
certified asset valuer as conferred by the China Appraisal Society.
Mr. Pan was a project manager with Fujian Audit Firm (now
known as Fujian Hongshen Certified Public Accountants Ltd.) from
1995 to 1997 and 2000 to 2004, and a project manager with
Fujian Huashen Asset Valuation Real Estate Appraisal Co., Ltd.
from 1998 to 1999. He joined our Group in 2004 and was the
financial controller as well as assistant to the president of Beijing
HongXinTu until 2007, before assuming the position as our vice
president of internal control in 2008. He graduated from Fuzhou
University in 1995 with a diploma in accounting and also obtained
a diploma in law from Huazhong Normal University in 2009
through part-time study. Mr. Pan has more than eight years of
accounting experience and is mainly responsible for our Group's

internal financial management and audit supervision.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Ching Yi, aged 39, is our company secretary. She
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Ms. Chan holds a bachelor's degree in
accountancy and has accumulated more than 17 years of financial
and auditing experience. She is currently the company secretary of
Zheda Lande Scitech Limited (stock code: 8106), a company listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market Board of the Stock. Ms. Chan
joined our Group in August 2010.
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Directors’ Report

AR,

The directors (the “Directors”) of ShiFang Holding Limited (the
“Company”) present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the

“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the business of publishing and
advertising (the “Publishing and Advertising Businesses”) in the
People's Republic of China (the “PRC"). There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the

year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income on page 88.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 and proposed that

loss for the year be retained.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for

the past five financial years is set out on pages 5 to 6.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year of 2013, the Group had acquired property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB5.3 million for the purpose
of upgrading printing machines and office equipment of the

Group.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year of 2013 are set out in

note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during
the year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”), or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities during

the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The amount of the Company's reserves available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 December 2013 was approximately
RMB512.7 million.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations has been made by the Group

during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year of 2013, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group's five largest customers comprised approximately 25.8% of
the Group's total sales and the sales attributable to the Group's
largest customer were approximately 7.7% of the Group's total

sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year of 2013 attributable to
the Group's five largest suppliers were approximately 72.7% of
the Group's total purchases and the purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier were approximately 26.8% of the Group's

total purchases.
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Directors’ Report

AR,

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were as follows:

Executive directors:
Mr. Chen Zhi (chairman and chief executive officer,
appointed as a Director on 9 December 2009)

Mr. Hong Pei Feng (appointed on 18 January 2010)
Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu (appointed on 18 January 2010)
Mr. Yu Shi Quan (appointed on 20 December 2011)
Non-executive directors:

Mr. Wang Ping (appointed on 18 January 2010)
Ms. Chen Min (appointed on 20 December 2011)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Zhou Chang Ren (appointed on 8 November 2010)

Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry (appointed on 8 November 2010)
Mr. Zhuo Ze Yuan (appointed on 8 November 2010)

Mr. Cai Jian Quan (appointed on 20 December 2011)

In accordance with the Articles, one-third of the Directors will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election, at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Moreover,
the Directors appointed during the year will hold office until the

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and will be

eligible for re-election.
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DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management

of the Group are set out on pages 37 to 45.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS' CONFIRMATION OF
INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of its independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhou Chang Ren, Mr. Wong
Heung Ming, Henry, Mr. Zhuo Ze Yuan and Mr. Cai Jian Quan a
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of its independent non-

executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and the non-executive Director has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 3 December 2010, which may be
terminated by not less than six months' notice in writing served by
either party on the other. Each of the independent non-executive
Director has been appointed by the Company for a term of three
years and shall be terminable by either party by giving not less

than two months' prior notice in writing.

During the year, none of the Directors had a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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AR,

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management
members of the Group was based on their individual performance
as well as market trends and practices. In addition, each of the
executive Directors and the non-executive Directors is entitled
to a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount of
the bonuses payable to all the executive Directors at the sole and
absolute discretion of the Company. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the
Directors) during the year ended 31 December 2013 were within
the following bands:

T 4 1B SR
BEERAEESHEEENKEOMSEE TR
FRE A 23R DA K i1 45 18 2 B8 B 511 BT o Lt o -
ERTESRIINTESHERESBIER
A RSN THRBERTESHEALEALR
NEZEMERE EBMESFBHRA G
T M 528 -

REBEZE_Z—=F+-_HA=+—HIEFE B2
NEREEE (ESERINOMESN T T5E
B

Number

of Senior

Management

BREERE A

RMB300,000 to RMB400,000 A R¥300,000 = A R#400,0007T 5
RMB400,001 to RMB500,000 AR ¥400,001 702 AR %500,0007T 1
Total: et 6

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
IN OR DEBT SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Other than the pre-IPO share option scheme of the Company (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) adopted by written resolutions
of its shareholders on 26 February 2010 and the post-IPO share
option scheme of the Company (the “Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) adopted by the written resolutions of its shareholders
on 8 November 2010, at no time during the year of 2013 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors held any interests in any competing business
against the Company or any of its jointly controlled entities and

subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, approved
by written resolutions of the shareholders of the Company passed

on 26 February 2010, were set out as follows:

(@) the purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentive or reward to eligible participants for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interests of, the Company and to enable the Company and

its subsidiaries to recruit and retain high-caliber employees;

(b) the maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be 27,456,156, representing approximately 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of

approval of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme;

(c) the subscription price for the Shares under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall not be less than 100% of the
fair market value of the Shares on the date of grant of
the option as valued by the valuer to be appointed by the

Company;

(d) save as otherwise stated in the letter of grant, a maximum
of 40% of the total number of the options shall only be
exercisable from the expiry of the first anniversary of the
commencement date; a maximum of 70% of the total
number of the options shall only be exercisable from the
expiry of the second anniversary of the commencement date;
and all the total outstanding number of the options will be
exercisable from the expiry of the third anniversary of the

commencement date;
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HAE ALY

subject to the termination provisions in the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period commencing on 26 February
2010, being the date on which the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the Shareholders, and ending on
the day immediately prior to the Listing Date (both dates
inclusive), after which period no further options pursuant
to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will be granted but
in all other respects the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to the
extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any options
granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in
accordance with the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, and options which are granted during the life of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may continue to be exercisable

in accordance with their terms of issue; and

the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall take effect subject to
the passing of the necessary resolution to adopt the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme by the shareholders of the Company.
The option granted may be exercised during the option
period which shall commence on the expiry of the first
anniversary of the commencement date and end on the date
immediately before the fourth anniversary of the Listing Date
(subject to the provisions for early termination contained the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme). In the event that dealings
in the Shares have commenced on the Stock Exchange, the
exercise after the Listing Date of any option granted will be
conditional upon the Listing Committee granting approval
of the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Shares which
may fall to be allotted and issued pursuant to the exercise of

any options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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As of the date of this report, options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 27,456,156 Shares (representing approximately
3.81% of the total issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this report) have been granted by the Company under the

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Particulars of the options granted

under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out below:

No. of share options

Directors’ Report
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HEARERH ARES $£27,456,156/%
7 (hRAHRE B EARA D BITRABEL
3.81% ) MERECHARRREBEE A ARE
ERERETERE -REBEBERAREERE
PR EIR B ERENFBERN T X

BREHA
Approximate
Outstanding Percentage
as at the Granted Lapsed Outstanding of total
Name and position of Exercise  beginning of during during as at the issued  Exercisable
grantee in our Group price the year the year the year yearend  share capital  period
TREL
RED RER  RERBEH
RRANEEREREENBL i R E FREM FREH HATHE  BHEINE  TEH
(HKS)
(A7)
Mr. Chen Zhi, Executive Director 1.82 10,433,339 - - 10,433,339 14%  (note 1)
BELE ATES 1.82 10,433,339 - - 10,433,339 14% (&)
Mr. Hong Pei Feng, Executive Director 1.82 2,745,616 - - 2,745,616 04% (note 1)
RIEBEE HITES 1.82 2,745,616 = = 2,745,616 0.4% (K1)
Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu, Executive Director 1.82 9,335,093 - - 9,335,093 13%  (note 1)
REHLE HTEZ 1.82 9,335,093 - - 9,335,093 13% (&)
Mr. Yu Shi Quan, Executive Director 1.82 1,098,246 - - 1,098,246 02% (note 1)
REREE BIES 1.82 1,098,246 = = 1,098,246 0.2% (K1)
Mr. Wang Ping, Non-executive Director 1.82 549,123 - - 549,123 0.1%  (note 1)
IPEE FBTES 1.82 549,123 = = 549,123 0.1% (K1)
Mr. Chan Chun Kau, General Counsel 1.82 1,647,369 - - 1,647,369 02% (note 1)
R % & BER 1.82 1,647,369 = = 1,647,369 0.2% (K1)
Mr. Xiao Zhen Bin, Investor Relations Director 1.82 1,098,246 - - 1,098,246 02% (note 1)
BRI EE REBREE 1.82 1,098,246 = = 1,098,246 0.2% (K1)
Mr. Pan Jian Ping, Vice President of 1.82 549,124 - - 549,124 0.1%  (note 1)
Internal Control
BRTEE REBEHEILEH 1.82 549,124 - - 549,124 0.1% (M)
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HAE ALY

Note 1:

Each of the grantees to whom the options have been granted under the

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is entitled to exercise:

(i) up to 40% of the shares that are subject to the options granted
to the relevant grantee at any time during the period commencing
on 26 February 2011, a year after grant date, and ending on 2
December 2014;

(i)  up to 70% of the shares that are subject to the options granted
to the relevant grantee at any time during the period commencing
on 26 February 2012, two year after grant date, and ending on 2
December 2014;

(i)  up to 100% of the shares that are subject to the options granted
to the relevant grantee at any time during the period commencing
on 26 February 2013, three year after grant date, and ending on 2
December 2014.

Other particulars of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out

in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by the shareholders
of the Company on 8 November 2010, the Company adopted the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. The purpose of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward to (i) any full-time
or part-time employees, executives or officers of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; (ii) any Directors (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive Director)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; or (iii) any advisors,
consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or

any subsidiaries (each “Eligible Person”).
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The Board may, at any time within 10 years after the date of
approval of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, make an offer to
grant options to any Eligible Person. The subscription price for
shares granted pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and

shall be at least the highest of:

(i)  the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock

Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

(i)  the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date on

which such offer is made; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

The total number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the
Listing Date, 73,216,512 Shares, without prior approval from the
shareholders of the Company. The maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted, and yet to be exercised, under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The total number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme to each Eligible Person (including both
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares
of the Company. Any further grant of share options in excess of

this limit is subject to shareholders' approval in a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In addition, if shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options granted under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to a participant who is a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
any of their associates, in any 12-month period (i) represent in
aggregate more than 0.1% of the total number of shares in issue,
and (ii) have an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares of the Company at the date of each grant, in excess of
HK$5,000,000, the proposed grant of option must be approved by

the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is RMB1.00. The
exercise period of any option granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall not be longer than 10 years from the date
of grant of the relevant option. There is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before the exercise of the option

except otherwise imposed by the Board.

As at 31 December 2013, no share option had been granted
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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WA
DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT O A SR BRIy B RE 2
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING R
SHARES

At 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H BEFERARQA
the directors in the share capital and underlying shares (the S EMEEEE (ERRAEFRBAEGRD ([F
“Share(s)") of the Company or its associated corporations (within FEREEBI ] ) EXVED) R A R BRI G5 ([H%
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance {7 |) RGN IRIEEH LS 5615352
(the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by BARRNBBEFEENZRMH: &ﬁ%ﬁim%ﬁﬁ/\
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise ESHTELSRHINELETRENE AR
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to BRI R AR AT

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers, were set out as follows:

(i) Long position in the Company (i) REQATNHEFR

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interest

BEEnE B/ REME Ligvig 4= EEBiOBEI

Mr. Chen Zhi Interest in controlled corporation 42,998,170 5.1%
(note 1)

B % RERSEE N 42,998,170 5.1%
(HaE1)

Mr. Chen Zhi Beneficial Owner 390,000 0.1%

BRAEEE BB A 390,000 0.1%

Mr. Hong Pei Feng Interest in controlled corporation 5,347,604 0.6%
(note 2)

I U 2 BT 1 4 5 B e 2 5,347,604 0.6%
(M$5E2)

Mr. Yu Shi Quan Interest in controlled corporation 21,142,026 2.5%
(note 3)

REFHESLE MR EEHDEE B R 21,142,026 2.5%
(M$5E3)
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(i)

Notes:

(1)  These Shares are held by TopBig International, which is

wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Zhi.

(2)  These Shares are held by Blazing Sun, which is wholly-owned

by Mr. Hong Pei Feng.

(3) These shares are held by Keep Profit International Capital

Limited, which Mr. Yu owns 30% of the shareholding.

Long position in the associated corporations of

the Company

(ii)

ZERMARELEEZEHEBFNATH

BRESE -

ZERMHAMEELE2ERENRG

-

ZERMHAREERFI0%RENER
BERERBRARRTE -

RAXTREBLEENT R

Name of Approximate

Associated percentage of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Corporation interest

EEpMR B4 EntE HEBZEEE #zfildeask

Mr. Chen Zhi Interest in controlled corporation China TopReach 26.1%
(note 1)

BRE S HE REESEE AR B K T 26.1%
(PF3ET)

Mr. Chen Zhi Beneficial Owner N/A 0.5%

REXE EnEEAA i A 0.5%

Mr. Hong Pei Feng Interest in controlled corporation China TopReach 10.3%
(note 2)

HEIE I 5 A REESEE AR B K T 10.3%
(PF3E2)

Mr. Yu Shi Quan Interest in controlled corporation China TopReach 5.4%
(note 3)

RS S REESEE AR o B K 5.4%
(PF3E3)

Mr. Yu Shi Quan Beneficial Owner N/A 0.1%

RS S E=BEA A iE A 0.1%

Mr. Wang Ping Interest in controlled corporation China TopReach 9.6%
(note 4)

FEEE REESEE R B K T 9.6%
(PF3E4)

Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu Interest in controlled corporation China TopReach 2.0%
(note 5)

SRIEAT LA REESEE AR o B K 2.0%
(BF3ES)
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(iii)

Notes:

(1

These interest in China TopReach is held by TopBig
International, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Zhi.

These interest in China TopReach is held by Blazing Sun, which
is wholly-owned by Mr. Hong Pei Feng.

These interest in China TopReach is held by Keep Profit
International Capital Limited, which Mr. Yu owns 30% of the
shareholding.

These interest in China TopReach is held by China Science,
which is wholly-owned by Shenzhen China Science & Kingwin
Venture Capital Co., Ltd, a company that is in turn owned by
Mr. Wang Ping as to 72.7%.

These interest in China TopReach is held by Real Sight
Consultant Limited, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang Tie
Zhu.

Interests in the underlying Shares of equity

derivatives of the Company

Directors’ Report
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RPBRENZSREaHREEERE
BENATEERS-

RPBEXRIGNZSEamITELES
BEHmANBERESA-

NABERENZEEGARTERER
30%MENABERERGR QB
Ao

RABERENZEEEHRTPRFE -+
MEFRITHREESAEREEEAR
AEIZEBHEAR RITMHRRSEIER
EEBEBERARBAEFLEEEFT27%
PR HE

RABRXENZSERHRETLES
& ¥ 5 M Real Sight Consultant Limited
Ao

REQDTRAITETARS REE
R 43 B 1 2

Description of equity

Total number Approximate

Nature of derivatives of underlying percentage of
Name of Director Interest (note 1) Shares interest
BRASTETEFE EREN
EEMR EEME (BFzET) 1HEE IR 12 B H Aotk
Mr. Chen Zhi Personal Share Option 10,433,339 1.2%
BREEAE & A gl 10,433,339 1.2%
Mr. Hong Pei Feng Personal Share Option 2,745,616 0.3%
HEIE I 5 A A =gl 2,745,616 0.3%
Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu Personal Share Option 9,335,093 1.1%
SR A S A & A gl 9,335,093 1.1%
Mr. Yu Shi Quan Personal Share Option 1,098,246 0.1%
REELEE EPN B 1,098,246 0.1%
Mr. Wang Ping Personal Share Option 549,123 0.1%
FFEAE & A AR 549,123 0.1%
Note: B3

(1

These share options were granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. Further details of such options are disclosed
under the paragraph above headed “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”.

55 R T AR R A B AT R
HEATBIE M AR S MR — 5
FEIB R £ R BB B AR 3T
B —BEE-
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' = B A e S R B e A 1) HE 2

INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the following persons (other than RZE—=ZF+-_A=+—HB UTALZ(E
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had interests or ERARAEEZTHABRIN EALENE
short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded BESRBEKRIFEIBCEARRATENE
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to MBI RABB R D S SA R

Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in Shares: RROWEFR:
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interest
=x B ERME ROBE REEBAOEISL
China TopReach Beneficial Owner 303,526,306 36.1%
B K i EnEAA 303,526,306 36.1%
TopBig International Beneficial Owner (note 1) 42,998,170 5.1%
7 T B EnBEAA (1) 42,998,170 5.1%
Templeton Strategic Emerging Markets  Interest in controlled corporation 42,606,606 5.1%
Fund Ill, LDC (“Templeton”) (note 2)
BEBEFEDTISES ([HEE]) REZEHEEER (H52) 42,606,606 5.1%
Notes: B 5T
(1)  TopBig International is a company incorporated under the laws of (1) FHFBEBEA—XIBEREBE LS EEAMK

the BVI, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen, the executive director
and chairman of the Company.

(2)  Templeton is a limited duration company incorporated in the (2)
Cayman Islands. It makes strategic investments in emerging markets
and is managed by Templeton Asset Management Ltd.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of bR AN SCPTHR R & HN

YRR AARRATESEHREIRREES

AR

HEBEA—RXNFASHESTM A ERE
DA AEFTET IS E L B IRE - B Templeton
Asset Management Ltd& 2 o

NZE—-—=F+=A

any other person (other than a Director or a chief executive of the =t—B - ARAALEENSFEMEMAL
Company) who had an interest or a short position in the shares (ZEFHARAEZTHRABRIN HEBLER
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register RIBEZFESRBEGAEI6IEERRABETEN
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of BRMeOARRFIRG RIEEKRGOERIOAE -

the SFO as at 31 December 2013.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into the transactions set out below
will be regarded as continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules. Unless otherwise defined, capitalised terms below

has the same meanings as those defined in the Prospectus.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Structure Contracts

As the original shareholders of Beijing HongXinTu, including Mr.
Zhang Jin Gui, Mr. Chen Zhi, Mr. Qiang Yi Bin and Ms. Lin Yu
Lin, were replaced by Mr. Zheng Bo Ling, Mr. Qiang Yi Bin and
Mr. Xu Kai Ning respectively as the new shareholders of Beijing
HongXinTu on 8 July 2013 in accordance with the Structure
Contracts, whose registered capital is owned as to 40% by
Mr. Zheng Bo Ling, 30% by Mr. Qiang Yi Bin and 30% by Mr.
Xu Kai Ning, the new shareholders of Beijing HongXinTu have
entered into the Structure Contracts with the Company in order
to continue and secure the transactions under the Structure
Contracts.

The Structure Contracts comprise five agreements, namely (i)
the Loan Agreement, (ii) the Equity Pledge Agreement, (iii) the
Voting Rights Proxy Agreement, (iv) the Exclusive Purchase Option
Agreement and (v) the Service Agreement, which were all (except
the Service Agreement which was entered into between Fuzhou
HanDing and Beijing HongXinTu) entered into between, inter alia,
Mr. Zheng Bo Ling, Mr. Qiang Yi Bin, Mr. Xu Kai Ning and Fuzhou
HanDing. Each of Mr. Zheng Bo Ling and Mr. Qiang Yi Bin are
associates of Mr. Chen Zhi and Mr. Hong Pei Feng respectively and
therefore are Connected Persons of the Company. Furthermore,
Mr. Xu Kai Ning, being a shareholder of Keep Profit International
Capital Limited and a party to the Olympia Media Concert Parties
which are controlling shareholders of the Company, is also a

Connected Person of the Company.
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The Structure Contracts were entered into to establish a situation
in which Fuzhou HanDing has obtained effective management,
operational and economic control over Beijing HongXinTu and
has an exclusive option to purchase all or part of the entire equity
interest of Beijing HongXinTu when and to the extent permitted by
the PRC law. The Company is currently prohibited from acquiring
an equity interest in Beijing HongXinTu, which holds a license for
the general distribution of books, newspapers and periodicals,
to incorporate its business into our Group because pursuant
to the Catalogue of Industries for Guiding Foreign Investment
jointly promulgated by The National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC and The Ministry of Commerce of the
PRC on 31 October 2007, the publication and general distribution
of books, newspapers and periodicals business is classified as an

industry in which foreign investors are prohibited from investing.

The transactions under the Structure Contracts (except those
under the Service Agreement) constitute continuing connected
transactions for our Company under Rule 14A.34(1) of the
Listing Rules and are subject to the requirements of reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders' approval set out in
Rules 14A.45 to 14A.54 of the Listing Rules following the Listing.

The Directors believe that the Company's structure whereby
Beijing HongXinTu's financial results are consolidated into the
Company's financial statements as if it was a wholly-owned
subsidiary and the flow of economic benefits from its business to
the Company, places the Group in a special position in relation
to the connected transactions rules. Accordingly, notwithstanding
that the transactions contemplated under the Structure Contracts
technically constitute continuing connected transactions for
the purposes of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the Directors
consider that it would be unduly burdensome and impracticable
and would impose unnecessary administrative costs on us to be
subject to strict compliance with the requirements set out under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of these continuing

connected transactions.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.42(3) of the Listing Rules, the Company
have applied for and the Stock Exchange has granted a waiver
from strict compliance with the reporting, announcement,
independent shareholders' approval, annual cap and agreements
with fixed term of no more than three years requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing
connected transactions under the Structure Contracts for so long

as the Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

For details of the Structure Contracts, please refer to the sections
headed “History and Corporate Structure” and “Connected

Transactions” of the Prospectus.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company to report
on the continuing connected transactions of the Group in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor's letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. PricewaterhouseCoopers
has reported the results and their work to the Board, confirming
that the transaction have received the approval of the Directors,
have been entered into in accordance with the relevant Structured
Contracts and that no dividends or other distributions have been

made by Beijing HongXinTu to its shareholders.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Structure Contracts, the above continuing connected transactions
and the report of the auditor. In the opinion of the independent

non-executive Directors:

(i)  the continuing connected transactions carried out during
the year are in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group and have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Structure Contracts so that the
revenue generated by Beijing HongXinTu and the subsidiaries

of the Company have been mainly retained by the Group;
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(i)  the continuing connected transactions were entered into
either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there is
no available comparison, on terms that are no less favorable
to the Group than terms to or from independent third
parties;

(iii) no dividends or other distributions have been made by

Beijing HongXinTu to its shareholders; and

(iv) any new Structure Contracts entered into, renewed or
reproduced between Beijing HongXinTu and the Company
during the relevant financial period are fair and reasonable,
or advantageous, so far as the Company are concerned and

in the interests of our shareholders as a whole.

Other than disclosed above, there was no other transaction which
needs to be disclosed as connected transaction in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2013.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as at

the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chen Zhi

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong
28 March 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance and value of achieving
high standards of corporate governance practices. The Board
believes that good corporate governance is an essential element
in maintaining and promoting shareholder value and investor
confidence.

The Company has adopted the principles and complied with the
former and revised code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of

“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Hong Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules”) as its own code of
corporate governance since the date of the listing of the shares
of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 3
December, 2010, which shall also be revised from time to time
in accordance with the Listing Rules. Saved as disclosed below,
the Board considers the Company has complied with the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code.

Set out below the corporate governance principles and the
practices adopted and observed by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

THE BOARD

The Board provides effective and responsible leadership for the
Company in setting the strategic decision and overseeing the
Company's overall operations. The Board meets regularly and each
Director has to make decisions objectively in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders.

Board Composition

The Board comprises 10 Directors, 4 of whom are executive
Directors and 2 of whom is non-executive Director and 4 of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. The biographies of all
Directors are set out on pages 37 to 45 of this annual report.
Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors has
any other financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships among members of the Board.

Pursuant to the code provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, listed
issuers are required to adopt a board diversity policy.
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Board Proceedings

The Company will hold at least four board meetings at
approximately quarterly intervals and will also meet at such other
times when necessary. Formal agenda of all Board meetings are
distributed to the Directors for comments and approval, generally,
at least 14 days before the meetings. Adequate time and sufficient
resources will provide to all Directors to discharge their duties
at which the Directors actively participate and hold informed
discussions. All minutes of Board meetings will record in sufficient

detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions reached.

During the period under review, the Board convened
1 shareholders' general meeting, 7 board meetings, 2 Audit
Committee meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting and 1
Nomination Committee meeting respectively. The attendance of
individual Directors at meetings of the Board, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee is as

follows:

Shareholders

EEgRR
ARARRBEIBITHAEEESRE WEFH
TR EREENENEMEERTEE -
MEEZEEE@RNEAFIR —RNEIFAT&
LTHBEABETES AHBERERR#tE-
EEERRETRARAMAARERBEITER
% MEEAEBSEYRAEER TETH
wHEERERMALRLES RS FALE
ExgEZNEBENRFHAIRR

REESBM EFESA R AM—RBEX
LREFREH MARKEAREHE —
EERRHRRNREEAREE
Fe BHZAE FMEARRES
EEANHEEMT

77

= A 2

W >
m X

Meeting attended/held
HE/BTERRY

general Audit Remuneration Nomination
meeting Board Committee  Committee  Committee
RRAE EEXg® ENZEE® HHZEe REZEE
Executive Directors YTEE
Chen Zhi (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) BE(TEZBEEHTE) 0/1 717 N/A 17 1
TEA
Hong Pei Feng BRI 17 6/7 N/A N/A N/A
TER TEA TER
Zhang Tie Zhu (Chief Financial Officer) AN (EEAFE) 171 1 N/A N/A N/A
TEA @R TE A
Yu Shi Quan R 17N 717 N/A N/A N/A
TEA TR @A
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Wang Ping T¥F on 17 N/A N/A N/A
TiER TEA @M
Chen Min B 1/1 5/7 N/A N/A N/A
TER TEA @A
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Wong Heung Ming, Henry EmH 17 6/7 22 11 1N
Zhou Chang Ren BEL 01 717 W 11 N/A
TE A
Zhuo Ze Yuan 2R 01 717 22 N/A 1
TEA
Cai Jian Quan Rk 1/1 777 N/A N/A N/A
TER TEA @A
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All the Directors have access to relevant and timely information.
They also have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary of the Company, who is responsible for providing the
Directors with Board papers and related materials. Where queries
are raised by the Directors, prompt and full responses will be given

if possible.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder of the Company or a Director arise, the matter will be
discussed in a physical Board meeting, as opposed to being dealt
with by a written resolution. Independent Non-Executive Directors
with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings dealing

with such conflict issues.

Independent Non-Executive Directors are identified in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors. An
updated list of the Directors identifying the Independent Non-
Executive Directors and the roles and functions of the Directors is
maintained on the website of the Company and the website of

the Stock Exchange.

Roles and responsibilities of the Board
The Board is collectively responsible for promoting the success and
interest of the Group through its leadership and supervision. The

principal tasks of the Board are to:

(i)  provide entrepreneurial leadership for the Company with a
framework of prudent and effective controls which enables
risks to be assessed and managed;

(i) set the Company's strategic aims, ensuring that the

necessary financial and human resources are in place for the

Company to meet its objectives and review its management

performance; and

(iii) set the Company's values and standards and ensure that its
obligations to its shareholders and others are understood

and met.
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No event or condition of material uncertainties was found
that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern during the period under review. The
Directors were responsible for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of the financial statements of the Company, in
all material respects, in accordance with applicable regulatory

requirements.

Skills, knowledge, experience and attributes of
Directors

All Directors of the Board had served in office during the period
under review. Every Director commits to give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company. The Directors also
demonstrate their understanding and commit to high standards
of corporate governance. The Executive Director brings his
perspectives to the Board through his deep understanding of
the Group's business. The Non-Executive Directors and the
Independent Non-Executive Directors contribute their own skills
and experience, understanding of local and global economies,
and knowledge of capital markets to the Group's business.
The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
continuous professional development programmes for all Directors

to hone and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Induction and training

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive, is
required to undertake an induction program to ensure that he
has a proper understanding of his duties and responsibilities.
The induction program includes an overview of the Group's
business operation and governance policies, the Board meetings'
procedures, matters reserved to the Board, an introduction of
the Board committees, the Directors' responsibilities and duties,
relevant regulatory requirements, review(s) of minutes of the
Board and Board committees in the past 12 months, and briefings

with senior officers of the Group and site visits (if necessary).
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Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the Revised CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. During the Year, all Directors had participated in
appropriate continuous professional development activities by
ways of attending training and/or reading materials relevant to the
Company's business or to the Directors' duties and responsibilities.
In addition, all Directors have been updated on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their

awareness of good corporate governance practices.

Directors' and officers' liability insurance and
indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against the Directors. Throughout 2013, no claim had been made

against the Directors and the officers of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be

performed by the same individual.

Mr. Chen Zhi, who acts as the chairman and chief executive officer
of the Company, is responsible in pioneering the Company's
distinctive business model and undertaking the main decision-
making role in the management of the Company's overall
operations and overseeing the strategic development of the
Group. The Board will meet regularly to consider and review
the major and appropriate issues affecting the operations of
the Company. As such, the Board considers that the sufficient
measures have been taken and it will not impair the balance of

power and authority between the Board and the management.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed four independent non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board. The Company has
received from each of its independent non-executive Directors
the written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board, based on such confirmation,

considers all independent non-executive Directors independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Director has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of three years, which may be terminated by not less than six
months' notice in writing served by either party on the other. The
independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a
term of three years and shall be terminable by either party giving
not less than two months prior notice in writing. The Directors
have power at any time and from time to time to appoint any
person to be a Director, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the existing Directors. Any Director so appointed shall
hold office only until the next annual general meeting of our
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
In accordance with the Articles of the Company, at every annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being or, if the number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to, but not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Directors
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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Relationships and associations among the Directors

Ms. Chen Min is the sister of Mr. Chen Zhi, who is also the
chairman of the Company. Save as disclosed, there was no
relationship between members of the Board (including financial,

business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)).

Company secretary

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) is responsible for keeping detailed minutes of each
meeting of the Board or the Board committees including any
dissenting views expressed by the Directors, which should be
available to all Directors for inspection. She is also responsible
for ensuring that the Board procedures comply with all applicable
laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. All agenda, relevant materials and document
are required to be sent out at least 3 days prior to the intended
dates of the Board meetings or meetings of the Board committees.
It is the responsibility of the Company Secretary to send the draft
minutes of the meetings of the Board or the Board committees
to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the
aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings of the
Board or the Board committees are also required to be sent to
all Directors for record. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board

procedures and all applicable laws are followed.

Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all
Directors updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as

well as internal codes of conduct of the Company.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that she

had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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Model Code for Directors' Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by the Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set forth in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct for dealing in securities by the directors of the Company.
Specific enquiries have been made with all the directors of the
Company and all of them confirmed and declared that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model

Code during the year ended 31 December 2013.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
has been established on 8 November, 2010 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. In compliance with
the amendments to the Listing Rules which will become effective
on 1 April 2012, the Board adopted revised terms of reference for
the Audit Committee on 27 March 2012. The Audit Committee
comprises three members, all are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry (Chairman), Mr.
Zhou Chang Ren and Mr. Zhuo Ze Yuan.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are:

- To make recommendations to the Board on (i) the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditors; (ii) the audit fee and terms of engagement of the
external auditors; and (iii) any questions of resignation or

dismissal of that auditor
- To review and monitor the external auditors' independence

and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in

accordance with applicable standards
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- To monitor the integrity of the financial statements of
the Company and the Company's annual report and
accounts, interim report and quarterly financial highlights,
and reviewing significant financial reporting judgements

contained in those reports

- To review the adequacy and monitor the effectiveness of the
Company's financial reporting system, internal control and

risk management systems.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management in
conjunction with the external auditor, the annual results and
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December,
2013, including the accounting policies and practice adopted by
the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2013 the Audit Committee
had performed their primary duties to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and the internal control procedures of
the Company. The Audit Committee has also held meeting with
the Company's external auditors, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers
("PWC") without the presence of executive Directors and
management, to discuss matters arising from the auditing
and report to the Board on material issues, if any, and make

recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit
Committee can be viewed on the website of the Company and the

website of the Stock Exchange.

Corporate Governance Report

(e S0 ah

- EERARAMBRR ARAFHREE
B PHRERFEVBRENTEE
W2 B % F IS M SIS
Ep Nl ]

- BEAQBMBEREHE

SERGESE2H WEREMK-

BERZ B RSN REEN R EE EEMA
SEHE—Z—=F+_A=t—HILFEHN
FEXELRFR BRAEERANSTEE
K A& B

BE_T—=F+-_A=t—HLFE F%
E BTEXTERE RO MEBEAR
MHEBRESREFRAREREF BREZES

NEATEEREEBTLFEOBRT  &A

X A B S B 1 BRI 28 ST B ok B ' RHED E IS A

(TERBUKEREER]) RITEH M

AZBMELNER YRAEESEREAF

H(WE) AERREESRHEEEER -

Bt
L\\
F_H

ARFIERERZZEGRHRHER HERE
TRE -EZZEE@NEMBESENEAR
BIA A K B X P A A B B

THFEREBRAT B 44

73



74

Corporate Governance Report

(e S0

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) has been established on 8 November, 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. In
compliance with the amendments to the Listing Rules which will
become effective on 1 April 2012, the Board adopted revised
terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee on 27 March
2012. The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
namely Mr. Zhou Chang Ren (Chairman), Mr. Chen Zhi and Mr.
Wong Heung Ming, Henry, the majority of which are independent
non-executive Directors. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to evaluate and make recommendations to the
Board regarding the remuneration packages to the Directors and
senior management which will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market

trends and practices.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are more specifically set out in its latest
terms of reference, details of which can be viewed on the website

of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the period under review:

(@) formulating and recommending the policy and structure of
the remuneration of the Directors and senior officers of the

Group to the Board;

(b) assessing individual performance of the Directors and senior

officers of the Group;

(¢)  reviewing specific remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior officers of the Group with reference to the
Board's corporate goals and objectives as well as individual

performances; and
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(d) reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on

compensation-related issues.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) has been established on 8 November, 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. In
compliance with the amendments to the Listing Rules which will
become effective on 1 April 2012, the Board adopted revised
terms of reference for the Nomination Committee on 27 March
2012. The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
Mr. Chen Zzhi

and Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry, the majority of which are

members, namely Mr. Zhuo Ze Yuan (Chairman),

independent non-executive Directors. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee
selects and recommends the candidates for directorship shall base
on the criterion including professional knowledge, competence,

experience, independence and integrity.

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee are more specifically set out in its latest
terms of reference, details of which can be viewed on the website

of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March
2014. The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board of the Company which include but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional experience. The
Nomination Committee will review annually the structure, size
and composition of the Board and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board that are relevant to the

Company's business growth.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the

Nomination Committee during the period under review:

(@) reviewing and evaluating the composition of the Board
with reference to certain criteria. These criteria included
qualifications required under the Listing Rules or any other
relevant laws regarding characteristics and skills of the
Directors, professional ethics and integrity, appropriate

professional knowledge and industry experience, as well as

ability to devote sufficient time to the work of the Board and
its committees and to participate in all Board meetings and

shareholders' meetings;

(b) reviewing and recommending the re-appointment of the
retiring Directors for reelection at the previous general

meeting; and

(c) assessing independence of the Independent Non-Executive

Directors.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors' and Auditors' Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Company's financial statements for the year ended 31 December,
2013 which reflect true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company and the Group and in compliance with relevant
law and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. The Board is
responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required

under the Listing Rules.

The Group appointed PWC as the Group's external auditor. The
statement by PWC regarding their reporting responsibility to the
shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 81

to 83 of this annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, the remuneration
paid or payable to PWC for audit services, audit related services
and non-audit services amounted to RMB2,872,000 (2012:
RMB3,078,000), RMB957,000 (2012: RMB1,027,000) and
RMB10,000 (2012: RMB9,000) respectively.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the shareholders' investment and
the assets of the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2013, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal

control system of the Group through the Audit Committee.

Corporate governance functions
The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate

governance duties as required under the Revised CG Code:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices

on corporate governance,

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior officers

of the Group;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(d) to develop, review and monitor the codes of conduct

applicable to employees and the Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and the Revised CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate

Governance Report.
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During the period under review, the Board considered the

following corporate governance matters:

(i) review of the compliance with the CG Code and the Revised
CG Code; and

(i) review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and
risk management systems of the Group through the Audit

Committee.

INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of effective communications
with shareholders and continues to act in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The Company keeps
shareholders and investors informed of its business performance
and strategies by adopting a transparent and timely disclosure
policy which complies with the Listing Rules and provides all
shareholders equal access to such information. The Company
also publishes all documents on the Company's website at

www.shifangholding.com.

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM") also
provides a forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the
Shareholders directly. The Directors and the committee members

are available to answer questions during the AGM.

Notice of AGM, annual report, financial statements and related
papers were posted to shareholders of the Company for their
consideration at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM.
AGM proceedings of the Company are continually reviewed in the

light of corporate governance best practices.
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CODE PROVISION E.1.2

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Chen Zhi,
who acts as the chairman of the Company, was not able to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 22 May
2013 due to other business commitments. Instead, Mr. Zhang Tie
Zhu, the executive director of the Company was appointed as the

chairman of the Company during the annual general meeting.

Shareholders' rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders
of the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
mandatory disclosure requirements under Paragraph O of the
Revised CG Code which is effective from 1 April 2012.

(a) Convening of general meeting on requisition by

shareholders

General meetings shall also be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more members of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided
that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be
convened on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist,
provided that such requisitionist held as at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting

at general meetings of the Company.
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(b)

(c)

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date
of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
the meeting to be held within further 21 days, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly
as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by
the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of

the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
Shareholders' meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (as amended from time to time)
or the articles of association of the Company. However,
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request
the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting

following the procedures set out above.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available on the Company's

website.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in
writing to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the

enquiries.

Constitutional documents

During the period under review, there had been no significant

change in the Company's constitutional documents.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ShiFang
Holding Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 240, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2013, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

Independent Auditor’s Report
Y8 3 B il o

Bk Ak 18
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Y8 31 A Sl 3

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

OTHER MATTERS

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only
for you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

BB A LR

As at 31 December 2013
=

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

2013 2012
—g-= —E—_fF
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt 5 AR TR ARET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 7 55,146 60,045
Intangible assets EmILEE 8 21,466 37,957
Available-for-sale investment A ERE 9 - 75,134
Interest in associates A & N BB o 10 59,993 60,162
Prepayments, deposits and ERFRIE R R
other receivables E b I 3R IE 12 160,947 431,250
___297.552 muEEEE
Current assets REBEE
Inventories A= 14 6,789 7,900
Assets held for sale FIELEEE 13 27,492 44,969
Trade receivables — net B S REWEIE— 558 11 47,324 206,478
Prepayments, deposits and other ENFIE EZE Rk
receivables H i & W KA 12 92,641 309,851
Amounts due from related parties FE UL B8 3 A = FIR 35(c) 19,867 8,900
Restricted cash PR #1138 & 16 - 12,890
Short-term bank deposits 5 HIRIT IR 3K 17 50,000 =
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEMBEIAEE 15 53,911 53,435
208,024 B
Total assets HEE 595576 1,308,971
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity KATERIFTEA
holders of the Company PE AL #E &=
Share capital fig A% 22 72,687 72,687
Share premium & 57 & (B 22 556,440 556,440
Other reserves H b e 23 107,614 110,813
(Accumulated deficits)/retained (R:HBAL) MR a
earnings (233,880) 278,891
502,861 1,018,831
Non-controlling interests eI = 9,804 43,174
Total equity A 512,665 1,062,005




Consolidated Balance Sheet
APrE LR

As at 31 December 2013
JmeE—=s g JE = f— (]

2013 2012
—Eg—= == —4E
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 2 ARET T ARETIT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Amount due to a related party FEfT — 2 BEE AT FIB 35(c) - 51,441
Deferred income tax liabilities REFTERAE 21 2,157 4,777
2,157 56,218
Current liabilities REaE
Trade payables B ENFE 20 6,653 5,644
Other payables and accrued expenses i fi& (< 3x 38 K2 g 51 5 52 20 38,707 96,598
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFT S B & 35,049 42,908
Borrowings (R 19 - 44,539
Amounts due to related parties B EE A LA 35(c) 345 1,059
80,754 190,748
Total liabilities wes 82,911 246,966
Total equity and liabilities ERLEEHRE 595,576 1,308,971
Net current assets mEEEFE 217,270 453,675
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 514,822 1,118,223

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
March 2014 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

REZGR_Z—NF=ZA=-+/N\BHAELR
BTE YATIEERREZTSRS:

Chen Zhi Yu Shi Quan
PR & REFiE

Director Director
3 3

The notes on pages 91 to 240 are an integral part of these

financial statements.
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Balance Sheet
HrEffR

As at 31 December 2013
=

2013 2012
—E—-=F ===
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt 5 ARBT AR T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries REBARIRKRE 24 4,767 5,118
______ 4,767 B
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables T8 FA I H 8 RIE 12 176 26,789
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS 25 533,750 721,314
Restricted cash Z R HI3E & 16 - 368
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEMBEIEE 15 1,611 4
535,537 748,475
Total assets BHEE 540,304 753,593
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity KATERFAEAELESR
holders of the Company
Share capital fi&% 2 22 72,687 72,687
Share premium f& 57 im (E 22 556,440 556,440
Equity-based compensation reserve LA B 2 7 EL 1 Y 5 B £ 4 23 13,850 12,986
Accumulated deficits 2B A 23 (220,462) (27,940)
422,515 614,173
Total equity REREE 422,515 614,173
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Balance Sheet
HrfifiR

As at 31 December 2013
R-F—=Ff_H=1—H

2013 2012
—E—=F == =&t
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000

Y = ARBTR ARET T

LIABILITIES g8&

Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued expenses  H fth Ji& (< X I8 K & 51 5 52
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET BT /B A R ZR B

Total liabilities =i

Total equity and liabilities EzRkEEEHE

Net current assets RBEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBERE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
March 2014 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

20 240 28,528
25 117,549 110,892
AT
117,789 139,420

540,304 753,593

417,748 609,055

422,515 614,173

REFGR _Z—NF=RA-+/\BH ALK
BT YA TIEERREZTSRSE:

Chen Zhi Yu Shi Quan
PR & ET

Director Director
EFE EFE

The notes on pages 91 to 240 are an integral part of these

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

O 2 i B

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BEF = H=A—HIEEE

2013 2012
—E—-= ===
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt 5 AR TR ARET T
Revenue WA 5 270,326 377,242
Cost of sales 5B B o (194,279) (265,367)
Gross profit EF 76,047 111,875
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHEAS 27 (32,287) (38,405)
General and administrative expenses — R R AT A 2% (221,493) (164,130)
Provision for impairment of long term REEE RHZS-
investments, long term deposits, BRNRIBARZE &
prepayments, and deposits and other E {th U SR TR R (B B
receivables 12 (358,741) (43,780)
Other gains H b i 2 26 33,664 12,060
Other income H At g A 26 3,694 9,468
Operating loss KEEE (499,116) (112,912)
Finance income A W 29 454 1,518
Finance costs ELEZ YD 29 (1,839) (3,218)
Finance costs — net BLE KA —F 5 29 (1,385) (1,700)
Share of (loss)/profit of associates JEMGEE S AR (FE) %A 10 (169) 501
Loss before income tax BrFr S H AT E 18 (500,670) (114,111)
Income tax expense FriS®if X 30 (13,715) (16,261)
Loss and total comprehensive FERAFEREZHEEEASE
loss for the year (514,385) (130,372)
Loss and total comprehensive loss U T&REELEEERER
attributable to: THEEBEE:
— Equity holders of the Company —ARARERFEA (516,834) (137,940)
- Non-controlling interests —JEPE R = 2,449 7,568
(514,385) (130,372)
Loss per share for loss attributable to ~ ZANA Az A A JEHE B
equity holders of the Company BHkE#E
— Basic (RMB per share) — AR (BRARE) 31 (0.6153) (0.1799)
— Diluted (RMB per share) —#E(BRARE) 31 (0.6153) (0.1799)
Dividend % B 32 - —

The notes on pages 91 to 240 are an integral part of these

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
T Db 25 52 ) 4

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BEF = H="A—HIEE

(Accumulated
Capital Equity-based deficits)/ Non-
Share Share  redemption Capital Revaluation compensation  Statutory retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserves reserve reserve reserves  earnings Total interests equity
HRE (B3
S AERN Bt/
B RBEE BERE  EAEE  ERBE  FMRE  iRRE  REER & FEREE  REEE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTZ ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZF-=5-f-ANKH 12,681 556,440 997 60,454 919 12,986 35,457 278,891 1,018,831 3174 1,062,005
Comprehensive income 2EUE
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - (516,834)  (516,834) 2,449 (514,385
Total comprehensive income rARGEE - - - - - - - (516,834)  (516,834) 2449 (514,385
Transactions with owners HEEANRS
Appropriation to statutory reserves ERZITRE - - - - - - 3,021 (3,021) - - -
Capital injection from non-controlling HERAFERRR A
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 1,960 1,960
Purchase of ownership interest in a subsidiary EA—EHBARNEAE
without change of control BEMTUEHE 38 - - - - - - - - - (2381) (2.381)
Realised on disposal of interest in subsidiares £ ERNHBARNERER 39 - - - - - - (7,084) 7,084 - - -
Distribution of dividends to non-controlling ~ R—FME AR HFEER
shareholders of a subsidiary RES RS - - - - - - - - - (35,398) (35,398)
Equity-based compensation NREBERMZEH 37 - - - - - 864 - - 864 - 864
Total transactions with owners BEEANRHER - - - - - 864 (4,083) 4,063 864 (35819)  (34,955)
Balance at 31 December 2013 RZZ-ZE+-A=t-RHLs 72,687 556,440 997 60,454 919 13,850 31,39 (233,880) 502,861 9,804 512,665
Capital Equity-based Non-
Share Share  redemption Capital  Revaluation compensation Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserves reserve reserve feserves  earings Total  interests equity
WRE
& AERE
kA RGEE BEEE  EARE  ERRE  EMEE  iRRE E-tl gt FohEE  EReE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wt ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2012 RZB-—5-A-BNER 62863 530,900 997 60454 919 10,624 3103 421265 1,119,045 37,005 1,156,050
Comprehensive income 2EUE
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - (1379400 (137,940 7568 (130372)
Total comprehensive income 2ENREE - - - - - - - (137940)  (137,940) 7568 (130,372)
Transactions with owners HEEANRS
Appropriation to statutory reserves HEZERRE - - - - - - 4,434 (4,434) - - -
Issue of ordinary shares for acquisition of an ~ FEKE-HBEAFZFERR
associate 9,824 25,540 - - - - - - 35,364 - 35,364
Capital injection from non-controlling WERRFERRR A
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 1133 1133
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHEAR - - - - - - - - - (2.53) (2,53)
Equity-based compensation SARRIE AR E 37 - - - - - 2362 - - 2362 - 2362
Total transactions with owners HEEANRSEE 9,824 25,540 - - - 2,362 4434 (4,434) 37,126 (1,399) 36,327
Balance at 31 December 2012 RZZ-ZE
TZA=t-BhEE 72,687 556,440 997 60,454 919 12,986 35457 278,891 1,018,831 43,174 1,062,005
The notes on pages 91 to 240 are an integral part of these 59122408 1Y P 7E B8 It & B 75 S 3k A9 22 2 &F
financial statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

B PEBL A R
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BEF = H=A—HIEEE

2013 2012
—E-=F =t
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt &E AR®T R ARBT T
Cash flows from operating activities K& EZBHAEHESHE
Cash used in operations Z“‘ “%ﬂ‘“ﬁﬁﬁﬁ He 33(a) (62,370) (42,715)
Interest received EHSZ s 29 454 1,518
Interest paid 21 %'JE\ 29 (1,839) (3,218)
Income tax paid ERAEH (7,493) (16,940)
Net cash used in operating activities KEXBFARESFE (71,248) (61,355)
Cash flows from investing activities &% &8 f7 15 }Eﬁ/ﬁg
Disposal of subsidiaries net of cash HEMBAR KRS 33(c) (325) (5,153)
Investment in associates AR 2 N BRI E 10 - (125,330)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- i & & f#t H &£ 4% & AT 15 3 A
sale investment 9 108,798 -
Proceeds from disposal of investment  HER —FEBEE A RMEKE
in an associate Fr S sk 18 10 - 77,928
Prepayment for outdoor advertising PINESIE B B TR RIE
projects 12 (1,392) (19,326)
Additions of property, ME BMERZXERE
plant and equipment Vi (5,279) (6,595)
Additions of intangible assets BEEEARE 8 (66) (166)
Deposits for marketing and EIHREBEANES
promotion projects 12 - (17,500)
Return of deposits from marketing REZHREEEE MRS
and promotion projects 12 150,000 17,500
Placement of term deposits with initial ~ ##I2 ¥ 85A =@ A LA £/
term of over three months TE HAfF 3K 17 (50,000) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEMZE BB &
plant and equipment HAEFTIE IR 33(b) 386 70
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEZEME(FTA)
investing activities B& 55 202,122 (78,572)
Cash flows from financing activities BEZFBFIERERE
Proceeds from borrowings & TAFfr?%%J\ - 88,000
Repayment of borrowings BEEBRK (44,539) (92,989)
Capital contribution from 3'5? IRt IR R E &
non-controlling interest shareholders 980 1,133
Repayment of advance from BE—BEEATER
a related party (51,441) (17,159)
Distribution of dividends to m— B AR
non-controlling shareholders of FE 2 AR B R 9 IR A% B
a subsidiary (35,398) -
Net cash used in financing activities BB EE T AR 255 (130,398) (21,015)
Net increase/(decrease) in cashand BE&RRESEEHIEH
cash equivalents ®in CGRY) BE 476 (160,942)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYHNRERRESFEEE
beginning of the year 15 53,435 214,377
Cash and cash equivalents at FRANESRRASEEEH
end of the year 15 53,911 53,435
The notes on pages 91 to 240 are an integral part of these FUNE240BE M TB L EHBHRENEE
financial statements. e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

ShiFang Holding Limited (the “Company”) is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the business of publishing and
advertising (the “Publishing and Advertising Businesses”) in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands
on 9 December 2009 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (2009 Revision
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is PO
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman

Islands.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March
2014.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of ShiFang
Holding Limited have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS"). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale

financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ Dk S 5 o Wi ik

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1.1 Going concern
The Group has been reporting net loss since year
2012 and during the year ended 31 December
2013, the Group reported a loss for the year
of RMB514,385,000 and a net cash outflow
from operating activities of RMB71,248,000.
Notwithstanding the above, the consolidated
financial statements are prepared on a going

concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Going concern (continued)

The board of directors of the Company has
reviewed the Group's cash flow projections
prepared by management. The projections
cover a period of twelve months from the
date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements. The projections make key
assumptions with regards to the anticipated
cash flows from the Group’s operations and
availability of future borrowing facilities, taking
into account the availability of existing borrowing
facilities. Based on these cash flow projections,
the Group will have sufficient financial resources
in the coming twelve months to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. The
Group’s ability to achieve the projected cash
flows depends on the management’s ability to
successfully implement initiatives to improve
the Group’s cash flows, including measures
to control capital expenditure and corporate
overhead, investments in new businesses, collect
repayments of deposits for marketing and
promotion projects according to agreed schedule,
expedite receipt of cash from settlement of trade
and other receivables, realisation of assets held
for sale and the availability of the borrowing

facilities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEFFIEBORME ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE (&)

RRE-T T-LXC
EHEEH ZHE LREE

2.1.1 Going concern (continued)

The directors, after making due enquiries

and considering the basis of management’s
projections described above and after taking
into account the reasonably possible changes
in the operation performance, believe there will
be sufficient financial resources available to the

Group at least in the coming twelve months to

BETRBMELE Wit 2
BREMGEMEEDER &
EHREAKREBAEBRAT
BRHERRED T @A
R UETHIHNMKE
T-H EFRRRFEL

meet its financial obligations as and when they

EEERHRAFHHEREITB

o

-
i3

fall due. Accordingly, the directors consider that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

128 BERKREEEN

2.1.2Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures -]
(a) New and amended standards effective in (@) R-ZFE—ZF4LEXH
2013 Fa] RASNSETER)

AEEER T =4
—A—HsizERBY
T IR R T 5 HTE]

The Group has adopted the following new
and amended standards for the accounting

periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013 KA 7T 2R
Amendments to  Presentation of Items of Other BR e E] Bk
IAS 1 Comprehensive Income FIRETA W#HIRE
Amendment to  Transition Disclosures BRSREREEN BENRR

IFRSs 10, 11 10~ 1M1R12%
and 12 IS
Amendments to  Disclosures — Offsetting BRUBREEN RE-HE
IFRS 7 Financial Assets and TR B A SRHAEHR
Financial Liabilities SRAR
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial ERSRREEN  SiMBRE
Statements £105
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements BRSERERN SERH
115
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures (continued)

(a)

New and amended standards effective in
2013 (continued)

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits

IAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements

IAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures

Amendments to IAS 1 — Presentation of

Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The main change resulting from these
amendments is a requirement for entities
to group items presented in ‘other
comprehensive income’ (OCIl) on the
basis of whether they are potentially
reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently
(reclassification adjustments). The
amendments do not address which items

are presented in OCI.

B 85 R B ik

2 EHEGHEBORME (5)

2.1 RBEE (F)
Q12EHBERBEZTEN
% (F)

(a)
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ARUBREEN EnEEEs
£12% BRE

BRUEREEN DAAEENE
£135%
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEFFIEBORME ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE (&)

2.1.2Changes in accounting policy and

Q12EHBERBEZEN

disclosures (continued) 28 (&)

(a)  New and amended standards effective in (@) RZ-ZF—=F4£HH
2013 (continued) HET RACIEETER ()
Amendment to IFRSs 10, 11 and 12 — B B B T 3R 5 A RIS
Transition Disclosures 11 %1258 [38% B

T)S‘ZE%J BERT AR
These amendments provide additional It E 5T A = BB B 7%

transition relief to IFRSs 10, 11 and
12, limiting the requirement to provide
adjusted comparative information to
only the preceding comparative period.
For disclosures related to unconsolidated
structured entities, the amendments
will remove the requirement to present
comparative information for periods before

IFRS 12 is first applied.

Amendments to IFRS 7 — Disclosures —

EERE105%  F11
SRR E 125 IR RN
EHES IZEEE?%T%L
— AR ERA
tb?’éﬂwfﬁﬁﬁﬂi/f\
HEBEEENEEM
= WEEII AR E
W\Féfﬁﬁ&‘%ﬁﬁiiﬁi
125 HAIE A S
FILE R E R B IRTE ©

BRI 15 3R &5 R 797

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial [HE-—HiHemEEN
Liabilities TREE] WEFTAR

The amendments also require new It & 5T 7R 8 72 Bt 75 ik
disclosure requirements which focus on MR ANEHN RS
quantitative information about recognised BMTANRRBEFE

financial instruments that are offset in the

statement of financial position, as well as

BEFEURBERRD
EERMIA(ER

those recognised financial instruments that HEDHH) WEER
are subject to master netting or similar BB EHTE -

arrangements irrespective of whether they

are offset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures (continued)

(a)

New and amended standards effective in
2013 (continued)

IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

The objective of IFRS 10 is to establish
principles for the presentation and
preparation of consolidated financial
statements when an entity controls one or
more other entity (an entity that controls
one or more other entities) to present
consolidated financial statements. Defines
the principle of control, and establishes
controls as the basis for consolidation. Set
out how to apply the principle of control
to identify whether an investor controls an
investee and therefore must consolidate
the investee. It also sets out the accounting
requirements for the preparation of

consolidated financial statements.

2
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEFFIEBORME ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE (&)

2.1.2Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures (continued)

(a)

New and amended standards effective in
2013 (continued)
IFRS 11 = Joint Arrangements

IFRS 11 is a more realistic reflection of joint
arrangements by focusing on the rights and
obligations of the arrangement rather than
its legal form. There are two types of joint
arrangement: joint operations and joint
ventures. Joint operations arise where a
joint operator has rights to the assets and
obligations relating to the arrangement and
hence accounts for its interest in assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses. Joint
ventures arise where the joint operator has
rights to the net assets of the arrangement
and hence equity accounts for its interest.
Proportional consolidation of joint ventures

is no longer allowed.

IFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other

Entities

Q12EHBERBEZEN
% (F)

(a)

R-IFE—ZFLEHH
AT RASIEETER (&)
BRI A s RIS 11
UAR=E-E
RS e 2RI
HMHAELHAEEE
MR SR A ER
PRRVRERIANE TS > MIEE
EERN - BERAM
B HAKERAER
7 - HRAKEHEEARLK
LEAREGSHEREAR
AR EEMETR - Fit i
HREE BE BWAR
FXHES AR -E&E
RAF - REREERH
RHTREERERN
A s A A LS A
fR-BERRNEHBIEL
&Gt ARR -

BIBR B 75 R 5 RSB 12
SIEMERERAR
7l

IFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements BB B A 3R R %12

for all forms of interests in other entities, HEAERHEMEBH A

including joint arrangements, associates, B A ER(BEEE

special purpose vehicles and other off ZHE B AR FERE

balance sheet vehicles. MERBMEMEERAR
RUANEB)OEER
= o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.2Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(a)

New and amended standards effective in
2013 (continued)
IFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 aims to improve consistency and
reduce complexity by providing a precise
definition of fair value and a single source
of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across IFRSs. The
requirements, which are largely aligned
between IFRSs and US GAAP, do not extend
the use of fair value accounting but provide
guidance on how it should be applied where
its use is already required or permitted by
other standards within IFRSs.

IAS 19 (2011) — Employee benefits

These amendments eliminate the corridor
approach and calculate finance expenses on
a net funding basis.

IAS 27 (2011) — Separate Financial
Statements

IAS 27 (revised 2011) includes the provisions
on separate financial statements that are
left after the control provisions of IAS 27
have been included in the new IFRS 10.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ Dk S 5 o Wi ik

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEFFIEBORME ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE (&)

Q12EHBERBEZEN
% (F)

2.1.2Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures (continued)

(a) New and amended standards effective in (@) R-CE—Z=ZFLXNH
2013 (continued) HET RACIEETER ()
IAS 28 (2011) — Investments in Associates B pR & 5+ %E A 55 285%
and Joint Ventures —E——%F) [

ERAIREERANK
7|
IAS 28 (revised 2011) includes the @ 5 % Bl 5 285R
requirements for joint ventures, as well as (ZE——F&B:) B
associates, to be equity accounted following 8 2 SRk 78 4 B B B 7%
the issue of IFRS 11. EEAE115 %
& & QA kB E D F A
REENRBIRE
The adoption of these new and revised AN o 5] R A B ET
IFRSs has not led to any significant changes ] % B 75 g 5 2E B I f
in the accounting policies applied in these SI B E 6 OF B S ek
consolidated financial statements, and has AN RELER
no material effect on the Group's results R EREE) - INEEE
and financial position for the current or EEHIBREMAR
prior accounting periods reflected in these 0NN i K e
consolidated financial statements. BAHBENEE RIS
RREXERTE -
(b)  Standards, amendments and interpretations (b) ARG R K [ e A

that are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the Group

FERIRANEIER - (EET A
Ri2FE

Amendmentsto  Defined Benefit Plans: CilES-F il RERH
IAS 19 Employee Contributions F19%2BI8 RS
3%
Amendments to  Financial Instruments: et SRIA:
IAS 32 Presentation on Asset and BNHLEAR RIBER
Liability Offsetting BEAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.2Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(b)

Standards, amendments and interpretations
that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

Amendments to  Impairments of Assets —

IAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-
financial Assets

Amendments Financial Instruments:

to IAS 39 Recognition and

Measurement
Amendments Mandatory Effective Date and
to IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

[FRS 7

Amendments to  Investment Entities

IFRS 10,

IFRS 12 and

IAS 27
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRIC-Int 21 Levies

The directors anticipate that the adoption
of these new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretation will not result
in a significant impact on the results and
financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) Subsidiaries

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that

control ceases.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 85 R B ik

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEESEITBORME (5)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements 22 SO EERR (&)
(continued)

(a) KMELA (&)

(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

Separate financial statements B R E
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at RSB A RIHI&E TH LA AR
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct BB AR - KA TN E1E

attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on

the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements

of the investee's net assets including goodwill.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are

also eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)
(b) Special purpose entities

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company,
its subsidiaries, and special purpose entities
("SPEs”) where the Company is deemed the
primary beneficiary. Fuzhou HanDing, one of
the Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries,
entered into contractual agreements with Beijing
HongXinTu (the “Structural Agreements”), where
Fuzhou HanDing provides consulting services to
Beijing HongXinTu and is entitled to (1) receive a
substantial portion of the economic benefits from
Beijing HongXinTu; (2) exercise effective control
over Beijing HongXinTu, and (3) have an exclusive
option to purchase all or part of the equity
interests in Beijing HongXinTu when and to the
extent permitted by the PRC laws. By virtue of the
contractual arrangements, Beijing HongXinTu is a
SPE and deemed as a subsidiary of the Company
under the requirements of IFRS 10 “Consolidated

financial statements”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

(b) Special purpose entities (continued)

(c)

When assessing whether to combine an SPE, the
Group evaluates a range of factors, including
whether (1) the activities of the SPE are being
conducted on behalf of the Group according
to its specific business needs so that the Group
obtains the benefits from the SPE’s operations, (2)
the Group has decision-making powers to obtain
the majority of the benefits, (3) the Group obtains
the majority of the benefits of the activities of
the SPE, and (4) the Group retains the majority of
the residual ownership risks related to the assets
in order to obtain the benefits from its activities.
The Group consolidates an SPE if an assessment
of the relevant factors indicates that it controls
the SPE.

Based on the contractual arrangements, the
Company consolidated Beijing HongXinTu's
results, assets and liabilities in financial

statements of ShiFang Holding Limited.

Transactions with non-controlling
interest

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interest as transactions with equity
holders of the Company. For purchases from
non-controlling interest, the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to non-controlling interest are also

recorded in equity.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

(d) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after
the date of acquisition. The Group's investment
in associates includes goodwill identified on

acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is

reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)
(d) Associates (continued)
The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of (loss)/profit of associates’
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised in the Group's
financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments
in associates are recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

2.3 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board of Directors (the “Board”)

that makes strategic decisions.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is
the Company’s functional and the Group's

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive

income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
are presented in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income within ‘Finance income or
cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated statements of

comprehensive income within ‘Other gains’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the

group entities (none of which has the currency

of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have

a functional currency different from the

presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate

at the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on

the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies (continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation
is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss

on sale.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in

which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 85 R B ik

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FHEEFHORME (F)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 25 YE- -BERRE (E)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated

useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 40 years
Leasehold 5 — 10 years or the remaining
improvements term of any non-renewable
lease, whichever is shorter
Machinery 5 - 10 years
Fixture, furniture 5 years
and equipment
Motor vehicles 5 - 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘General and administrative
expenses’ in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and represents the excess
of the consideration transferred over the Group's
interest in net fair value of the net identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and
the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the

acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored

at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not

subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEIBUORME (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Intangible assets (continued) 26 BREE (&)

Trademarks and licences

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown
at historical cost. Trademarks and licences acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Trademarks and licences have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the

straight-line method to allocate the cost of trademarks

BERASTE
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and licences over their estimated useful lives of seven Ho
years.
Contractual customer relationships EHNEFBAR

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. The contractual customer relations
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate over the
expected life of the customer relationship of three

years.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Intangible assets (continued)
Computer software and web site
Costs associated with maintaining computer software
program and web site are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable
and unique computer software and web site controlled
by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when

the following criteria are met:

It is technically feasible to complete the computer
software and web site so that they will be

available for use;

Management intends to complete the computer

software and web site, and use or sell them;

There is an ability to use or sell the computer

software and web site;

It can be demonstrated how the computer
software and web site will generate probable

future economic benefits;

Adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell
the computer software and web site are available;

and

The expenditure attributable to the computer
software and web site during their development

can be reliably measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Intangible assets (continued)

Computer software and web site (continued)
Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of
the computer software and web site cost include the

development employee costs.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense

are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Subsequent to the annual review by management,
the Group has revised the estimated useful lives of
certain web sites and computer software from three
years to one year, with effect from 1 January 2013.
The effect of the change in estimated useful lives has
been recognised prospectively, resulting in an increased
amortization expense charged to the current year's
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
of RMB3,058,000. It is expected that this change in
amortisation pattern is one off and will have no impact

to the amortisation expense in future years.

Remaining computer software and web site costs
recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated
useful lives and the terms of validity granted by

corresponding authorities, which are three years.

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible
assets is capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised as

an expense as incurred.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Assets held for sale

Assets are classified as assets held for sale when their
carrying amount is to be recovered principally through
a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale

transaction rather than through continuing use.

Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables and
available for sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Financial assets (continued)
2.9.1 Classification (continued)
(@) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group's loans and receivables
comprise ‘Trade and other receivables’,
‘Restricted cash’ and ‘Cash and cash
equivalents’ in the consolidated balance
sheet (Notes 2.13 and 2.14).

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting

period.

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement
Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or

loss.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Financial assets (continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

(continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

2.11 Impairment of financial assets
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets

that can be reliably estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that
there is objective evidence of an impairment loss

include:

° Significant financial difficulty of the obligor;

o A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

o The Group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that

the lender would not otherwise consider;

o It becomes probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

3 The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial

difficulties; or
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

(continued)

o Observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a portfolio of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets

in the portfolio, including:

(i)  adverse changes in the payment status

of borrowers in the portfolio; and

(i) national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the

assets in the portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective

evidence of impairment exists.

The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of
an instrument’s fair value using an observable

market price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income.

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity investments
classified as available for sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on equity instruments are not reversed through
the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods comprises
newsprint paper and printing consumables. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.

If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for

impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three

months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 85 R B ik

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEIBURME (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Share capital 2.15 R A

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,

from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to owners of the Company until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares
are subsequently reissued, any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects, is included in

equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

2.16 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities.

Trade payable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of
the reporting period.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company, its subsidiaries and
associate operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to

be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. The deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a

net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

Full time employees of the PRC entities
participate in a government mandated
multiemployer defined contribution plan pursuant
to which certain pension benefits, medical care,
unemployment insurance, employee housing
fund and other welfare benefits are provided to
employees. Chinese labor regulations require the
Company to accrue for these benefits based on
certain percentages of the employees’ salaries.
Management believes full time employees who
have passed the probation period are entitled to

such benefits.

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is

available.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Employee leaves entitlement

(c)

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave and long service payment as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the
reporting date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until

the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on performance and takes
into consideration the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive

obligation.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

2

FEEEHBORME (4)

219 EE®A (&)
(b) EERFHREMY

BEAZENERINEERR
ZHERYPFHER - AR EI5LE
BRBERS BB/ ERER
B Al 28 8RR BARS
RO Gt BEELE- B
EAZENRRMERR KK

B TR

() FEALTE

AEEBIZEAFTEL S KA
REBREMEEFEELET
HABEMNIEAEREE R
X ARERBEANAEMERB
EEHIELEERTRER

e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (continued)
(d) Equity-based compensation
The Group operates employee share option
scheme, under which the entity receives services
from eligible participants as consideration
for options to acquire ordinary shares of the

Company.

The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair

value of the options granted:

° including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity's share

price);

o excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining an employee of the

entity over a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for

employees to save).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(d) Equity-based compensation (continued)

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified

vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income, with a corresponding

adjustment to equity.

The cash subscribed for the shares issued when
the options are exercised is credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium, net of
any directly attributable transaction costs. When
the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share

premium.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 85 R B ik

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEIBURME (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Provisions

2.20 B 15

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be

small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of services in the
ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’'s activities as described below. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of

transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Publishing and advertising
The Group's role in the provision of services on
publishing and advertising is that of a principal.
When deciding the most appropriate basis for
presenting revenue or costs of revenue, both
the legal form and substance of the agreement
between the Group and its business partners are
reviewed to determine each party’s respective role

in the transaction.

Hence, revenue from publishing and advertising
services is recognised on a gross basis when
services are rendered for the creation, production
and placement of advertising materials through

all media.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b) Barter transaction

(c)

When services are exchanged or swapped for
services which are of a similar nature and value,
the exchange is not regarded as a revenue

generating transaction.

When services are rendered in exchange for
dissimilar services, the exchange is regarded as
a revenue generating transaction. The revenue
is measured at the fair value of the services
received, adjusted by the amount of any cash
or cash equivalents transferred. When the fair
value of the services received cannot be measured
reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value
of the services provided in a barter transaction,
by reference to non-barter transaction involving
similar services, adjusted by the amount of any

cash or cash equivalents transferred.

Online Services

Revenue from online services is recognised when
the services, including electronic publications,
online advertisements and website maintenance
and technical services, are rendered. Revenue
from online services provided over fixed periods
is recognised on straight-line basis over the

respective period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Revenue recognition (continued)
(d) Marketing, distribution management,
consulting and printing services
Revenue from marketing, distribution
management and printing services is recognised

as the services are delivered to the customers.

2.22 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with

all attached conditions.

Government grants receivable are recognised as
income over the periods necessary to match them
with the related costs which they are intended to
compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants
relating to expenses are shown separately as other

income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 85 R B ik

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEIBURME (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Leases 2.23E

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over

the period of the lease.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s

shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. The Group has not used any
derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk

exposures.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally in the PRC.
Majority of recognised assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB and majority
of transactions are settled in RMB. The
Group does not hold or issue any derivative
financial instruments to manage its

exposure to foreign currency risk.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has
cash deposit denominated in US dollar
and HK dollar. If RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 2% against US dollar
with all other variables held constant, pre-
tax loss for the year ended 31 December
2013 would have been approximately
RMB1,000 (2012: RMB1,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on the translation of the
US dollar denominated cash deposit.
RMB had weakened/strengthened by 2%
against HK dollar with all other variables
held constant, pre-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2013 would have
been approximately RMB48,000 (2012:
RMB10,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gain/losses and the
translation of the HK dollar denominated

cash deposit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(1)

(iif)

Price risk

The Group's available-for-sale financial asset
represents a holding of equities in another
entity of which the equity instruments are
unquoted and not traded in active markets.
Hence, the Group is not exposed to any
equity securities price risk or commodity

price risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises mainly
from bank borrowings and short term bank
deposits. Borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk which is partially offset by cash held at
variable rates. Borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest

rate risk.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1 Financial

risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iir)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rate risk on its variable rate bank
deposits at the balance sheet date and
prepared assuming the amount of bank
deposits outstanding at each balance sheet
date was outstanding for the whole year.

At 31 December 2013, if interest rates
had been 100 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant,
the Group's pre-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2013, would have
been RMB500,000 lower/higher (2012:
RMB445,000 higher/lower the Group's pre-
tax loss), mainly as a result of higher/lower

interest income on the short term deposits.

Compared to 31 December 2012, there was
no material change in the interest-bearing
borrowings of the Group other than the
repayment of short-term bank borrowings in
amount of RMB44,000,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on group basis. Credit
risk primarily arises from trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from related parties, restricted cash,
short-term bank deposits and cash and cash

equivalents.

The trade receivables mainly represent the
advertising fee due from advertising customers.
The Group generally grants to its advertising
customers a credit period ranging from one
month to one year after delivery of the relevant
advertising services. The length of the credit
period the Group grants to its customers varies by
industry and is driven by credit periods granted
by its competitors. The Group grants customers
from industries such as real estate, automotive
and telecommunications as well as those
with national brand names and its long-term
customers with large orders longer credit periods.
For short-term customers with small orders, out-
of-province customers that do not have well-
known brand names, classified advertising
customers and secondary advertising agents
(excluding 4A companies), the Group usually
requests that the contractual amount be paid in

full prior to delivery of service.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has a credit policy with established
procedures in place, which it reviews from time
to time. The Group’s credit management team
assigns internal credit ratings to customers after
evaluation of their creditworthiness through
assessment of their particulars including business
licenses, certifications and credit rating reports
and considering factors such as operating status,
business condition, profitability, indebtedness
and assets. These internal credit ratings are used
to determine the credit-related clauses in the
sales contracts signed with customers. The Group
also prepares regular credit reports to update
its understanding of the customer’s operating
conditions and business information for better
risk management in relation to bad debts. In the
event the credit rating of a particular customer
drops after the Group’s review, it may adopt
measures such as settlement of its fee through
barter transactions, requesting the customer
to provide or procure a guarantor to provide
security or reducing the customer’s advertisement

publication volume.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

3 PR b B (A

31 MBERBEE (&)

(b)

FERR (%)

AEEFBEERRMIAER
ot TR E R R E - AN K E
MEEERBEREBTIREP
MER (BREXHAR RE

é{*&&ﬁ,\#ﬁ&i&%)&%ﬁ

RREAROR - Z R IRT BB
A ‘{Eﬁ%&ﬁggﬁ 5
EFMER ZKREHRTEF

NEEETR -FEARNBEE
ARTAAETEHEE PN
HESHNTNEERBIRR-
AEENGRREBEERSE
AT REPEERAREBE
BESFIER  BILERRE
MIZERERBREE - MEREE
BEtig X—EPHEETR
TR - BIZN &R B A] g BR NS i

EXSHEEER EREP
RS T HER AREERS
AERREFPEETIZEERER
e



3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group makes allowance for doubtful
accounts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade receivable, including
the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. During the
year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has
assessed the recoverability of its trade receivables
and made impairment provision for certain trade
receivables where the recoverability has become
less than probable. Details of allowance for
doubtful trade receivables are set out in note 11.
Determining the allowance involves significant
management judgements and estimates about
and, by definition, would seldom equal to actual
results. Any difference between management'’s
estimates of the recoverability of trade receivables
and the amounts that the Group eventually

recovers will impact the Group's profit or loss.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers
with satisfactory repayment history and no recent
history of default. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

The Group's bank balances and deposits
(including restricted cash) are placed with
a number of major banks in the PRC.
Counterparties’ credit risks are carefully reviewed
and in general, the Group only deals with
financial institutions with low credit risk. The
amount of counterparties’ lending exposure to
the Group is also an important consideration as a
means to control credit risk.

The deposits and other receivables mainly
represent the cash paid to (i) metropolitan
newspaper publishers for obtaining their exclusive
advertising rights to sell advertising spaces in
respective newspapers, and (ii) commercial
customers for the rights as the sole marketing
and promotion services providers for certain real
estate development projects owned by these
customers for terms that ranged within 3 years or
throughout the selling period of the real estate
development projects.

Management regularly reviews the utilisation
and realisability of these balances and follows up
on the disputes or amounts overdue. The Group
actively monitors the credit qualities and business
development of its debtors by taking into account
of their financial positions, relationships with
the Group, credit history and other factors. The
Group also assesses on a case-by-case basis
at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence exists for impairment of these
balances.

When objective evidence of impairment exists,
the amount of impairment loss is measured as
the short-fall of the expected cash receipts from
counterparties or the value in use measured
by discounted cash flow method as compared
to the carrying value of the deposits and
other receivables. As at 31 December 2013,
management has performed detailed assessment
and made a provision for impairment on deposits
and other receivables balances. Please refer to
Note 12(viii) for details.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements for
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due over 12
months equal their carrying balances, as the
impact of discounting is not significant.

3

B 5 i B
S0F 5 L B i PR ()
31 MH¥EKEZE (&)
(c) REBELRAM

7R B YR 2 E B B R A AR
RIEHRBE TR AR
FRMIRE - W iFE B B 5 EY A
HRIEEETRER MR
EEREORBHEST K-

TRIREHGEEREZEHNE
Hi B IEREREIRE - BA KB
TRAES S RERZIHE A
A - RPRBENSHER
BHRRMBAREIR - BHRRRR
R ERK - 1218 A & 2 5
MWERIES N ERE AR

Group rEE
Less than Over
1 year 1 year Total
—F LR —Ep+ et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREFTT ARETTT
At 31 December 2013 R-B-=F
+=A=+-H
Trade and other payables B REMEM KA 21,081 - 21,081
Amounts due to directors EREZEZHIE 345 - 345
21,426 - 21,426
At 31 December 2012 R-B——f
T=ESEr=0E
Trade and other payables 25 R E A ERN A 52,483 - 52,483
Borrowings EEA 46,277 = 46,277
Amounts due to directors EREEFA 1,059 - 1,059
Amounts due to related parties &/ B A £ H - 51,441 51,441
99,819 51,441 151,260
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

3

S 25 D o A B ()

31 MBERBEE (&)
(o) RBEZRR (F)

Company AT
Less than
1 year Over 1 year Total
—FEHR —&Ep+ @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
eSS T INESESS R NS
At 31 December 2013 RZE-—=
+=-A=+-H
Other payables 8 AN 240 - 240
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FE{T I B2 7 FE 117,549 - 117,549
117,789 - 117,789
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—Z-F
T=AET=E
Other payables H {0 A 26,912 = 26,912
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FE{HHI B2 A7 E 110,892 - 110,892

3.2 Capital risk management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (continued)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total assets, as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet. During the year, the Group's strategy
was to maintain a gearing ratio below 40%. The

gearing ratios as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 were

B 85 R B ik

S 25 D o A B ()

32 EXEREE (H)

AEERBEEABLHXRERE
R-ZLhEREHEEABRBRMAT
NERERRABEEEFE K&
EREANNREREHEEABLE
HIFEAORAT - R _E—=FR
—E——_F+-_A=+—HBHEE

as follows: BERERNAT:
2013 2012
—E—=F T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBT T
Borrowings N - 44,539
Amounts due to related parties FES A A = 5IE - =
Total borrowings EEEGE - 44,539
Total assets MEE 595,576 1,308,971
Gearing ratio BEABLE - 3.4%

Gearing ratio as at 31 December 2013 decreased
as compared to 31 December 2012 primarily due to

repayment of borrowings during the year.

ME=—F—=—F+=-RA=+—8"
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A P B 3 e B
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 A E kg B ()
(continued)
3.3 Financial instruments by category — Group 3.3 REMNESHNEMIA-AEHR
and Company S N
(a) Group (a) x&EH
Loans and
receivables Total
BEXR
FE Uk 3R 1B et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARE TR ARE TR
31 December 2013 =L ¥t = B Sar=[E

Assets as per balance sheet EERBERMIINEE
Trade receivables and deposits and  Z 5 EWRTE R IZE &

other receivables H fib & W kIR 164,505 164,505
Amount due from related parties & UK B3E A + 718 4,873 4,873
Amount due from a significant PR B = E IR R IR

shareholder of the Company 14,994 14,994
Short-term bank deposits REHAIRITIF K 50,000 50,000
Cash and cash equivalents RekAE&EMEER 53,911 53,911
Total 4T 288,283 288,283

Other
financial
liabilities

at amortised

cost Total
Hth
cRasE.
1R 8 A A st
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBT T

Liabilities as per balance sheet ZEEEEBXRFFIINEE

Borrowings (excluding finance ER(TEEREEAEEE)

lease liabilities) - -
Trade and other payables B 5 I CH i & 1~ RIE 21,081 21,081
Amounts due to directors JEfTE EIE 345 345
Total wat 21,426 21,426
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.3 Financial instruments by category — Group
and Company (continued)

3 PR b B (A

3.3
kAT (&)

)

RERESINERMTH-—FEEH

(a) Group (continued) (a) &8 (&)
Loans and Available-
receivables for-sale Total
ERRK
PE W K18 AHEE #at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARBEFIT AREFTT
31 December 2012 === STl
Assets as per balance @EZEEBXRFINEE
sheet
Available-for-sale ARHESREE
financial assets - 75,134 75,134
Trade receivables and B o RNFIERZ: &
deposits and other H i fE W RRIE
receivables 581,571 - 581,571
Amounts due from FEU A E A T8
related parties 2,384 - 2,384
Amount due from EWARREZREFKIA
a significant shareholder
of the Company 6,516 - 6,516
Cash and cash equivalents H& REEEEEE 53,435 = 53,435
Total mEt 643,906 75,134 719,040
Other
financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost Total
H
EA- ISR
1R 8 R AR #BEt
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR T T
Liabilities as per balance sheet ZEEEGBXFINERS
Borrowings (excluding finance BR(TEEmEHESRE)
lease liabilities) 44,000 44,000
Trade and other payables B 5 & E e FRIE 52,483 52,483
Amounts due to directors BN E S 1,059 1,059
Amounts due to related parties B REEA LT RA 51,441 51,441
Total #EEt 148,983 148,983
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 A E kg B ()
(continued)
3.3 Financial instruments by category — Group 3.3 BEMNEINEMIA-FKER

and Company (continued)
(b) Company

RAERT (&)
(b) &A2F

Loans and receivables

EXRRERRIE
2013 2012
—E—-=F ===t
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETT

Assets as per balance sheet EEBEBERMINEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE Y Bft B8 A R SR I8 533,750 721,314
Cash and cash equivalents RekHEeZEEE 1,611 4
Total #st 535,361 721,318
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
EREE RBHERE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBETF T
Liabilities as per balance sheet ZEEEGBXFINERS
Borrowings & xR - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE T Bt /B 1 R kI8 117,549 110,892
Total #a st 117,549 110,892
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.4 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the following financial assets
and financial liabilities approximate their fair values
as all of them are short-term in nature: cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties, trade
and other payables, borrowings and amounts due to

related parties.

The Group’s available-for sale financial asset is
measured at fair value, by valuation method. The
Group classifies fair value measurements by level of the

following fair value measurement hierarchy:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

As at 31 December 2012, the carrying value of

the Group’s 11.7% equity interest in Yunnan

Handing Investment Co. Limited (“Yunnan Handing

Investment”) was RMB75,134,000 and was categorised

in level 2, its fair value was measured with reference to

transaction prices from recent transactions for identical

assets.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.4 Fair value estimation (continued)

On 8 May 2013, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Yunnan Handing Investment and recognised
a gain of RMB33,664,000 (Note 9).

As at 31 December 2013, there are certain deposits
and other receivables measured at value in use using
discounted cash flow method which is approximate
to their fair values. See Note 12(viii) for relevant

3

S 25 D o A B ()

3.4

REEMGE (&)
—Z—=FRANB FEEH
HRNEEZREENZIRA
e U ELERER RS AR
33,664,000t (Ki&E9) °

B3
A\

S = i e = R
RRAMAR SR EATEREA
BE(RAREERE)FHENET
REREMEKFIA - HERER

disclosures.

3.5 Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities

The following financial assets and financial liabilities

are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting

arrangements and similar agreements.

Gross
amounts
of recognised

B 5 1 2(viii) ©

3.5

BEETRMEERSHMAR

THEMEER SR B EX A8
LR

TR BHF B A
ETL

Net amounts

B H REL

Gross financial of financial
amounts liabilities/ assets
of recognised  assets set off presented Cash
financial in the in the Financial collateral Net
assets  balance sheet  balance sheet instruments received amount
REERER
BHENERE  REERER
ERZLR SREE/ EREkA 2kRe
BEAE BEAE BEFE $RIA gl 28
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
As at 31 December 2013 R=%-Z#+-A=+-H
Financial assets SHEE
Other receivables Hin R 72,675 (26,672) 46,003 - - 46,003
Total st 72,675 (26,672) 46,003 - - 46,003
Financial liabilities StRER
Trade and other payables excluding &5 R E e[ 58
non-financial liabilities (TREFEREE) 42,490 (26,672) 15,818 - - 15,818
Total @st 42,490 (26,672) 15,818 - - 15,818
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.5 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (continued)
For the financial assets and liabilities subject to
enforceable master netting arrangements or similar
arrangements above, each agreement between the
group and the counterparty allows for net settlement
of the relevant financial assets and liabilities when both

elect to settle on a net basis.

No analysis is presented for 2012 as there was no
such arrangement for the Group's financial assets and

financial liabilities in 2012.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

addressed below.

3
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(a) Recoverability of prepayments and deposits

The Group has made prepayments and deposits in
respect of exclusive agreements with newspaper
publishers and exclusive marketing and promotion
projects. Impairment loss arises where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the expected
future economic benefits to be generated from these
arrangements are lower than the carrying amounts of

these prepayments and deposits.

Management assesses the valuation of prepayments
and deposits based on financial projections reviewed
and approved by the board of directors of the
Company. The projections make assumptions about
the economic benefit obtained in connection with
the prepayments and deposits made to the respective
newspaper publishers and property developers.
Difference between the actual and original estimates
will impact the carrying value of prepayments and
deposits. Details of the provisions for impairment of

prepayments and deposits are disclosed in Note 12(viii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(b) Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Group makes allowance for doubtful accounts
based on assessments of the recoverability of the
trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where
the actual result is different from the original estimate,
such a difference will impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivables and bad and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has been
changed. If the financial conditions of the debtors
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowances may
be required. Details of allowance for doubtful accounts

are described in Note 11.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Impairment of assets

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” to determine when assets are impaired,
which requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration and extent to which the recoverable
amount of assets is less than their carrying balance,
including factors such as the industry performance
and changes in operational and financing cash flows.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest level for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (a CGU). The
recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates, including operating
results, income and expenses of the business, future
economic conditions on growth rates and future

returns.

Changes in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount of the assets is based could
significantly affect the Group’s financial position and

results of operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Revenue recognition for barter transactions

When services are rendered in exchange for dissimilar
goods or services, such as when the Group receives
the rights to sell or receive the proceeds of a sale
of real estate properties in exchange for advertising
services the Group provided to certain of the real estate
industry customers, the exchange is regarded as a
revenue generating transaction. The revenue from such
barter transactions is measured at the fair value of the
related real estate properties received, adjusted by the
amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred.
When the fair value of the rights to the real estate
properties received cannot be measured reliably, the
revenue is measured at the fair value of the goods
or services provided in the barter transactions, by
reference to non-barter transaction involving similar
goods or services, adjusted by the amount of any cash

or cash equivalents transferred.

Income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
income tax provision and deferred income tax assets
and liabilities in the period in which such determination

is made.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(f)

Contingent liabilities from on-going
litigations

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” to
determine when should contingent liabilities be

recognised, which requires significant judgement.

A contingent liability will be disclosed when a possible
obligation has arisen, but its existence has to be
confirmed by future events outside the Group’s control,
or when it is not possible to calculate the amount.
Realisation of any contingent liabilities not currently
recognised or disclosed could have a material impact

on the Group’s financial position.

The Group reviews significant outstanding litigations
in order to assess the need for provisions. Among the
factors considered, are the nature of the litigation,
legal processes and potential level of damages, the
opinions and views of the legal counsel, and the
management’s intentions to respond to the litigations.
To the extent the estimates and judgements do not
reflect the actual outcome, this could materially affect
the results for the period and the financial position. As
at 31 December 2013, the Group has several major on-
going litigations. The details of these litigations and the
Group’s assessment of the effect to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in Note 40.
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B 85 R B ik

REVENUE 5 WA

Revenue from external customers are derived from the REIBEFHBRARAMFEESE
provision of newspaper advertising services to advertisers in FPRHEBEESRYE BERS (21
the PRC, online services, including electronic dissemination AR Y B E T 9 3 K [\ 3R AR AR 7 TR
of publication and provision of online system development HMERGRERS) URREHZEHE 9
services to newspaper publishers, and the provision of HER FBRAMIARERS ESERESRE
marketing, distribution management, consulting and printing HUARPINEERBRED HEZT
services, television and radio advertising, and outdoor — =%+ -_A=+—HILFE AEE
advertising services and activities. The amounts of the IREPHEAEHAHENRESEARA
Group's five largest customers in aggregate to the Group's R #69,858,000L (=T —=4F: ARM
total sales are RMB69,858,000 for the year ended 31 100,378,0007T) °

December 2013 (2012: RMB100,378,000).

2013 2012
—E—= o= — 4=
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®ETR ARETT

Newspaper advertising WMEES 181,260 256,399
Online services W 4% AR 7% 6,311 11,089
Marketing, distribution management, S -DHEHEE FAK

consulting and printing services, EM Rl AR 75 LA K2 = 4

and outdoor advertising services B & R KRS8

and activities 77,709 107,608
Television and radio advertising BERENBEEES 5,046 2,146

270,326 377,242
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£ Dk S 5 8 o Wi ik

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Executive Directors have been identified as the CODM.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the information reviewed by the CODM for the purposes

of allocating resources and assessing performance.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
Group's publishing and advertising businesses from both
geographic and product perspectives. From a product
perspective, management takes into consideration of the
economic benefits of publishing and advertising businesses
as a whole when executing a centralised assessment of
the performance as the CODM considers they are mutually
dependent and inseparable. Geographically, management
considers the Group's publishing and advertising businesses
activities are included in a single reportable segment in
accordance with IFRS 8 “Operating segments”. As such, no

segment information is presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

57, 2
5 DR S5 T 3 Wi ik
7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 7 Wk WE KM — AR
GROUP
Fixture,
Land and Leasehold furniture and Motor
Buildings  improvement Machinery equipment vehicles Total
%E.
IHREF HENEEEL BE  BARRE RE @z
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTR ARETT AR%Tn AR¥TR ARETx
At 1 January 2012 R-Z--%¥-F-H
Cost A 1,801 11,544 49,099 11,079 19,447 92,970
Accumulated depreciation 2ifE (1n) (2,514) (19,575) (5,612) (3,739) (31,611)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,630 9,030 29,524 5,467 15,708 61,359
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-3--%
TZA=t-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount ENERTE 1,630 9,030 29,524 5,467 15,708 61,359
Additions NE - 342 176 2,089 3,988 6,595
Transfer from Investment properties & & BERAME 1,975 - - - - 1,975
Disposals (Note 33(b)) & (M3E33(0)) - - - (34) (391) (425)
Depreciation (Note 27) & (Mi27) (43) (934) (4,561) (1,785) (2,136) (9,459)
Closing net carrying amount FRREFE 3,562 8,438 25,139 5,737 17,169 60,045
At 31 December 2012 R-2-—¥+-A=t-H
Cost KA 3,776 11,886 49,275 13,134 23,044 101,115
Accumulated depreciation 2itHE (214) (3,448) (24,136) (7,397) (5,875) (41,070)
Net carrying amount REFH 3,562 8,438 25,139 5,737 17,169 60,045

Year ended 31 December 2013 ~ HE=-Z-=%

TZR=1t-HLEE

Opening net carrying amount ENRAFE 3,562 8,438 25,139 5,737 17,169 60,045
Additions RE = 2,359 8 819 2,093 5,279
Disposals (Note 33(b)) & (Fi#33(0)) - - = (149) (267) (416)
Depreciation (Note 27) & (Fis27) (69) (1,287) (4,543) (1,518) (2,345) (9,762)
Closing net carrying amount ERERFE 3,493 9,510 20,604 4,889 16,650 55,146
At 31 December 2013 BW=B-=Z£+-A=+-A

Cost KA 3,776 14,245 49,283 11,791 24,109 103,204
Accumulated depreciation RithE (283) (4,735) (28,679) (6,902) (7,459) (48,058)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,493 9,510 20,604 4,889 16,650 55,146
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 7
GROUP (continued)

Depreciation of the Group's property, plant and equipment

has been charged to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as follows:

Y3 ~ Wi B ik i — A B )

(%)

AEEHYE BERRBNEDIE TS
FRREHEE B ERING

2013 2012

—E-=F el

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREET T

Cost of sales $HE KA 3,549 4,740
General and administrative expenses —MITHAX 6,213 4,719
Total et 9,762 9,459

The Group's land and buildings at their carrying amounts are

AEEN T RETREAKEED TN

analysed as follows: i
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E—=F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET AR T T

Held outside Hong Kong on: KBS AN 5 12
ATAREFE

Lease term of less than 50 years FHHISOF LA T 1,916 1,975
Lease term of more than 50 years FHHA504F A 1,577 1,587
Total #EEt 3,493 3,562

As at 31 December 2013, land and buildings with net
book value of RMB1,916,000 (2012: RMB1,975,000) were
pledged as collateral for the Group’'s bank borrowing
facilities (Notes 18 and 19).

Depreciation on land and buildings of RMB69,000 (2012:
RMB43,000) for the year ended 31 December 2013 has been
charged to “General and administrative expenses” in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 85 R B ik

8 HEEE-KELH

Non- Other
Computer compete Customer intangible
Software agreement  Goodwill relationships Trademark  Web site assets Total
Hih
EREH TREHE HE EFBA BE /% EREE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETn AREBTnT ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2012 R=8-=%-A-H
Cost KR 3,460 11,500 12,573 16,100 9,400 9,378 1,000 63,411
Accumulated amortisation ZEME (1,461) (2,556) - (4,580) (814) (1,485) (208) (11,104)
Net carrying amount EHFE 1,999 8,944 12,573 11,520 8,586 7,893 792 52,307
Year ended 31 December ~ EHZE-E--%
2012 TrEEEr=[Elk
g
Opening net carrying amount ~ FAIREF 8 1,999 8,944 12,573 11,520 8,586 7,893 792 52,307
Additions E 166 - - - - - - 166
Amortisation (Note 27) B3 (Wzt7) (591) (3,834) - (5,970) (1,221) (2,400) (5000 (14,516)
Closing net carrying amount ~ EREREFE 1,574 5,110 12,573 5,550 7,365 5,493 292 37,957
At 31 December 2012 R=8-Z%
TEHET=0E
Cost KR 3,626 11,500 12,573 16,100 9,400 9,378 1,000 63,577
Accumulated amortisation 2ifE (2,052) (6,390) - (10,550) (2,035) (3,885) (708) (25,620)
Net carrying amount FEFE 1,574 5,110 12,573 5,550 7,365 5,493 292 37,957
Year ended 31 December ~ EHZ-E-=%
2013 t-A=+-AL
EE
Opening net carrying amount ~ FAIEREF & 1,574 5,110 12,573 5,550 7,365 5,493 292 37,957
Additions NE 66 - - - - - - 66
Amortisation (Note 27) B3 (War7) (778) (3,833) - (5,370) (1,221) (5,063) (2920 (16,557)
Closing net carrying amount ~ EREEEFE 862 1,277 12,573 180 6,144 430 - 21,466
At 31 December 2013 RZB-=f
+ZA=1+-H
Cost KA 3,692 11,500 12,573 16,100 9,400 9,378 1,000 63,643
Accumulated amortisation 2iiTE (2,830) (10,223) = (15,920) (3,256) (8,948) (1,000) (42,177)
Net carrying amount RHFE 862 1,277 12,573 180 6,144 430 - 21,466

The amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to
“General and administrative expenses” in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

BEEHHEENEHEZEKERMN[—
fig R AT ERBA S | #1085
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B BF 3B R B ik

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP
(continued)

Due to the acquisition of business from Fuzhou H-Brand
Estate Marketing and Planning Company Limited (“Fuzhou
H-Brand”) on 10 July 2011, the Group recognised intangible
assets of RMB36,570,000, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB9, 143,000 and goodwill of RMB12,573,000, with total
purchase consideration of RMB40,000,000 fully settled in
cash during year ended 31 December 2011.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to a cash generating unit, Fujian Haobang Real
Estate Consulting & Agency Co. Ltd. (“Fujian Haobang”),
a subsidiary of the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2013, management of the Group determined
that the goodwill is not impaired. The basis of determining
the recoverable amount of Fujian Haobang and the major

underlying assumptions are summarised below.

The recoverable amount has been determined based on
a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the
Directors covering a 5-year period, and at a pre-tax discount
rate of 15.0%. The cash flows beyond the 5-year period
are extrapolated using a constant growth rate of 3%.
This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth

forecasts in the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

5 O B R Bt
il ERE
2013 2012
—E—-= =
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETT

Unlisted shares, at fair value: EETRGD 1%

At 1 January = =g

Transfer from interest in an associate #Ean—M
(Note 10) e (MFE10)

Addition NE

Disposal HE

At 31 December RIT=F =g —E

As at 31 December 2012, the carrying value of the Group's
11.7% equity interest in Yunnan Handing Investment
Co. Limited (“Yunnan Handing Investment”) was
RMB75,134,000.

On 12 March 2013, the Group’s equity interest in Yunnan
Handing Investment was diluted to 7.6% as a result of
additional equity contribution from the other shareholder of

Yunnan Handing Investment.

On 8 May 2013, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Yunnan Handing Investment and recognised a
gain of RMB33,664,000 (Note 26) in connection with this

disposal.

i

ANGIE:Y

=
75,134 =
- 63,325
- 11,809
(75,134) =
- 75,134

R=2—=—%F=H="F-H2Z=E
REMERBLEERAR([EMESE
BEDHNTRBRAEENERE/AR
#75,134,0007T °

R-EB—=F=ZA+_H BARERER
KEN S —RRBHBEINERE S A&
BEREmESRKEMNBRAERE KBS

£27.6% °

NRZEBE-—=FRANB XEEHER
EmESKENE PR AER  BLIULIA
HERERU R A RB33,664,0007T (isE
26) °
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Dk 0 75 R Bk
10 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 10 JABE 2 W) i HE 4R
2013 2012
—E—=F =B==4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T NEETE
At 1 January i 5 — (B 60,162 40,393
Increase in equity interest in an associate 0 — & A R
% A #E 25 4 0 - 60,014
Increase in quasi-equity loan to associates B QB KRR AR
Iﬁ%fié?xi* il - 100,680
Disposal of interest in an associate HER—EHERANER - (78,101)
Transfer to available-for-sale investment L%%ﬂ%ﬂj%&’ﬁ
(Note 9) (FfF7E9) - (63,325)
Share of post-acquisition (loss)/profit FEEUREEE (B1E) % F (169) 501
At 31 December = A =Er—1E 59,993 60,162
As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of the 75’3_”——¢+ Bl =aF—[E ac e E

Group's interest in an associate of RMB59,993,000
represented its 34% equity interest in Skybroad International
Limited (“Skybroad”), including a quasi-equity loan of
RMB680,000 to Skybroad, which is unsecured and interest-

free.
Skybroad is a private company and there is no quoted

market price available for its shares. There are no contingent

liabilities relating to the Group's interest in Skybroad.
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B 85 R B ik

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 10 BB AR IRER (5)

Set out below are details of the associate of the Group as at
31 December 2012 and 2013. It has share capital consisting
solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the
Group; the country of its principal place of business is in the
PRC.

TYHIAREEN - E——FER T —=
F+ZA=+—BHHEE R RS o &
ERRAMBRANEREBERENX  AAREE
BEEFE ZBME AN T EEE I
EERRRE-

% of
Country of ownership Nature of Measurement
Name of entity incorporation interest the relationship method
BEEER
ERER R AACIER Aak BERME RTERE
Skybroad BVI 34.0 Note 1 Equity
REBRZHS B 5 1 R
Note 1:  Skybroad provides Voice over Internet Protocol (VolP) FifzE1 © SkybroadiBMtER BB BEE S R4t

based communication software known as Cloud Call that
operates on mobile and personal computer platforms.
Skybroad is a strategic partnership for the Group, providing

access to the mobile advertising market.

BB ERER  ZERARE
FRAIRRE REAEKFEERE.
Skybroad B A= BIR BSR4 - IR R
BEERBELEMS -
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10 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Summarised financial information for an associate

Set out below are the summarised financial information for

10 AU 2 ] AR iR (4])
—MEEARANEEERNSE
T X # 5 Skybroad#I B 15 AR E - B

Skybroad which is accounted for using the equity method. BRI AR EAR-
Summarised balance sheet EEEBRME
Skybroad
2013 2012
—E—-=F ot D
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T INES S SR
Current RE
Cash and cash equivalents RekHFeEEEE 686 622
Other current assets (excluding cash) HimE&E
(T"BREHEE) 19,563 7,599
Total current assets RRBEE 20,249 8,221
Other current liabilities =K
(including trade payables) (BEZESEMNZE) (7,247) (3,788)
Total current liabilities BrEaE (7,247) (3,788)
Non-current ERE
Property, plant and equipment Y- B REE 348 189
Total non-current assets BIETBEE 348 189
Net assets BEZE 13,350 4,622
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A ORI B W Bk
10 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 10 RAEEAFRREsE (4)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2HKEREE
Skybroad

2013 2012

—E-=F T e

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T R AR¥T T

Revenue A 20,021 4,034

Depreciation and amortisation e R (48) (13)

Interest expense FEREZ (1 (1)

Income tax expense Fri5 1 < (2,921) (486)

Post-tax profit BB E R T 8,728 2,278

Total comprehensive income 2HWEEHEEE 8,728 (1,565)

Dividends received from associate EWEERATRE - -

The information above reflects the amounts presented
in the financial statements of the associate (and not the
Company's share of those amounts) adjusted for differences

in accounting policies between the Group and the associate.

Fi B R R B N (A DB
HHER)MBRR2ZIWER (ERA
SEEBE QRS BRNERELH

B) -
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A B 5 R Bk
10 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 10 A= AR WRELR (5)

Reconciliation of summarised financial

information

Set out below is the reconciliation of the summarised

financial information presented to the carrying amount of

the Group's interest in Skybroad.

MBERBEY R

ATEHME7 M B ER B ZEAEE
7 Skybroad# & BR [ 1B &Y ¥ iR ©

Summarised financial information BHEERNBE
Skybroad
2013 2012
—E—-=F =T ===4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T YN
Opening net assets 1 January —A—BENEEFE 4,622 2,344
Profit for the period B A0 A 8,728 2,278
Closing net assets FREEZFE 13,350 4,622
Interest in an associate (34%) R—EBE R a S

(34%) 4,539 1,571
Intangible assets — net B EE—F8E 10,128 13,265
Goodwill EES 45,326 45,326
Carrying value FREE 59,993 60,162
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£ PF B B 3 R Bk
11 TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET - GROUP 11 E 5 BB IE — &5 — A% E
2013 2012
—E—=F T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T
Trade receivables B 5 MW FRIE 226,364 313,904
Less: provision for impairment of B 5 EWGRIBRE B
trade receivables (179,040) (107,426)
Trade receivables — net B 5 R GTE— 58 47,324 206,478

The payment terms with customers are mainly cash on
delivery and on credit. The credit periods ranging from 30
days to 365 days after the end of the month in which the

%?\}5E%?*EK'HTJ‘EE&LXEEEEFEU#%X .

=&

BN FELARREE

HAERER

3oai3655$%o$’$§mﬁ%%%%ﬂ

relevant sales occurred. Aging analysis of the Group's trade ERBEAZZHMNRERS AT
receivables based on invoice date was as follows:
2013 2012
—E—-=F == —fE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREETF T
1 — 30 days 1230H 17,543 25,519
31 - 60 days 31£260H 8,170 14,604
61 — 90 days 61290H 5,535 9,090
91— 365 days 91£365H 30,471 61,540
Over 1 year =P = 164,645 203,151
226,364 313,904
Less: provision for impairment on B 5 WGRIB R (E R
trade receivables (179,040) (107,426)
Trade receivables — net B 5 EIE - F 5 47,324 206,478
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are AEEEZRKRFENRIOENARE
denominated in RMB. FIRIEES
+FRRERAT R SEEN
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£ Dk S 5 8 o Wi ik

11 TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET - GROUP

(continued)

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of 7,926,000
(2012: RMB104,160,000) were past due but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent histories of default and the
repayment periods are consistent with the Group's practice.

The aging analysis of these trade receivables were as follows:

11 5 5 BEWGRIE — SR — AR R

(%)

RZFE—=F+"_A=1+—H EFEK
FIE AR #7,926,0000T (Z B — — &
AR ¥104,160,0007T ) B % H518 30 KR
1B - % FE IR THA B HA 0 MR8 R0 40 8 Y
ZEBUEF  HEFRAEAREEEG —
B-ZEE9RWHIERERESTAT

2013 2012

—E-=F ==

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

Past due 1 — 30 days #E1Z=30H 764 4,620
Past due 31 — 60 days #HEI31%260H 574 2,948
Past due 61 — 90 days #8612 90 H 485 3,313
Past due over 91 days BEI9TH M £ 6,103 93,279
7,926 104,160

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of
RMB179,040,000 (2012: RMB107,426,000) were impaired
and provided for. For the year ended 31 December 2013,
the amounts of the provision charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income were RMB78,671,000
(2012: RMB40,723,000). The aging of these receivables were

RZTE—=F+-A=+—H B5FE
g 5RE A R #179,040,000T (=T — =
F: AR#107,426,0007T) B B E I 5t
REE - BE - T—=F+-"F=+—H
LEFE - REHE2ERERNGORES
HEAARYT8,671,000T (—F— 4

as follows: AR #40,723,0007T ) ° 7% 5 FE W FRIE A
BRERZOT :

2013 2012

—E—-= —E—=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ TR ARETF T

1 - 30 days 1E£30H 1,216 =

31 - 60 days 31Z260H 1,655 =

61 — 90 days 61%290H 1,498 =

91 - 365 days 91%365H 16,648 -

Over 1 year —F 158,023 107,426

179,040 107,426
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B 85 R B ik

11 TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET - GROUP 11 5 5 BEWGRIE — SR — AR R
(continued) (%)
The provision was made as management has determined HREEERAZEFEZHENFIEBENE
that the ability of the debtors to repay the trade receivables BARBRENCS T BEiMari2 8-
has deteriorated. This provision amount was determined in ETE 2B H SRR A A AR & EBUR A
line with the Group's policies and historical practice, where BEEGER MEREERBEERS
management has reviewed the relevant debtors’ current ABB®ERMRRAER L 8-
creditworthiness and past payment history.
For the year ended 31 December 2013, trade receivables HE-ZE—=F+-"A=+—HLFE"
of RMB11,154,000 were directly written-off to the B EWHIEARE11,154,00000 (==
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (2012: ——%F : AK¥10,038,000T) EEEE
RMB10,038,000). Management has tried reasonable efforts S EEN=ERME BEETEEER
to collect the trade receivables from those debtors and has TRAONEEEBAKEE 5 RUKIE
determined that the recoverability of these balances is not I H B2 SRR N B E T K o
probable.
Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment on AEEESERFBRERENESHE
trade receivables are as follows: SLEATE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —ET—_ 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBEF T
At 1 January n—H—H 107,426 75,083
Provision for impairment on trade receivables & 5 & U 3R I8 R B B 4 78,671 40,723
Receivables written back FE W R IE B ] (2,963) (4,679)
Receivables written off JFE W5 TR T8 4 8H (4,094) (3,701)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 179,040 107,426
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11 TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET - GROUP

(continued)

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in “General and administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (Note 27). Amounts charged to the allowance
account are generally written off, when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash. Apart from the
trade receivables with impairment provided, the remaining

trade receivables do not contain impaired assets.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

11

5 5 TR Wk O — e — AR
(%)

ISR R Y B AR R IR BT A
ApRERERN [—RRITEFZ] A
(P 5E27) - R IR B 300 M 208 — R
ERFAHTATREEIN RSB - HE
SHERER BN E S EURESN K E
FEMHETOEERBEAE-

7R B 3 4 A AR R P AR



12

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ORI B W Bk
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 12 TEfI3KIE - $% 4 S 3 4t HE
RECEIVABLES K
Group 2013 2012
rEE —E-Z=F =
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBT T
Non current portion EREBBA
Prepayments for long term investments HERBREED B TERNFHIE
(note (i)) (B =EG)) 173,000 173,000
Deposits to newspaper publishers (note (ii)) BTHRALRENRS
GEIDY 92,000 92,000
Deposits for marketing and promotion MEHEESEHEBELD
projects (note (iii)) & (M) ) 16,250 166,250
281,250 431,250
Less: provisions for impairment (note (viii)) R R E R (BT EE (viii)) (120,303) —
Prepayments, deposits and other TENRIE ke REM
receivables — net JE WK TE — F 58 160,947 431,250
Current portion TENIB D
Deposits for marketing and promotion MEHENREEIER
projects (note (iii)) EH Bz (B EEGii)) 33,750 33,750
Prepayments for outdoor advertising projects ~ FEINESEBEE K
(note (iv)) AR RIE (M EE(v)) 18,497 19,326
Prepayments to newspaper publishers and TEA 3R AR AR Je D 5RIE
others (note (v)) (M3E(v)) 239,934 207,462
Deposits and other receivables (note (vi)) 12 N H i fE WK1
(B RE(Vi)) 60,678 93,093
Receivable from Yueyang City Intermediate BREGTHRRAR
People’s Court (note (vii) AR SRIE (B EE(vii) ) 22,000 -
374,859 353,631
Less: provisions for impairment (note (viii)) R ORE B (B EE (viii) ) (282,218) (43,780)
Prepayments, deposits and other FANRIE mE2 R
receivables — net H i & W sk A — F R 92,641 309,851

THERERAT R -Z4ER
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12

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 12 FEATBRIE ~ ¥4 e H: i E Uk
RECEIVABLES (continued) AR (7))
Company 2013 2012
KATF —E-=F —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREEFTT
Prepayments TE FRIE 117 117
Other receivables H b & U 3R 59 26,672
Prepayment and other receivables T8 5 3E I E R GRIE 176 26,789

The carrying amounts of the Group's prepayments, deposits

and other receivables were denominated in RMB.

()

Prepayments for long term investments

As at 31 December 2013, prepayment for long term
investments represents cash paid by the Group to two
(2012: two) metropolitan newspaper publishers in the
PRC in relation to the potential establishment of joint
ventures (“JV") with these metropolitan newspaper
publishers. During the year ended 31 December 2013,
Lifestyle Express has obtained official approval from the
respective local government authority, while Southeast
Express made a preliminary consensus with local
council, regarding the establishment of a JV with the

Group.

Mutual agreements were reached between the Group
and the metropolitan newspaper publishers such that
the prepayments will become refundable upon the
earlier of the termination of the plan to establish the
JV and 31 December 2014 which is the target date
to complete the potential investments. The Group
consistently shows strong intention of forming the
JV and assesses the probability of the formation to
be high. Hence the prepayment was classified as
long term investment as at 31 December 2013 and
management has considered the recoverability as set
out in Note 12 (viii).

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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IW=B==EF = A ==E &
HR BN BN RIERE RSB R AT AL
HABRR (ZE—ZF MK )
MHREREKZEER A ([FERQ
Al MAZEFLREX MRS -
REBEE-_ZT—=F+=-A=+—H
LEEE (EEHR) EMARMMT
BT #ERGRENEREEX LS
ENEIME AR T CRERER)
IRt EARE B LS & QR BT
BT R ) 3 -

REBEBHHRLREEERKEER
W€ TN RIERH TR IEK L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(ii) Deposits to newspaper publishers

As at 31 December 2013, deposits to newspaper
publishers represent cash paid by the Group to three
(31 December 2012: three) metropolitan newspaper
publishers in the PRC pursuant to the exclusive
agreements between the Group and the newspaper
publishers. Under the terms of the agreements,
the Group has obtained the exclusive rights to sell
advertising space of the respective newspapers for a
fixed term of 7 to 30 years and it has to place specified
amount of cash to the newspaper publishers. The cash
held by the newspaper publishers will be repayable
to the Group upon the expiry of the agreements.
The Group assesses the recoverable amounts of the
deposits on each balance sheet date and the carrying
values of these amounts are written down immediately
to their recoverable amounts if recoverable amounts
are less than the carrying values. Management
considered the impairment of such deposits as set out

in Note 12 (viii).

12

B 85 R B ik

JH ~ $5 48 M At E W

(

BTHRELRENEZRSE
T—=F+ = A=
ﬁH&FﬁE’JHx%EK’%l@ﬁ
——%+=A
=+—RH:=ZK) BHHRERERIZ
B 98 3R 155 53 17 52 55 SR 4R W R P S A
WRE - BEBEZSEHENIEN K&
B B 15 41 & MR RE TR AR BB 45 AR B0 7B
RIEF - HREE A7E30F MHE
ARRAR A 2 R E R & &
EoMAENRERENRESBER
BEREEELEAEE -AEER
EHEHTMRENTKRESE
EAlEeBENKREE IZE
FIEMREE SRR HREE T
Bl & &8 - B R E D Z &M F12(viii)

B AR rRE -
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£ Dk S 5 8 o Wi ik

projects

As at 31 December 2013, deposits for marketing and
promotion projects represent cash paid by the Group to
three (31 December 2012: four) commercial customers
in the PRC in relation to exclusive marketing and
promotion services agreements between the Group
and the customers. Pursuant to these agreements,
the Group has obtained rights as the sole marketing
and promotion services provider for certain real estate
development projects owned by these customers for
terms that ranged within 3 years or throughout the
selling period of the real estate development projects.
In return, the Group has to place specific amount of
upfront deposits to the customers for the exclusive
rights. These deposits will, amongst other terms
and conditions, be repayable to the Group in equal
instalments throughout the term of the respective
contracts or upon the expiry of the agreements.
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Group received RMB150,000,000 (31 December
2012: RMB17,500,000) repayment from two of these
projects. The Group assesses the recoverable amount
of the deposits at each balance sheet date and the
carrying values of these amounts are written down
immediately to their recoverable amounts if recoverable

amounts are less than the carrying values.
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12 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 12 FEATAKIE ~ %4 B H A e W
RECEIVABLES (continued) KA (4)
(iii) Deposits for marketing and promotion (iii) REHFHREEEBFHNEZES

i e e = — H
EHEREEEHAFELNEREER
SEREEPE=Z(ZT—=F
+_H=+—H: ORB)EEEF
R BERE R EERG =

HTFZEXFPHNERE BREZEH
B ASEERGEEZEEFA
BREETEHERXRBENBRE
HEEERBHEROERN  HR
REFIFEHMEZRIELHERH
EH R AEEERBRER
M#ZER P X NEE S8R AR
eoHMERRGHEREZSTRE
AREBEBELNEBEATHM S Bk

=

HIEFEA A& E K H+ R EE
B U E A R #150,000,0007T (=
T——F+-A=+—H: AR¥%¥
17,500,0007T ) KB - AREBRNE
FEBITAReHAIKE 8 &5
B e BERNEEE AIZEX
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Prepayments for outdoor advertising projects
As at 31 December 2013, prepayments for outdoor
advertising projects represent cash paid by the Group
to four commercial customers in the PRC pursuant
to contractual agreements between the Group and
the customers. Under the terms of the agreements,
the Group has obtained the exclusive rights to
sell advertising spaces of designated areas in the
respective malls and on the side of highways for 5
to 10 years. Annual rental expenses should be paid
before the inception of the corresponding lease term
in accordance with the agreements. Details of the
arrangement for outdoor advertising projects are
disclosed in Note 34. Management has considered the
impairment of prepayments for outdoor advertising

projects as set out in Note 12 (viii).

Prepayments

Under the terms of certain (exclusive and non-
exclusive) advertising agreements with three
metropolitan newspaper and radio operators, the
Group has to make prepayments for print media
advertising to the newspaper publishers. The amounts
prepaid to the three metropolitan newspaper
publishers totaling RMB201,501,000 can be utilised
as advertising costs in the coming 12 months.
Management has considered the impairment provision
as set out in Note 12 (viii).

Deposits and other receivables

Deposits and other receivables primarily include cash
paid to contracted business partners as deposits for
operation rights. The deposits are interest free and
are refundable upon the expiry of the agreements
or on request under mutual consent. Management
has considered the impairment of deposits and
other receivables, including those from the three
metropolitan newspaper publishers of RMB23,937,000

as at 31 December 2013, as set out in Note 12 (viii).

12

(v)

(vi)

B 85 R B ik

MESNEEEBEHNANRE
REZB—Z=Z&+ = H=r" E
F5NESRB EH M BN KRR
SERBARDENEHRETL,F
VYHNAHBEINTZEEFPHNR
T o RIBZFHHZR R ARE
STHEEBEBEYDLONEELER
NEFHEREEENBREN
HIRAAETF -BAFHHENR
T FHAXERAEEBFSGA
X -ARAPIEEHE RHMF
BRI E3MRE - EEED EBH
AE12(vii) P E 3L P OMNE S IR B 1
TR SRR AYRE

T FIE
BEETH=XBTHELEELE
A (BRREIEBR)ESEH
IR AEBAEREDRIEEE
HEMHRAERE XN BEAKIE [
= KER T #R AR P TR MO RIB & 3
AR #201,501,0007T - ] B {EkR
R+—EAEEMNBESKA -ERE
8 B & & M 51 2(viii) BT &k 89 8 (& 7
1o

ek HMEKRRE

e kEMERFIEEEZAEDN
ERIAEBRHERKEERS D
Re - HEeBRRERARBZEE
WENEERRE TRERRE -
EREEZERR-ZE—=F1+=
A=T—HRNES R H A EKR
1B (BERE = K& i &
Ze REMEWRIE)REARE
23,937,0007T ( 5B 5E12(viii) ) ©
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12

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(vii) Receivable from Yueyang City Intermediate

People’s Court

On 30 September 2013, the Company, and its
wholly owned subsidiaries, including Fuzhou AoHai
Advertisement Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou AoHai”) and
Kunming AoHai Advertising Co., Ltd. (“Kunming
AoHai) received an enforcement judgement issued by
Yueyang City Intermediate People’s Court dated 22
September 2013 which ordered for the deduction of
RMB22,000,000 out of the bank accounts of Fuzhou
AoHai and Kunming AoHai in favor of Yueyanglin
Paper Co., Ltd (Note 40 (b)).

The Directors, after seeking legal advice from the
Group's legal counsel, are of the opinion that the
Group will be able to collect the aforementioned
RMB22,000,000 and thus classified the
RMB22,000,000 as receivables from Yueyang City

Intermediate People Court.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 2
RECEIVABLES (continued)
(viii)Provisions for impairment of long
term investments, long term deposits,
prepayments, and deposits and other
receivables
Carrying values before provisions for impairment
of long term investments, long term deposits,
prepayments, and deposits and other receivables paid

by the Group to newspaper publishers and outdoor

B 85 R B ik

TR AR O ~ 5 4 B A

AR (#7)

(i) RIRE REZS AARE
MR 2 & R H At B W R IR A
B

W-Z—=F+-A=+—0 %
S5 I8 ) SR A0 AR P S S B
S RORBIRE  RBES  BIR
AR RS R H A RO 0 R

advertising projects as at 31 December 2013 were as B (CRETRERE) T
follows:
Three
Outdoor  metropolitan
Shenyang advertising newspaper
Evening News projects publishers Total
ZRBTH
EEBRE FHEEER H AR Mgt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT AREFT AR®EFT
Long term investments RERE - - 173,000 173,000
Long term deposits R#Re - - 92,000 92,000
Prepayments B IE 33,780 18,497 201,501 253,778
Deposits and other receivables Re & H fth R IE 10,000 - 23,937 33,937

Balance as at 31 December 2013 RZ-ZT—=4F

+-RA=+—Hm#&% 43,780

18,497 490,438 SEZMAlD
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12 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 12
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(viii)Provisions for impairment of long

term investments, long term deposits,

prepayments, and deposits and other

receivables (continued)

Provisions for impairment of long term investments,

long term deposits, prepayments, and deposits and

other receivables included provisions for exclusive

cooperative newspaper publishers of RMB345,741,000,
Shenyang Evening News of RMB43,780,000 and
outdoor advertising projects of RMB13,000,000.

Movements of the provisions for impairment were as

follows:

FE AT AR ~ 3% 4 S H At K

IH (#)

(i) RHRE REEZES FANHE

AR $2 & K H At 8 W ROIR R E
B (E)

REKE KBRS BAKENR
Rz & Rk H b EUCGRIER B & & B
EBRAEREDIREREARYE
345,741,0007T - EIZ B RBEAR
#43,780,0007T & P HNE &S TH B #
&5 AR #13,000,0007T © & 18 # 5
BEIT

Three
Outdoor  metropolitan
Shenyang advertising newspaper
Evening News projects publishers Total
SRR
EEKR®R FHEEHEEAR i AR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREFTT AR®EFTT AR®EFT
Balance as at 1 January 2013 RZE—=%F
—H—Hr&R 43,780 - - 43,780
Provisions for impairment FRRERE
during the year - 13,000 345,741 358,741
Balance as at 31 December 2013 RZT—=4
+TZA=+—BNE% 43,780 13,000 345,741 402,521
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12 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 12 TEAFKIE ~ $% 4 T ot U

RECEIVABLES (continued) K IH (#)

(viii)Provisions for impairment of long (Vi) RHIKRE REZE: FEARE
term investments, long term deposits, URZES R HMERRERE
prepayments, and deposits and other B’ (')
receivables (continued)

(a) Shenyang Evening News (a) ERE KR

As at 31 December 2012, deposit made to
Shenyang Evening News pursuant to the exclusive
advertising agreement between the Group and
Shenyang Evening News was RMB10,000,000.
The Group had also made prepayment of
RMB33,780,000 to Shenyang Evening News
under the terms of the exclusive advertising
agreement. The exclusive advertising agreement
between the Group and Shenyang Evening News
was terminated on 26 July 2011. The Directors
considered the recoverability of the prepayment
and probable outcome of the pending litigation
with Shenyang Evening News, and determined
full provision of these amounts for the year ended
31 December 2012 (Note 40 (a)).

Outdoor advertising projects

Prepayments for outdoor advertising projects
represent rental expenses prepaid by the Group
to obtain the exclusive rights to lease advertising
space of certain electronic displays and outdoor
billboards for outdoor advertising projects.
Pursuant to exclusive agreements signed, the
commercial customers were contractually
obligated to make delivery of certain advertising
resources to the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013, to which they were unable to
fulfill. After considering the legal advices from the
Group’s legal counsel and the probable utilisation
of rental expenses for the operations of the
outdoor advertising projects, the Directors made
impairment provisions for the aforementioned

projects.

RN-B——F+=H=+4—
H REBEAEEREERERSB R
ZENBERESHERRS
BMBIEEHMEEARARK
10,000,0007T ° A & B 2 1R &
BRES RO ADES
Hw/IBST AR ¥33,780,0007T
REBEES®RBNBERE
EMEER_T——Ft A
ZHARARIE-EREEEER
ST FRIE /Y BT U B R B B R
WA FARAFRA L H RO
RURBEAREBE_T—Z=
E+-A=+—HLEEH
ZEFIAEL 28U E (FsE
40(a)) °

FHEEER

FSNESEB MBENKIBEAR
SEEMMESRAX  AINE
BEENSPIINESHEMEE

RSN - BIBAMFITNER
E FAEEEPERAAN
EE-REBEE_E—=F1+=
A=+—BLFERAAEER
RNETESER MZERF
KREBITZSEE -EEEAR
SEZEEBRNEEERRE
ERNEEHEEMNHESAIH
AREENABR - EEEH Lt
HAELRERE-
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12

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (continued)

(viii)Provisions for impairment of long
term investments, long term deposits,
prepayments, and deposits and other
receivables (continued)

(c)

Three metropolitan newspaper
publishers

As at 31 December 2013, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables totaling RMB490,438,000
were made by the Group to three metropolitan
newspaper publishers, namely Southeast Express,
Lifestyle Express, and Central Guizhou Morning
Post. Pursuant to the exclusive cooperative
agreements signed with these metropolitan
newspaper publishers, the Group has to make
initial deposits and periodic payments throughout
the contract period in exchange for the exclusive
advertising rights to sell advertising spaces of
respective newspapers.

In view of the continuous decline in advertising
revenue associated with the exclusive advertising
rights over the years, the Directors reviewed the
Group’s ability to recover the carrying amount
of the prepayment for long term investments
and deposits, current prepayments and
receivables made to the metropolitan newspaper
publishers and determined provisions totaling
RMB345,741,000 should be made as at 31
December 2013.

Prepayments and other receivables were measured

at amortised cost and are reviewed for impairment

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate

the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. In view

of the delay in commencement of certain outdoor

advertising projects and the continuous decline in

advertising revenue associated with the exclusive

advertising rights over the years, the Group has

assessed the recoverability of these prepayments and

other receivables and made full impairment provisions

on these balances during the year.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

12

TR AR I ~ % 4 B A
AR (#7)
(ii)RHARE REZS ANKE

LA R 12 & & H ftb & W =R IR R E
B (E)

() =REBHH L RE

B AEEER=ZRHAFHHRL
b 7 (BNBR FE R AL - AEDEET
W R B EEE) ERTEN K
1B e RAEMERGRIES
AR ¥490,438,0007T ° 1R &
A 57 S #0 T ¥R I AR P 2R RT 0 0B
RetEhE  AEBEEZ N
FiRe RRE YR E M
PO LAMEVIEE B E S AL
B JE R B S o

i 70 8298 5 B 5 F AE BE &Y
BERAZRFET® EFER
A AN 5% 18 Yy [B] ) AR T R AR
BATEL M REIRE RN K
AREE  RB AN KA KE
WHRENKREENE D X
REEBR_F—Z=F1+_AH
=t+—-REHEEEHEARE
345,741,0007T °

FEAS RIR B H A JE R TR SH A
A E - NHBRBRREEREE
FREMEHHBERBERERE

BRE-ERNETFPIESHEE
FE3E 5 5 e B 98 51 2B 5 4 ) AR R #O
BEWRAZF B AKRED G
% 3 TR R N B At B U R IR A R]
Yo m i - R F R R A R R
ERURERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 85 R B ik

12 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 12 TEAFKIE ~ $% 4 T ot U
RECEIVABLES (continued) IE (4)
(viii)Provisions for impairment of long (vii)RHIRE REER: BARE

term investments, long term deposits,
prepayments, and deposits and other
receivables (continued)

Value in use of long term investments and long term
deposits were measured using the discounted cash
flow method. An independent valuer, American
Appraisal China Limited, was engaged to assist the
management to perform the impairment assessment.
The impairment assessment was determined using
cash flow projections considering net cash receipts
from advertising, printing and circulation operations.
The projections are based on significant unobservable
inputs which were reviewed and approved by the

Directors and are summarised as follows:

Unobservable inputs

FABEHABSE FIREHABBEE

Range of unobservable input

AR $2 & K H At FE I ROR R E
B (E)

RHRERRBRENEAEER
BB S REENE - ERFE
BRATE (B ERD) BZ R
EEE TR AN ORETHIR
RREMEBFBALHRIEES E]
il R B AT M FTIR A IR & )5 58 18
BE-FABANKEESHMEN
Rt ENERNT I B RE A BEE
B

Relationship of unobservable
input to value in use

FTUBRZRARBREAEENHE

Future revenue growth

3.8% per annum

Growth of -8.5% per annum to

The higher the revenue growth,

the higher the value in use

REBAE R X SFEEE-85%%F3.8% WAERERRS ERAEEDRS

Discount rate 15.0% The higher the discount rate,
the lower the value in use

LUEES BRERs FAEERR

Contract period 4 years to 2017 and
20 years to 2034
Rk YEE-T L FERFE

_7_@¢

The longer the estimated contract period,
the higher the value in use

e NHRR EREERS

THERERAT R -Z4ER
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£ DI B e
12 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (continued)

(viii)Provisions for impairment of long

term investments, long term deposits,
prepayments, and deposits and other
receivables (continued)

In determining the revenue growth rates and discount
rates, management has made reference to the future
and long-term forecast quoted by industry research

reports.

If the revenue growth rate adopted in the valuation
had decreased by 5%, the recoverable amount would
be reduced by approximately RMB14,827,000, and
further impairment loss of RMB14,827,000 would be
required. If the discount rate used in the discounted
cash flow calculation had been increased from 15%
to 16%, the recoverable amount would decrease
by RMB8,697,000, and further impairment loss of
RMB8,697,000 would be required.
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13 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE - GROUP 13 HRAF B B E — AR
The Group's assets held for sale includes the following: AEBENFREHEEEBRENATIER -
2013 2012
—E-=F .
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

Properties held for sale FIEHEWE 27,492 44,969
The properties in the PRC were received in exchange of B T A R B S E B R R
advertising services to real estates developers in the PRC. The EERBRIREG AEEMNE N RHEEZ
Group's intention is to sell these properties and, accordingly, LY A HEBYERE LS A
such rights are recognised as assets held for sale upon the ERENNTERESHERIHERAS
completion of the advertising sales transaction if the related RIEHEEE-

property is ready to be sold.

Cash flows associated with the disposal of assets held FHEERIFHEERENTRERNEZ7
for sale are presented under “Operating activities” in the AEHEERERILEFTHI T -HE
consolidated statement of cash flows. The gain/loss on BIELEEEN KD EBBRLERESH
disposal of assets held for sale are recorded in “General and PHRERN [ —RRITEFAZ]A-

administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

14 INVENTORIES - GROUP 14 HFH-K4EH
2013 2012
—E—= = S
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R AR e

Newsprint and printing consumables 37 A X ED RIS #E 6,789 7,900
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A OF WA B R
15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15 BekBH&%5HEEH
The Group's cash and cash equivalents are denominated in AEEMNRERREEEEE AT
the following currencies: BHETE
Group 2013 2012
EN L =%F-= T
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET AR¥F T
Cash at bank and on hand: RITRFHEES:
Denominated in RMB NARKEETE 51,433 52,879
Denominated in HKD AV TTEHE 2,414 495
Denominated in USD AZETTEHE 64 61
53,911 53,4305
Maximum exposure to credit risk = EERR 48,087 45,134
Company 2013 2012
AT —E-=F T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ART T
Cash at bank: RITHRE
Denominated in HKD LAV TR E 24 372
Denominated in RMB LAAREESHE 1,587 =
1,611 372

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rate. The carrying amounts of the cash at

bank approximate their fair values.

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign

exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RESTRICTED CASH

As at 31 December 2012, restricted cash consisted of
RMB 12,890,000 deposited in four bank accounts which were
subjected to a restriction to use order issued by the Yueyang
City Intermediate Court (Note 40(b)).

On 29 September 2013, the Company, and its wholly
owned subsidiaries Fuzhou AoHai Advertisement Co., Ltd.
(“Fuzhou AoHai”) and Kunming AoHai Advertising Co., Ltd.
(“"Kunming AoHai”) received an enforcement judgement
issued by Yueyang City Intermediate People’s Court dated
22 September 2013 which ordered for the dismissal of the
restriction and ordered for the deduction of RMB22,000,000
out of the bank accounts of Fuzhou AoHai and Kunming

AoHai in favor of Yueyanglin Paper Co., Ltd.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group reclassified the
RMB22,000,000 under current portion of “prepayments,

deposits and other receivables” (note 12 (vii)).

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS

The effective interest rate for the Group’s short-term bank
deposits with original maturities of over three months
for the year ended 31 December 2013 was 3.3% (2012:
nil). The carrying values of the short-term bank deposits

approximated their fair values as at 31 December 2013.
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% PR i) B 4
R=ZT—=—F+=-A=1+—0 ZRHR
EREFAZEBTHRRAREREL
B PR 1 6F X < PR A U AR 1T BR = A9
AR #12,890,0007T ( H5E40(b) ) °

R-ZE—Z=ZFNLBA=-_thB A28k
H2EMBARIBMNERBESERADA
(EMNEEB)RERARBESEERA
Al ((RARE])EEEETHRARE
FERZZFE—=FhAAZ+=ZBHAEHH
TRHEE HEMBBRR G T <=M
RERERRENRITELHEARK
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18

162

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
The Group had the following pledge of assets as collateral to

secure the Group's bank borrowing facilities (Note 19):

18 & & A

AEBERATEEESER M - AE
AEBEHRITERBE (HE19)

2013 2012
—E-=F == E
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREF T
At net book value: LA FE
Building (Note 7) BF (KE7) 1,916 1,975
1,916 1,975
BORROWINGS - GROUP ik — AR H
2013 2012
—E-=F ol
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETF T
Current liabilities: mEAE:
Short-term bank loans, secured MAERITER B - 44,000
Other loan HAhE % - 539
- 44 539
- 44,539

Bank borrowings of RMB44,000,000 have been repaid in July
2013 and the Group obtained a renewal of bank borrowing
facilities amounting to RMB55,000,000. The renewed bank
borrowing facilities were secured by the personal guarantee
of Chen Zhi, Director of the Group and the Group’s building
(note 7).

The weighted average effective interest rate at 31 December

2013 was 7.5% per annum (2012: 7.3% per annum).

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings were

denominated in RMB and approximated their fair values.
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19 BORROWINGS - GROUP (continued)
(@) The maturity of the total borrowings at respective

balance sheet dates is as follows:

REEER - BREHE

REABRMR

2013 2012

—E—= o fE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBF ARBTT

Within 1 year —FURN - 44,539
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest- REBRERBREAZHOFEESH

rate changes and the contractual repricing dates at the

end of the year are as follows:

REkatENEERRET:

2013 2012
—E-=F e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T NS SR
Within 6 months 7~ A A A - 44,539

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing

AEBRPAMERBELT

facilities:
2013 2012
—E-=F =B =
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREF T
Expiring within one year R—F RN EIH 55,000 11,000
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A P B 3 e B
20 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 20 ¥ 5 WE AT R - Al FE A R IH
AND ACCRUED EXPENSES B HE 5t F‘aﬁs‘z
Group 2013 2012
rEH —E-Z=F —E-—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
Trade payables B 5N IR 6,653 5,644
Other payables and accrued expenses: H AT SRIE R BT R X ¢
Accrued utility expenses and other liabilities — FEFt A H R EFA X M EMEE 954 1,192
Accrued salaries and welfare et E e MEH 6,919 9,713
Value added tax and other taxes payable BEDREMENTIE 6,788 29,880
Other payables E b & 318 8,211 39,974
Deposits from customers RKERFWES 5,263 5,673
Receipts in advance T8 St UK BR &) R 18 10,572 10,166
38,707 96,598
45,360 102,242
Company 2013 2012
NN —E-=F —E-_fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBT T
Other payables and accrued expenses: HMENRIERETRAX
Other payables E A JE 1~ 5/ I8 240 26,912
Accrued salaries and welfare st & & RER - 1,616
240 28,528
Payment terms granted by suppliers are mainly cash on HEFGETONREREERERINR
delivery and on credit. The credit periods ranging from 30 RUAGBRA N NR - EEEHN FIELHEA
days to 365 days after the end of the month in which the HiEE A EREBF308 E365H T E -

relevant purchase occurred.
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20 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES
AND ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on the invoice

21

date was as follows:

20 B 5 MEAST AR ~ At A K OH

gt B S (%)

B2 RNFKEAREERBHPNEREDN

o

2013 2012

—E—-=F e 4=

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARB TR AREFIT

1 — 30 days 1£230H 2,533 991
31 - 90 days 31290H 769 2675
Over 90 days 908 A E 3,351 1,978
6,653 5,644

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are all

denominated in RMB.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

AEEESENRENKRAEZHUA

RAEEH 8 -

21 JEHE R 1B

BIEFMERBEITET

2013 2012

—E—-=F =

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET NES S S

Deferred income tax liabilities BEFTSTHRARG 2,157 4,777

Management expects the deferred income tax will be

recovered after 12 months of the balance sheet date.

EREERHELEASHENEE R LG

ToEARKE -

THERERAT R -Z4ER
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Dk 0 75 R Bk
21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 21 REEPRABL (4H)
The movements on the deferred income tax liabilities are as REMSHRaEEeHOT :
follows:
Intangible assets
BREE
2013 2012
—_Eg—-= ==
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARESSEIT
At 1 January =2 E 4,777 7,397
Recognised in the consolidated statement of A& B 2 HE W R N FER
comprehensive income (Note 30) (MfE30) (2,620) (2,620)
At 31 December = = —E 2,157 4,777
No deferred income tax asset has been recognised in respect RZEBE—=%+_A=+—8' ' BEXEH
of tax losses of RMB139,975,000 as at 31 December 2013 B8 BT /B8 A B30 1 ] BE & EE A FE R B R
(2012: RMB96,987,000) as it is not probable that the FLARA AT &4 R FI TR I8 B 48 - tr & ot
relevant subsidiaries of the Group will generate taxable profit AR #¥139,975,0000 (=T —Z—4F: A
to utilise the tax losses in the foreseeable future. Such tax R #96,987,0007T ) ) i 18 B35 18 T 3R IE
losses have an expiry period of five years. FIEMEE - ZSMIBEBENERBREA

ShLSE
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22 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

B 85 R B ik

22 JBEA B B A v

Equivalent
Nominal nominal
Number of value of value
ordinary ordinary of ordinary Share
shares shares shares premium Total
EER
EERYE EEREE LEEE R EE h
HK$ RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at 31 RZE—=FKk-_F—_F
December 2013 and 2012 (Note (a)) +-A=+-B&R
HE0 BT AR
GEG)) 2,000,000,000 0.1
Issued: BT
Ordinary shares at 1 January 2012 RZZ——5—-A—Af
LRR 719,942,121 71,994,212 62,863 530,900 593,763
Allotment of new ordinary shares of E R REE. 1B
HK$0.1 each (Note (b)) MEBR (M3E(0)) 120,000,000 12,000,000 9,824 25,540 35,364
Ordinary shares at 31 December 2012, 1 RZZT—=%
January 2013, and 31 December 2013  +=-A=+—-H"
—ZT-=£-Hf—H
REB==5
TZAZT-HMEAR 839,942,121 83,994,212 72,687 556,440 629,127

Notes: BT -

(@) The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 9 (@ ARARZTZNF+_ANBEHREZ
December 2009 with an authorised share capital of HK$200 B S FEMAC AL - SEE AR A 200,000,000
million divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each. On 75 7T ' 9 /2,000,000,000/% & iR & &
the same date, the Company issued and allotted one share, 0B ITHRM-RA  ANARMEEE
credited as fully paid at par, to China TopReach Inc., the ERARFBERIHIERBRAREITR
immediate holding company of the Company. Be 3 —RIZEE AR AH R ARG

(b)  The Group issued 120,000,000 new ordinary shares on 10 by R=F—=FANA+TAH &K

August 2012 (14.3% of the enlarged ordinary share capital
of the Company) to a shareholder of Skybroad International
Limited (“Skybroad”) as part of the purchase consideration
for its entire 34% interest in Skybroad. The ordinary shares
issued have the same rights as the other shares in issue. The
fair value of the shares issued amounted to HK$43,200,000
(HK$0.36 per share), equivalent to RMB35,364,000.

M Skybroad International Limited
([Skybroad |) — & & ® % 17
120,000,000% ¥ & 8 iz (162 2 A&
BEALEBABRBANI43%) (FARE
H 7 Skybroad#) 2 #534 % #E 2 #) 0 2 X
{8 o P17 A H i AR R B 4 B B 1T IR 19
ZHERSER - ETRONAAER
7$43,200,000/% 7t (& [%0.36/87T) ' 48
R ARY35,364,0007T °

THERERAT R -Z4ER
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23 RESERVES
(a) Group

The details of movement in the Group’s reserves are set

out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity

on pages 7 and 8:

(i)

Statutory reserves

The statutory reserves represent reserves of the
PRC incorporated companies which are set aside
for future development purpose in accordance
with the regulations in the PRC. The allocation is
based on certain percentages of these companies’
profit for the year, as reported in their statutory

financial statements.

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the
companies’ respective Articles of Association,
each of the Group companies is required
to transfer 10% of its profit for the year,
as determined under the PRC Accounting
Regulations, to a statutory common reserve
fund until the fund balance exceeds 50% of the
Group company’s registered capital. The statutory
common reserve fund can be used to make good
previous years’ losses, if any, and to issue new
shares to shareholders in proportion to their
existing shareholdings or to increase the par value
of the shares currently held by them, provided
that the balance after such issue is not less than

25% of the registered capital.
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23 RESERVES (continued)
(a) Group (continued)

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Statutory reserves (continued)

Each of the Group companies is also permitted to
transfer a certain percentage of its profit for the
year as determined under the PRC Accounting
Regulations, to a discretionary common reserve
fund. The transfer to this reserve is subject to

approval at shareholders’ meetings.

Capital reserves

Capital reserves represent cash contributions
to Olympia Media, Fujian ShiFang and Beijing
HongXinTu by equity owners.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve relates to the increase
in carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment upon transfer to investment properties

at its then fair value.

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve relates to the
redemption and cancellation of the Company’s

own shares.

B 85 R B ik

23 fitif (#8)
(a) %@ (%)

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

EERE (&)

AEBERE AR IR AR H
B & 5HA S PTEE R F R
METEIHLBATERTRE
T RABRALBRAS R

3o

EXRfEE
EXNFRERSER wET
TRAFRREESEE AY
ZERAFEHAMRSHR -

EfhEE

EfffREEEYE BB AERE
BEERNALEERARE
YR REENIEINAR -

R 2 B 1 1% 4
P 7 B [ o 5 ER AKX B B %
AHEAEERNER-

THFERERAT ZF =44
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23 RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company

(c)

Accumulated

23 fitif (#8)
(b) =&

=]

5

Equity-based

compensation

deficits reserve Total
LURR B
RHEBEN
ES 0 R #mat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTT ARETT
Balance at 1 January 2012 R-E-—Z-F
—R—B&R (19,238) 10,624 (8,614)
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREIER 2 HEEESE
loss for the year (8,702) - (8,702)
Equity-based compensation DA RS 42 7 B8 10 57 B - 2,362 2,362
Balance at 31 December 2012 W_-ZT——4F
TZA=+—HN&EH (27,940) 12,986 (14,954)
Loss and total comprehensive  FAEE K2 HE BB
loss for the year (192,522) - (192,522)
Equity-based compensation DA RS 42 7 BT 1) 357 B - 864 864
Balance at 31 December R=B-—=F%
2013 tTZRA=t+-AMN&E& (220,462) 13,850 (206,262)

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt

with in the financial statements of the Company to the

extent of RMB192,522,000 (2012: RMB8,702,000).

24 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES -

() XRBREEAERLESR
RKABHEEARGEREETNAR
#192,522,000C (ZF—Z%F: A
K #8,702,0007T ) M AN 2 7] B 75 ¥

REEIE -

24 A E AT BE - A A E

COMPANY
2013 2012
—E—-= —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF T AREFIT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LM - A 4,767 5,118
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24 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES - 24 MBS A B B BE — A ]
COMPANY (continued) (%)
(a) Investment in subsidiaries () RMBARINEKRE
Movements on the investment in subsidiaries of the ARRIRHBARMRENEE N
Company are as follows: i
2013 2012
—E—=F S — %=
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETF T
At 1 January iA— 5 —[E 5,118 5,118
Provision for impairment on R E R B R R &R E R
investment in subsidiaries (351) -
At 31 December == - — B 4,767 5118
The following is a list of principal subsidiaries of the TRHEINARBARZE—=F+=
Company as at 31 December 2013: A=+—HWMEXZEWBAA:
Place and date
of incorporation/ Issued or registered/ Effective interest held as at
Name establishment Principal activities Legal status paid up capital 31 December
BRASER/ R+=A=t+-H
R HBRYL/ RUSBRAS  TEEE ERA BARK BENERER
2013 2012
—g-=f —Z-CF
Directly owned subsidiary:
ERBARBAR:
Olympia Media Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding Limited liability US$50,000 100% 100%
("Olympia Media") 13 December 2005 company
ABEREEARAF ABARARES REZR AREERA 50,000% 7T
(TBEE]) “ZTRF+-A1+=H
Gloria Fair Limited Hong Kong, Provision of advertising, Limited liability HK$10,000 100% 100%
2 November 2001 investment and interest company
services
ERARAR )0 REUES RERFIERE AREARA 10,000% 7T
“$F-£1-A28
Hung Hing To Publishing Limited The British Virgin Islands, Provision of publishing and  Limited liability US$622,500 100% 100%
13 December 2005 advertising services company
EEBAXTERAA ABARARES REHRRES RS EREEAR 622,500% 0
“EERETZAT=H
Indirectly owned subsidiaries:
MEEEHEAR:
Fujian ShiFang Culture Communication Fuzhou, the PRC Provision of full- line Limited liability RMB46,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. ("Fujian Shifang") 1 November 2000 advertising agency services  company
BRTAXLERERARA REEM REZHUEERERYE AREEAR AR ¥46,000,0007
(7)) “3TT51-4-8
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24 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(a) Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

(#1)

Place and date
of incorporation/

Issued or registered/

24 JNFEEJE A B R HE — A ]
(a) RHBATMEE (&)

Effective interest held as at

Name establishment Principal activities Legal status paid up capital 31 December
BRTAEM/ Rt=A=t-H
R EMARY/RUGHRAS  TEEE R BARK BENERER
2013 2012
—E-=% —E-CF
Fuzhou AoHai Advertisement Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC Provision of full-line Limited liability RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
19 February 2008 advertising agency services  company
BMREREERAR RN RERFUEERERE AREEAA AR #1,000,0007C
“EE\F-ATAR
Fuzhou ShiFang Printing Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC Provision of printing services  Limited liability RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
BN HEOBERAR 10 October 2012 company
HEEN RULENRIRT BREEAH AR 10,000,0007
“Z-—%tA+A
Kunming ShiFang Culture Kunming, the PRC Provision of full-line Limited liability RMBS5,000,000 100% 100%
Communication Co., Ltd. 23 November 2012 advertising services company
BRI ULERERAR EEH RURHUEERERE ARAEAR AR5,000,00070
“T-—f+-A=+=H
Kunming Handing Printing Technology Kunming, the PRC Provision of publishing and  Limited liability RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
Consulting Co., Ltd. 7 September 2012 printing services company
ERERARRHEAERAR FEEH HRAE IR IR EN R AR A AREERA AR #10,000,00070
- _FAALH
ShiFang YaQi Culture Communication ~ Xiamen, the PRC Provision of full-line Limited liability RMB2,000,000 100% 100%
(Xiamen) Co. Ltd 27 December 2004 adver;isi\ng services company L
THREX( &R (M) ERAR  HEEM RELHNEE RS BREERA AR 82,000,007
b2y e ety 8 o
Indirectly owned subsidiaries:
BERAKELR
Xiamen DuKe Information Xiamen, the PRC Provision of technology Limited liability RMB11,000,000 100% 100%
Science & Technology Co., Ltd. 24 February 2006 promotion and consultancy ~ company
(“Xiamen DuKe") services o .
EFERESHBARAA B RS RERTERLRZARYE  BRALAF AB%11,000,0007
([EF&EE]) “TEXNF-A-1tmA
Guizhou Qianzhong Newspaper Guizhou, the PRC Provision of publishing and  Limited liability RMB4,000,000 100% 100%
Industry Printing Co. Ltd 3 June 2011 printing services company
BEMBEREZDBERAR i EM HRA it e 2 D AR 7 AREREARA AR %4,000,00070
—E——%/A=H
Guizhou ShiFang HanDing Guizhou, the PRC Provision of full-line Limited liability RMB10,000,00 100% 100%
Media Co. Ltd 20 October 2011 advertising services company
EMtHEREHARAR R EM REE2FAEE R BREERA AR ¥10,000,00070
ZZ——F1tA=tH
Fujian Haobang Real Estate Fuzhou, the PRC Property marketing & agency Limited liability RMB10,000,000 51% 51%
_ Consulting & Agency Co. Ltd 5 Apr 2012 services company .
BROEAFERAREERAT GELEY NEERRRBRY BREERA AR #10,000,0007
“Z--“4MARA
Fujian Fangke Network Technology ~ Fuzhou, the PRC Provision of full-line Limited liability RMB50,000,000 51% 51%
Corporation Ltd 23 Dec 2011 advertising services & company
Property marketing
BRERBEMRRAER AT M REZHUEERKR EREARR AR #50,000,0007

“E——E+-A-+=H HELHE
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24 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES - 24 MBS A B B BE — A ]
COMPANY (continued) (%)
(a) Investment in subsidiaries (continued) (a) AMIEBATNKRE (&)
Place and date
of incorporation/ Issued or registered/ Effective interest held as at
Name establishment Principal activities Legal status paid up capital 31 December
BRTAEM/ R4S RS
R EMRY/ RUGHRAS  TEEE R BARK BENERER
2013 2012
—E-=% —E-CF
Guangxi ShiFang Culture Nanning, the PRC Provision of full-line Limited liability RMB11,680,000 100% 100%
Communication Co., Ltd 26 May 2012 advertising services company
BERTAULERERAR HEEE R HUEERS EREEAR ARH11,680,0007C
2 —FRA=txH
Liaoning ShiFang XinDa Culture Shenyang, the PRC Provision of full-line Limited liability RMBS5,000,000 60% 60%
Communication Co. Ltd. 21 Nov 2011 advertising services company
EETHEEXLEEERAA HEES RURHUEERS BREEAR AR5,000,00070
“2—4£t-A=t-H
Special purpose entity:
RRANER:
Beijing HongXinTu Culture Beijing, the PRC Provision of publishing Limited liability RMB30,000,000 100% 100%
Communication Co., Ltd. 2 July 2004 services company
("Beijing HongXinTu")(Note 2)
IRBEZELERARAA RELR R L i BRAEAH AK#30,000,0007C
(Mem%2E]) (H5E2) ZTIMELACH
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe Science and ~ Beijing, the PRC Provision of technology Limited liability RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
Technology Co., Ltd 14 November 2006 promotion and consultancy  company
services
FRAEERHRERAR PEER RERMEERADRE AREEAR AR H1,000,0007
ZEENET-ATEA
(b) Material non-controlling interests (b) BEARFERERS
2013 2012
—E-—=F =k — =&
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR¥ET T
By subsidiaries: ZHB AR :
Fujian Fangke Network Technology BEE RSB R K
Co. Ltd (“Fujian Fangke") BRAFR([REEE]) 14,965 43,805
Others Hit (5,161) (631)

9,804 43,174
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24 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES - 24
COMPANY (continued)
(b) Material non-controlling interests
(continued)
Summarised financial information on
subsidiaries with material non-controlling
interests
Set out below are the summarised financial information
for the subsidiary that has non-controlling interests

that are material to the Group. See Note 38 for

TP i )8 2 ) B 8 E — A T

(%)

(b) EXGFEKRER (&)

BEEXFERESNHEA T

M HENBRE

TXHEIEBEHAREMEBEX
HFFE RN B R BN A
K2 - mIFm R s i X 5 B I

transactions with non-controlling interests. 7138 °
Summarised balance sheet for Fujian Fangke FEEENEERABREE
2013 2012
—E—=F ===
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARB TR ARET T
Current: mEp
Assets BE 52,364 64,883
Liabilities Bf& (55,233) (156,121)
Total current liabilities mE B EERE (2,869) (91,238)
Non-current: ERE :
Assets BE 33,410 180,635
Liabilities afE - =
Total non-current net assets EmEFEELE 33,410 180,635
Net assets BEFE 30,541 89,397
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24 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)
(b) Material non-controlling interests
(continued)

B 85 R B ik

24 JAPE B A B A HE — A ]
(%)
(b) EAFZRAER (H)

Summarised statement of comprehensive BEEENZEAREREE
income for Fujian Fangke
2013 2012
—E—= bl Ses 0 422
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T ARBTF T
Revenue WA 52,279 65,342
Profit before income tax B BT 15 74 A1 A 14,775 39,770
Income tax expense Fri5 %t X2 (1,390) (1,563)
Post-tax profit from continuing operations 13548 4% & % 75 1) & T 18 3 7 13,385 38,207
Other comprehensive income H b2 E W= - -
Total comprehensive income S HEWN BT 13,385 38,207
Total comprehensive income allocated to % it & FE42 B 4 25 Y
non-controlling interests PHEW B 6,559 18,721
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT SRR B R 2 B AR B
interests (35,398) =
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24 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(b) Material non-controlling interests

(continued)

Summarised cash flow statements for Fujian

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ Dk S 5 8 o Wi ik

(%)

24 JFAKHE A B ERE — KA F

(b) EXGFEKRER (&)

BEEENRERERME

Fangke
Fujian Fujian
Fangke Fangke
BEEE® REEE
2013 2012
—E—=F =T ===4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBTF T
Cash flows from operating activities KEZEX£EHEBRERE
Cash generated from operations KEXEEFEE 36,823 35,792
Interest received B & 34 14
Income tax paid B ER (1,659) (1,722)
Net cash generated from operating KEXBEREFRE
activities 35,198 34,084
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEZEE(FTA)
investing activities HEFE 97,741 (41,095)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEHATAR S F5 (139,644) =
Net decrease in cash and ReRESLEEER
cash equivalents A EEE (6,705) (7,011)
Cash and cash equivalents FYHMREeRREEFMEIEE
at beginning of year 9,249 16,260
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FXMIRE KIREFEHAB 2,544 9,249

The information above is the amount before inter-

company eliminations.
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO)
SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

Movements on the amounts due from subsidiaries for

company level are as follows:

25

B 85 R B ik

FEW~ (HEAT ) B B8 A W) sk I
A

FEWHE AR FIBEEAREEAZ S0
T

2013 2012

—E—=F S — %=

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ET T AREFTT

Amounts due from subsidiaries FE W BT B~ B R IE 719,504 721,314
Provision for impairment on amounts due FELULHS B A R) ﬁAIEJEXTE%{%

from subsidiaries (185,754) =

533,750 721,314

Amounts due to subsidiaries FE 1B B 2 Bl R IE 117,549 110,892

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest-free

and repayable on demand. As at 31 December 2012 and

2013, the carrying values approximate their fair values and

denominated in RMB.

BB AR WA ERR RS NER
REE-R_F——_FR-_F—=F1=
A=+—H FEREEQALEERESE
WIAAREEFIE -
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26 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS 26 H AW Je oAb W A
2013 2012
—E—-=F ===
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ABRESSFE
Other income: Hug A :
Sale of newsprint papers 6 27 B AR 2,592 5,028
Sale of scrap material & REE M R 487 1,097
Government grants (a) I 8 B (a) 269 2,616
Sundry income HIRWA 346 727
3,694 9,468
Other gains: Hith i :
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary e —EH B AR K - 424
Gain on disposal of interest in Yunnan TEEMEREE#ERZN
Handing Investment (b) Wz (b) 33,664 11,636
33,664 12,060
(@)  The Group has recognised government grants of RMB269,000 (@ BE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—HLF

(2012: RMB2,616,000) from the Fujian government authority
for the year ended 31 December 2013, as an incentive to
expand the business and develop the economy in the PRC.
This incentive is granted as the relevant subsidiaries of the

Group have taxable profits for the respective years.

(b)  On 8 May 2013, the Group disposed of its entire equity (b)
interest in Yunnan Handing Investment and recognised a gain
of RMB33,664,000 (Note 9) in connection with this disposal.
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27 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Loss before income tax is stated after charging the

following:

27 FRPEE E 4 B 2
% B 1570 BT S 18 A8 HNB LA NI B 14 A BE -

B 85 R B ik

2013 2012
—g—-= e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
Auditor’s remuneration Z BT B & 4,647 5,379
Cost of newspaper advertising AL SRR
— Media costs — I BE K AN 147,393 199,491
Cost of marketing and promotion services iR EE R 14,829 11,865
Cost of online services 8 4% AR 7% B 7N 3,629 2,947
Cost of television and radio advertising BEHEREEESKA
— Media costs — R AR 5,261 4,190
Cost of distribution management, DEEE Bk
consulting and printing services: E Rl AR 75 B A -
- Raw material — R 12,350 20,593
— Media costs — I BE K AN 7,155 3,743
— Other costs —HE KR 823 1,838
Depreciation (Note 7) e (M1EE7) 9,762 9,459
Amortisation (Note 8) iy (M5E8) 16,557 14,516
Operating lease charges in respect of BT NEFH
land and buildings KEHEWE 6,373 5,963
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - WE REHED
equipment (Note 33(b)) B 1855 (MaE33(b)) 20 355
Provision for impairment of long term RHEIRE  REES -
investments, long term deposits, TERTRRIEA R iZ & &
prepayments, and deposits and other H b W SRIB R B B
receivables (Note 12) (KzE12) 358,741 43,780
Provision for impairment of trade receivables & 5 & U 3 I8 5 (B 5 48
(Note 11) (MH3E11) 75,708 36,044
Write-off of trade receivables (Note 11) i sH & 5 P W kI8
(HHsE11) 11,154 10,038
Write-off of prepayments and I 857815 SR IE K
other receivables H b e W SR8 12,988 =
Loss on disposal of assets held for sale HERELEEEMNER 7,747 =
Net foreign exchange loss HNEE B5 1B F 5B 310 128
Employee benefit expenses (including EERIRAX (B
directors’ emoluments) (Note 28) EEME) (MIsE28) 78,459 93,422
Business tax EED 7,510 12,435
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

28 f@ 5 & A B 5 (445 25 55

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ =)
EMOLUMENTYS)

2013 2012
—E—-= = =4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREBTR ARETIT
Salaries and other allowances Fe M EMRL 66,081 78,021
Equity-based compensation expenses LA B 8 7 2L 0 A 357 B A S 864 2,362
Discretionary bonus )15 TEAT 4,400 5,992
Social security costs HIRE A 3,486 3,072
Retirement scheme contribution BRI FR 3,628 3,975
78,459 93,422
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 28
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTYS) (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of each of the director of the
Company paid/payable by the Group for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is set out below:

B 85 R B ik

& B A B (BiEHEEME)
(#1)

(a) EEME
HE_Z—=fK-_T——F+=
B=Z+—BLtEE A&EBER/
BNARRSEEZNI S HI W
—|?

Year ended 31 December 2013

BE-E-ZFY-A=t-HILEE

Salaries

and other

Fees allowances
ek

He Rt

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR

Discretionary Social  Share-based
bonus  security cost compensation Total
R 6B
BERL HRER AREROLEH @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AREBTR  AR®TR  ARETR

Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Chen Zhi (C£O) RELE(BEHTE) - 1,932 - - 329 2,261
Mr. Hong Pei Feng HIEERE - 942 - - 86 1,028
Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu RETEE - 1,732 - 9 294 2,035
Mr. Yu Shi Quan REFELE - 611 - 7 35 653
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Wang Ping B 120 - - - 17 137
Ms. Chen Min REx+ 120 - - - - 120
Independent Non-executive ~ BYFHTES:

directors:
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren Bl 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry ~ ZRF%E 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Zhuo Ze Yuan EEREE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Cai Jian Quan BEELE 120 - - - - 120
Total st 720 5217 - 16 761 6,714
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 28 EEMEMN G (BFEEREME)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (%)
EMOLUMENTYS) (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEME (&)
Year ended 31 December 2012
BE-F-——£+-A=-ft-HIEE
Salaries
and other  Discretionary Social ~ Share-based
Fees allowances bonus  security cost  compensation Total
ek R
ik At Bigra HRER RERNEH @Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT  AR%Tnt ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Chen Zhi (CFO) RELE(ERHTE) - 1,932 - - 897 2,829
Mr. Hong Pei Feng LR E - 732 - - 236 968
Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu Fafgs = 1,732 = 10 803 2,545
Mr. Yu Shi Quan REELE - 611 - 7 95 713
Non-executive director: FaTES:
Mr. Wang Ping FEEE 120 - - - 47 167
Ms. Chen Min BEat 120 - - - = 120

Independent Non-executive ~ BYFHTES:

directors:

Mr. Zhou Chang Ren RECEE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry BB L& 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Zhuo Ze Yuan 2ERLE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Cai Jian Quan SRERE 120 - - - - 120
Total &t 720 5,007 - 17 2,078 7,822
During the year ended 31 December 2013, none of the REBE-_T—=F+=-A=+—H
directors of the Company (i) received any emolument LWEFE - AR E)E S EG)BEAS
from the Group as an inducement to join or upon E{E A E EAIMARE B INA
joining the Group; or (ii) received any compensation AEBEZER: ()BTRS
for loss of office as a director or management of any EEAKNERRNESHEEER
member of the Group; or (i) waived or has agreed to EX A {r] B (5 Sk (i) IREE Sk B B E
waive any emolument (2012: nil). ERMe (ZT——F &)

There was no arrangement under which a director REBEE-_E—=F+=-_F=+—
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the BIEFE UEESHENREN
year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: nil). ZEXMMENLHE(ZZE—_F:

&) -
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 28 EBMmA B (BHHEHEEME)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (#)
EMOLUMENTYS) (continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) ABBEHF AL
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the five BE_T—=%+_A=+—HL
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the FE ASBREEaFALTERE
Group included 4 directors (2012: 4 directors), whose MWE(ZE—ZF - NE)EF-H
emoluments were reflected in the analysis presented e RMEEXAZFH ST -
above. The emoluments paid/payable to the remaining REBEE_E—=FT=ZH=1T—H
1 (2012: 1 individual) individual during the year ended HFEE BN BB T—5 (=2
31 December 2013 were as follows: ——F —R)ATHMESHT:
2013 2012
—E—-=F =T aE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT AR T T
Salaries and other allowances & N CH ftn 47 Bh 426 397
Equity-based compensation expenses LA BR 48 /4 B 18 A 35 BN B =2 - =
Social security costs TR E A 7 7
433 404
For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, HE-Z—=R=-FT—-F+=
the emoluments of the highest paid individuals of the A=+—BLEEE AEBESF
Group fall within the following bands: ATHBEN FTHEE :
Number of individuals
A
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——fF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000 7T 1 1
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTYS) (continued)

(c) Key management compensation

28 fREMBAMB X (BFEFHE)
(%)

() EREEEHMH

2013 2012
—E—=F ===
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARET T
Salaries and other allowances o REAmHEL 8,206 7,994
Equity-based compensation expenses VA B 428 7 B 1t A9 5 B ) =2 864 2,362
Social security costs HREH 50 60
9,120 10,416
29 FINANCE COSTS - NET 29 RhE AR — 3
2013 2012
—E—-= = —=4E
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR TR AR¥T T
Finance income: B W as
— Interest income on short-term bank deposits — & B4R 7777 2 &) Al 8 Uk A 454 1,518
Interest expense on: FERX:
— Bank borrowings —RITER (1,839) (3,218)
Finance costs — net BhE AR —F 5 (1,385) (1,700)
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30 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 30 A3 BLBH 2
2013 2012
—E—=F T
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETT

Current income tax BIVEA P45 3¢
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") AR B ARE D ZEFTEH
([EMBR])
— Current tax — BV ERR 18 16,506 18,054
— (Over)/under provision in prior years —BEFE (BEEE)
BETR (171) 827
16,335 18,881
Deferred income tax IRIEPT1S (2,620) (2,620)
13,715 16,261

The Group is not subject to Hong Kong profits tax as it has AR AEEREE—T =K =_F—=

no assessable income arising in or derived from Hong Kong F+A=T—BLEFEIRREBE

during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012. R ESERTWA - WEBRAMNE BN
1§ o

Xiamen Duke was granted the qualification as a new and EFERESHRMNEEER REZEZ

high-tech enterprise, and was entitled to the tax rate of T =G+ -_A=+—HULEFEFE=

15% for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 15%). Z15% (ZFE—ZF :15% ) BI X
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30 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
The taxation on the Group's loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the

30 Pt AiBH 2 (4)
7N £ [ 4 BT 19 % A1 A5 JE W0 B 0B BB R
AREEREERNA BB RN
MET B RS ENR RSB EMmE

consolidated entities in the respective jurisdictions as CER N
follows:
2013 2012
—E—= el
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBF T
Loss before income tax bR P15 B R 18 (500,670) (114,111)
Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable ZEAREER A% R TS
to profits of the entities in the respective w ) E 30 5 B R G E Y
jurisdictions TiIE (127,875) (30,753)
Tax effects of: ATHEENHIELE
— Income not subject to tax — AT A (233) (165)
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes — AR 2 133,085 34,871
— Tax losses for which no deferred income — RERELEFMET
tax asset was recognised B ERT % B 1R 13,511 20,955
— Effect of tax holiday —BIEREHNEE (4,602) (9,474)
— (Over)/under provision in prior years —BEFE (BEEE)
BETRE (171) 827
13,715 16,261

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 25.5% (2012:
27.0%). The decrease is mainly caused by the drop in profit
before income tax of certain subsidiaries which were entitled

to lower applicable corporate income tax rates.
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31 LOSS PER SHARE 31 R H
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic loss per share for the years ended 31 December BHE-_Z—=FR-F—=-F1=
2013 and 2012 is calculated by dividing the loss R=+—HIEFEMNTGRENEE
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the TR RN R ERTB ARLEER
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue AR E #1TE BARINE T 8Gt
during the year. Ho
2013 2012
—E-=F sl —%E
Loss attributable to equity holders of RRAFERFEEAELER
the Company (RMB'000) (AR¥TFT) 516,834 137,940
Weighted average number of B BT N T &
shares in issue (thousands) (Frx) 839,942 766,827
Basic loss per share (RMB per share) BREABE (BRARE) 0.6153 0.1799
(b) Diluted (b) #%
Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting BRESEBEDRBABRETEINE
the weighted average number of ordinary shares BEREINEFEEEAREAA LR
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive EHETENTRRELBRETH-
potential ordinary shares. For the year ended 31 e TR S = - —
December 2013, the Company’s share options issued IEFEE - ARRREEAAARE
under the pre-IPO share option scheme were the sole AIFE ARG B B TR B AR - R
category of dilutive potential ordinary shares where the ——HRABEHEXENETRR
effect of the assumed conversion of these potential MERNBITEINNABER EXE
ordinary shares outstanding during the year was anti- VEBERE R BMERRTRREE
dilutive (2012: the same). FE(ZE——F:8R) -
32 DIVIDEND 32 BB
No dividend has been declared by the Company since its ZAN/NESTN= T 5 1 9D VAP B = I T e b
incorporation. 5o
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AP B 3 e B
33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH 33 Blim B FRMEE
FLOWS
(a) Cash used in operations (a) REFARSE
2013 2012
—E-Z=F —T-CF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
o= AR¥TR ARETT
Loss before income tax BRETE R AT E B (500,670) (114,111)
Adjustments for: AR
Depreciation neE 7/ 9,762 9,459
Amortisation B 5 8 16,557 14,516
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE HE &
equipment HEREE 27 20 355
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 W IB R E RS
receivables 11 75,708 36,044
Provision for impairment of RERE REZRS -
long term investments, long term BERBERARES R
deposits, prepayments, and deposits H {h fE IR
and other receivables AR 12 358,741 43,780
Write-off of prepayments and other WS TR AT BRIE K
receivables H At e U kIR 27 12,988 -
Write-off of trade receivables MiHE 2 R IA 11 11,154 10,038
Finance income A W 29 (454) (1,518)
Finance costs & R A 29 1,839 3,218
Share of post-acquisition loss/(gain) of — FE{5 B & A &) Ye Bz 12
associates BB/ (IRzS) 10 169 (501)
Disposal loss on assets-held-for-sale HEFELEEEN A
properties 18 13 7,747 =
Equity-based compensation expenses LA RR#E /A L6 A9 % B
53 37 864 2,362
Gain on disposal of an associate & — B2 A R A e 26 - (11,636)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & ] H &% & Ayl zs
investment (33,664) =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B A B A ke 26 - (424)
Changes in working capital: BEEeE
— Trade receivables — & S WFE 37,077 (8,525)
— Inventories -FE 1,111 345
— Prepayments, deposits and other —ENFE e kE
receivables b FE Y 3B (34,711) (21,176)
— Amounts due from related parties — U EE A LA (10,967) (4,071)
— Trade payables —B 5B HA 1,008 1,498
— Other payables and accrued —HMENRIER
expenses FEET R (15,935) 10,745
- Amounts due to related parties —EHREE A LB (714) (223)
— Restricted cash —ZREIRE - (12,890)
Cash used in operations KEFARE (62,370) (42,715)
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33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH 33 Bi&eimaERMaE (8)

FLOWS (continued)
(b) Disposal of property, plant and equipment

In the statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal

(b) HEWXE BERRE

ReRnERTHEDE BEER

of property, plant and equipment comprise: HEHOFEFRIEELE:
2013 2012
—E-=F ST
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBT T
Net carrying amount (Note 7) AREDFRE (MEE7) 416 425
Loss on disposal of property, plant and ~ HE#WE  HE &&EN
equipment (Note 27) E1E (F5E27) (20) (355)
Total consideration from disposal of HEWE - WERZHED
property, plant and equipment REH#TE 396 70
Non-cash consideration from disposal of — Hi & — & K B A &) &Y
a subsidiary (Note 39) RS RE (KI5E39) (10) =
Cash consideration from disposal of HEME  BWERZHED
property, plant and equipment ReRE 386 70
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33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH 33 Bl&inE&MEE (4)
FLOWS (continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries () HEMBELQF
In the statements of cash flows, net cash outflow on RenBRkbPHLEMBARANRE
disposal of subsidiaries comprise: TR E B A
2013 2012
—E—-=F Sl dE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T AR T T
Net assets/(liabilities) of subsidiaries B HE B AR
disposed, net of cash (Note 39) FEE/ (AR)
(NBRIRE) (PIFEE39) 33,675 (5,577)
Settled by offsetting payables (Note 39) BB tEEN RBELAE
(BiFEE39) (34,000) -
Gain on disposal & e - 424
Net cash outflow on disposal HEMIRE L HE (325) (5,153)
(d) The principal non-cash transaction is the reclassification (d) FZFREXFGTIREEGTHR
of restricted cash of RMB12,890,000 to other ARZEREEFBEEARNERE T
receivables after the enforcement order issued MEBELABRTEPINEARK
by Yueyang City Intermediate Court to draw 22,000,0007T HY 17T &k & & 1% -
RMB22,000,000 from bank accounts of certain X PR HIEE & AR #12,890,0005T &
subsidiaries of the Group (Note 16). FrofEEHaEEIE (MisE1e) o
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5 DB R Bk
34 COMMITMENTS 34 R
(a) Operating lease commitments — Group (a) REBOEALE-—FTKE
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under PRI BHRE AN B REESE
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: NFABEINT
2013 2012
—E—-=F e 4=
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBT T
Not later than 1 year —FEUT 5,305 3,254
Later than 1 year and not later —FUAERAFNUT
than 5 years 10,270 11,377
Later than 5 years AFEME 1,533 4,536
17,108 19,167
(b) Commitment for exclusive cooperative (b) BREEHBRAE-—LEER
agreements — Group
The future aggregate payments under non-cancellable NAIHEE B R & (ER =8 B &R
exclusive cooperative agreements are as follows: MEE
2013 2012
—E—-=F =
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREETF T
Not later than 1 year —FE T 119,910 191,418
Later than 1 year and not later —FUAERAFNUAT
than 5 years 259,240 707,000
Later than 5 years AEE 891,040 1,890,000

1,270,190 2,788,418
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34 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Commitment for exclusive cooperative

agreements — Group (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has contractual
commitments with four commercial customers in the
PRC to pay annual rental expenses in order to obtain
exclusive rights to sell advertising spaces of designated
areas in the respective shopping malls and on the side
of respective highways owned by the aforementioned

commercial customers for 5 to 10 years.

Pursuant to a contractual agreement entered into
among the Group and JingFeng Shenyang Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd, Shenyang HongFeng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd., and Shenyang ChangFeng
Property Development Co., Ltd. (together, “Shenyang
Real Estate Development Group”), the Group is entitled
to obtain the exclusive right to sell advertising spaces
of designated areas in the respective malls owned
by the Shenyang Real Estate Development Group for
10 years. The Group is simultaneously obliged to pay
annual rental expenses over the next 10 years, which
amounts to RMB295,000,000 in aggregate. However,
Shenyang Real Estate Development Group was unable
to fulfill their contractual obligation which amounted
to significant breach of contract, after considering legal
advices from the Group’s legal counsel, the Directors
of the Group are of the opinion that the Group has no
further commitment in the project.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

34 A&HfE (#)
(b) BRAGHERE-FEH

==

(#&)

s — = £E - = B = = [g] 9 58
S E N E B R P T AR
SNEHRRBE  KREE Eif s
BEMERNSBEBY R LMHIETH
EREAREHERSEHRNER
R BRARAETF-

REAEE RS SIEREMERE
ERAT BBIEEMERKE
BAEIREBEGREEHWERRER
RAR (ABEBEEHERES
BT ENmHR NEEAE
BEEESEhERSEEEMES
WEBYPONEECHELEES
TEOBRESN HEBA+F A
SERBEEAERRTEXMNEF
MFEX - & HE AK295,000,000
TG ° SAT + BRI A B R e
BITHEEHNER BRERERSE
N RERANEEBEZEBEMMONER
ERAEEEERRIEEHZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements,
parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating
decisions, or vice versa. Related parties may be individuals
(being members of key management personnel, significant
shareholders and/or their close family members) or other
entities and include entities which are under the significant
influence of related parties of the Group where those parties
are individuals. Parties are also considered to be related if

they are subject to common control.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the related
party transactions were carried out in the normal course
of business and at terms mutually negotiated between the

Group and the respective related parties.

(a) The directors of the Company are of the view that the
following companies/individuals were related parties
that had transactions or balances with the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2013:

Name

=LY

Mr. Chen Zhi

B 85 R B ik

35 BEANLRS

RUFEHIBRRME  HREALHRE
NEAEBEHUBREEARRBER
AEEHAEEBMEATE  ZALH
MRAREAEEERE (R2TRA) - #
BATAIUARBEA(EEERAR B
PRER K,/ IR E R E) o H o F 88 o i
AEBHBEATREA  AIBRZEALI
BRXIEAEALTEAZENER WA
BAERX I KRES ﬁ@ﬁﬁ BEA

ARAEZRR REBEEALRZ N
BREGEETHEBASEEASHEA

TARE 0 E RO RFETT o

(a) ARREFERER UTREEA

AREBE—T—=5+=-A=+—
BIEFEREREBETLSHT
BESOBEEBEAL

Relationship with the Group
BEAKEMNER

Executive director of the Company/Chief Executive

Officer of the Group

& A

Ms. Zheng Shou Ling
Erhe L+

ARBHTEE AEBERFRITE

Spouse of the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
AEEBEFATEREER

THERARAE —F—Z44R
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35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(a) (continued)

Name

=LY

China TopReach Inc.
FEXIGERER A A

Fujian ShiFang Digital Technology Co., Ltd
RETHEBERMBER QA

Beijing Wangxin Gaoke Information
Technology Co., Ltd.

ERBESRHERRMBR AR

Fujian Lanting Network Technology Holding
Limited Company

BEEEARMERNERAR

Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu

SREE L

Mr. Ma Xiu Bin
BFEM L&

Mr. Hong Pei Feng
HIRIE S A

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

35 BHEANLRS (H)
(a) (#&)

Relationship with the Group
HEAEENER

Immediate holding company

HEERA A

Controlled by the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
BAEEEFERTEES

Controlled by the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company

HARFEFEHITE ZH

A significant shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group

AEE-FHBRRANEERR

Director of the Company/Chief Financial Officer of

the Group
ARREE FAEEERVBE

A significant shareholder of the Company
RRREBZRRE

Executive director of the Company

ARFBAITES
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RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(a) (continued)

Name

=LY

Mr. Yu Shi Quan

RGELE

Mr. Qiang Yi Bing
SRINM B

Mr. Wang Ping
SESEjnEE

Ms. Chen Min
PR 22 =

Liaoning Baixin Media Company Limited
EEAGEEEARAT

Shenyang Jinyutang Real Estate
Agency Co., Ltd.
BEEEERMERBERRAA

B 85 R B ik

35 BEANLRS (H)
(a) (#&)

Relationship with the Group
HEAEENER

Executive director of the Company/Vice President of
Finance

ARNRNTES MBI EH

A close family member of a director of the Company
RRA—BEENIMR

Non-executive director of the Company

ARBFFAITES

Non-executive director of the Company

ARBFFAITES

A significant shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group
AEE-—FHNBARINEZRE

Controlled by a significant shareholder of
a subsidiary of the Group
BASE—RHEA AN EZREIES

THERERAT R -Z4ER
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35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(a) (continued)

Name

=LY

Ms. Chan Ching Yi
REFEL L

Mr. Pan Jian Ping
R EE

Ms. Chen Xiao Min
R/ 2+

Ms. Zhang Yan Wen
REER L

Mr. Xu Kai Ning
PRI

Mr. Huang Min Qiang
BHELE

Mr. Zheng Bo Ling
B EE

Mr. Li Gang
WL

Mr. Xiao Zhen Bin
B R A&

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

(a) (&)

Relationship with the Group
HEAEENER

Key Management of the Group
AEEFEEEAR

Key Management of the Group
rEEFEEEAR

Key Management of the Group
rEEFEEEAR

Key Management of the Group
rEEFEEEAR

Key Management of the Group
REBXZEBEAE

Key Management of the Group
REBXZEBEAE

Key management of the Group

AEETEEEASR

Key Management of the Group
REBXZEBEAE

Key Management of the Group
REBXZEBEAE
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35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BAEALAZS (#)

(continued)

(a) (continued) (a) (&)
Name Relationship with the Group
‘W HR R A BB R
Mr. Cai Jian Quan Independent non-executive director of the Company
sEERE RRABBILIFRITES
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren Independent non-executive director of the Company
BAEC KA RABBILIERITES
Mr. Zhou Ze Yuan Independent non-executive director of the Company
EEMESE RARBILIFRITES
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry Independent non-executive director of the Company
DS RARBILIFRITES
Mr. Chan Chun Kau General counsel of the Group
BoR AR 3K 5 A 7N £ [ 42
The above names of certain related parties companies EIETREATARNE LT
represented the best effort by management of the BAARREEENEP X EEES
Company in translating their Chinese names as they do BEmMREE REZE@A A&
not have official English names. IF 3 7 o
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35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties:

The following transactions were undertaken by the

Group with related parties during the year ended 31

(b)

z:l—;

35 BHEANLRSG (4

HEEATETHRS:
AEBREZ-_ZT—=F+=A
=+ —BHILFEHEREEATETN

December 2013: TR :
2013 2012
—E—= e
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T ARBF T
Continuing transactions: BERXS:
Key management compensation FEERBABEHM
(Note 28(c)) (HM$5E28(c)) 9,120 10,416
2013 2012
—g—-= =T E
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBT T
Non — continuing transactions: FERFER
Advertising service cost Eﬁ?%ﬁﬁi‘%ﬁkzﬁ 1,080 1,080

The transactions with related parties

were conducted

in accordance with commercial terms mutually agreed

between the Group and the respective related parties.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BAEALAZS (#)

(continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties: (continued) (b) EHREALTETHRS: (&)
The amounts below represented expenses paid by the ATHRIBEASEERRAQ AR E
Group on behalf of China TopReach Inc., a significant ERERREKRIKIERBR AR
shareholder of the Company. iz

2013 2012
—g—-= bl Ses 0 422
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBTF T
Expenses paid on behalf of RERBEATFREHAX:
related party:
A significant shareholder of RATRHEERRE
the Company 8,478 4,756
8,478 4,756

(c) Balances with related parties () EHREALTFENGERR
As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, the balances are RZE——FR-F—=F+=A
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand. =+—B #RAEEKR RERE

ERER -
2013 2012
—E—= e — S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF ARBTF T
Amount due from a significant EWAARHEERR

shareholder of the Company ME-FEH

— non-trade 14,994 6,516
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35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BAALANL25 (#)
(continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (continued) () HBEEATHEENES (&)
The maximum balance due from a significant REgz—=—=F+-A=+—8H
shareholder of the Company during the year ended 31 FEE EUWAATIHTIEREZ

December 2013 was RMB14,994,000.

HH &= &8 A ARE14,994,000

JG ©

2013 2012
—E—-= o =0 £ )
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTE

Amounts due from related parties —
non-trade

Non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries of the Group

Spouse of the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group

Mr. Chen Zhi

Key management of the Group

A company controlled by the chief

executive officer of the Group

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

EHEBEALTRE-FES

REBH B R AIA
FEFE IR AR R 3,791 2,104
AEEEEATENRR
- 6
BREESE 730 =
REEFEERAR - 12
AEEEEHNTE
gz 10 R N 352 262
4,873 2,384
19,867 8,900
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35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BAEANLAZS (#)

(continued)

(c) Balances with related parties (continued) (c) Eﬁ@kiﬁﬁﬂﬁmﬁ? (&)
As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, the balances are RZB——FR=-F—=F+=A
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand. En—[E ¢ ,\\uﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁi BB KRE

2013 2012
—g—-= bl Ses 0 422
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBTF T
Amounts due to directors: ERESRE:
Mr. Chen Zhi RELE - 762
Mr. Hong Peifang B I 5 A 109 50
Mr. Zhang Tiezhu of #8155 A 132 141
Others Hity 104 106
345 1,059
The balances mainly represent the directors’ fee REEBRTEEENESNESH
payable to the directors. & o
Amount due to a related party — BN —BBAEALRE-
non-trade (non-current portion) FEZ (EREBBD)
A non-controlling shareholder of a REBE—FHMER RS
subsidiary of the Group — B IEERAR R - 51,441
The balance due to a non-controlling shareholder is e — B I IR AR R A 45 BR R R A
unsecured, interest-free, with no fixed repayment term B REREFEER  WHEER
and repayable upon mutual agreement between the £= ,\uz%iﬁ H% AR 3R #9485 15 5

o

mTu}
(il

Group and the non-controlling shareholder.
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36

57

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension scheme
to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of
these subsidiaries. The only obligation of these subsidiaries
with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet the

required contributions under the scheme.

The total contributions incurred in this connection for
the year ended 31 December 2013 were approximately
RMB3,628,000 (2012: RMB3,975,000). No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce the contribution

payable by the Group in the future years.

STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME
(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
Pursuant to a resolution in writing passed by all the
shareholders of the Company on 26 February 2010,
the Company conditionally approved and adopted
a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”). By the same resolution, the
Company granted 27,456,156 share options to its
directors and employees which are exercisable under

the following terms:

(i)  The exercise price of the option should not be less
than 100% of the fair market value of the shares
as at the grant date as determined by valuer

appointed by the Company;

(i)  40% of total options granted become exercisable
a year after grant date, another 30% also
become exercisable 2 years after grant date and
remaining 30% become exercisable 3 years after

grant date.
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37

S8 A e A St 2
AEEETFBERIHNNBRARNEES
B3 77 T B P 9 6 R SRR R B 5T &I o
BEREMBRRARRBENEAHFERT
BEMETAED AP RBEREFTEIHERK
PABT IR KRR R © 4075 T BUR A we A 2B
A EARNAARE RARKEKESR
HRARBMEE - ERANB AR T RE
Rt EeME—BEDREASIEL A
HRE B R

e =g == =ZH=F+—F8 Ik
FE BUEEEOHRBEHORAR
#3,628,000L (ZE—Z_F: AR¥
3,975,0007T ) © B2 U gt 5% AT A VB 4>
RAREEAREE R

Ji& Aoy 391 RE it 1

(a) BRABBERNERESE
BERARAEZEREAR_ZT —F
F_A-+ NHAREBNZEIAZ
RARDAIRGRERERKRAFR
ARBEABERESE (TERR
FREERBRERTE]) - REBEZR
BR AQAMEEEREERT
27,456,15617 & IR 7 - 7% & B IR
AJHR TSR T LATTE -

(i) BRETEETISERART]
= BB R (5 (B B 8 TE AR (0 B IR
BHIA AL MERI00% ;

(i) BEREHBERELHNLI0%T]
REZEBE—F%RTE B
30% A RN BB F & 1T
5 82 T30% I AR B &
=FRITE
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37 STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)

B 85 R B ik

37 et ImE s & (A1)

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) () BRAMRENBERESS
(#&)
The fair value of the employee services received RHEBERELRDNEERBHAR
in exchange for the grant of the share options is BEREEHANBRAR TR
recognised as an expense, with a corresponding LA B 2 7 55 Bt 1) 357 M (%% 48 VE AR B 9
adjustment to equity-based compensation reserves, B NEMERR ARSI EH
over the vesting period. At the end of each reporting TEHKTHREBRZESE MG
period, the Company revises its estimates of the et 2El s R EREETREM
number of options that are expected to vest. It AHMEE (nE)  WHEHEEED
recognises the impact of the revision to original HERAZR - BHE_T—=F1+=A4
estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement =+—HUEFE URESERD
of comprehensive income, with a corresponding HEN S A AR-864,000T (=&
adjustment to equity. For the year ended 31 December ——%: ARK%2,362,0007T) °
2013, the equity-based compensation expenses
amounted to RMB864,000 (2012: RMB2,362,000).
Each share option gives the holder the right to BHBERER THEARBELRRR]
subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company. — R E B RE A o
(i) Movement of Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme () BRAFRZBEESAEBRETSEIRN
during the year ended 31 December 2012 and BE-ZT—FR-F—=F
2013 is as follows: TZA=T—HIEFENE
LU
Exercise Number of
price Option
TRE BREHE
HK$
BT
At 1 January 2012, R-B——F—H—8"
31 December 2012 and Bt A=+—Hk
31 December 2013 —E—=%+-_A=+—H 1.82 27,456,156

THERERAT R -Z4ER
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37 STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)
(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, no options were exercised.

All of the outstanding share options will be expired by
31 July 2014.

Movement of Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2012 and
2013 is as follows:

The weighted average fair value per share option
granted during the period is determined by using
the binomial option pricing model and it was
HK$0.57 per option. The significant inputs into
the Binomial option pricing model in determining
the fair value of the share options granted by the
Company are: the fair market value at the grant
date of HK$1.79 per option, exercise price of
HK$1.82, volatility of 40.66%, expected option
life of 4.4 years, dividend yield of 0%, and risk-
free annual interest rate of 1.493%. Expected

volatility is estimated based on historical volatility

37 WAnHAREwHE (%)
(a) ERDBIREAERES B
()

R-EB—=FT=-A=1T—8 I

BRESR_ZE—NFLA=1+—
B 5w e

() BAXLAHRBEABRETSNER
—_E—_—_HERk_FT—=%F+_-A
= +—BHIEFENEFHNT:

R_EAAREERAEEERE
WL S0 ERENINETEA
AEBEAOSTE T -EEEANR A
FIRbERENAAEBER —18
AHEETERUMANEZH A
BR:FLBHNAATEESHE
AR #1798 T 1T EE1.828 T
B 1840.66% - T8 HA B8 % 4 5 U HA
4.4% R BOR0% M E R R F B R
1.493% ° TE B I8 TH IR #5 7] & L8
ARRRERS AR LBRENTE
HA 4 HAHE [R) MY HARS A9 3B 12 R 1R il &t

of the comparable companies over the period 1S o
that has the same length as the expected life of
each grant.
Held at Granted Held at
31 December during 31 December
2012 the period 2013 Grant date Expiry date
R=B-ZF R=B-=F
TEEETr=[E +=ZA=t-H
5B REAR L ] BREBH 38R
Directors ) 24,161,417 - 24,161,417 26 February 2010 2 December 2014
—T-%% —T-MmE
“AZtAKH +ZAZH
Other employees HthfES 3,294,739 - 3,294,739 26 February 2010 2 December 2014
—T-%% —T-MmE
“AZtAKH +-AZH
27,456,156 - 27,456,156
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37 STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)
(b) Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by the
shareholders of the Company on 8 November 2010,
the Company adopted a share option scheme on
8 November 2010 (“Share Option Scheme”). The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentive or reward to (i) any full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; (ii) any Directors (whether
executive or non-executive, including any independent
non-executive Director) of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries; or (iii) any advisors, consultants
suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or any

subsidiaries (each “Eligible Person”).

The Board of Directors may, at any time within 10 years
after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme,
make an offer to grant options to any Eligible Person.
The subscription price for shares granted pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the
Board of Directors in its absolute discretion and shall be

at least the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the

date of offer;

(i)  the average of the closing prices of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date on which such offer is made;

and

(iii) the nominal value of shares of the Company.
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37 STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)
(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue as at the Listing Date, 73,216,512
Shares, without prior approval from the shareholders
of the Company. The maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted, and yet to be exercised, under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options granted under the
Share Option Scheme to each Eligible Person (including
both exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject

to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company. In addition, if shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted under the Share
Option Scheme (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to a participant who is a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or any of their associates, in any
12-month period (i) represent in aggregate more than
0.1% of the total number of shares in issue, and (ii)
have an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares of the Company at the date of each grant,
in excess of HK$5,000,000, the proposed grant of
option must be approved by the shareholders of the

Company in a general meeting.
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37 STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)
The amount payable on acceptance of an option is
RMB1.00. The exercise period of any option granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall not be longer
than 10 years from the date of grant of the relevant
option. There is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before the exercise of the option
except otherwise imposed by the board of Directors.
As at 31 December 2013, no share option had been

granted under the Share Option Scheme.

38 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-

CONTROLLING INTEREST

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary
On 31 December 2013, the company acquired an additional
49% of the issued shares of Shenyang ZhuQin ShiFang
Media Development Co. Ltd., (“Shenyang ZhuQin ShiFang”)
for a purchase consideration of RMB2,381,000. The carrying
amount of the non-controlling interest in Shenyang ZhuQin
ShiFang on the date of acquisition was RMB2,381,000. The
Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests
of RMB2,381,000. The effect of changes in the ownership
interest of Shenyang ZhuQin ShiFang on the equity
attributable to owners of the Company during the year is

summarised as follows:

37

38
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As at 31 December

R+t=A=+—8H
2013 2012
—E—-=F ==k
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREETF T
Carrying amount of non-controlling BB IEE RS R
interests acquired BREE 2,381 -
Consideration paid to non-controlling EATIEERERNNE
interests (2,381) -
Excess of consideration paid recognised PR ESERS
within equity ENRENESE - =
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39 CONSIDERATIONS FROM DISPOSAL OF 39 Hi & K} )& 2wl i A1
SUBSIDIARIES
During the year, the Group entered into 3 sale and FRN AEEBHE-—ZBIE=H([E
purchase agreements with an independent third party (the FAV=EEEH=HE NEEERRE
“Purchaser”) to dispose of its entire 100% equity interests MNERZEEHKERAR EHBEESE
in Fuzhou HongXinTu Printing Co., Ltd., Kunming AoHai RAE&ERALEMREBERA RN Z
Advertising Co.,Ltd. and Kunming HonglLianXin Printing H100% Az FRERERARKE
Co., Ltd. at a non-cash consideration of RMB34,000,000. 34,000,000 c > REEEELHHENE S
The consideration was correspondingly offset by payable B FE S SRIB 4 84
balances due to the purchaser.
The aggregate net assets of the disposed entities at the EHEERBRSLERHNEEEEE
respective dates of disposal were as follows: wm
2013 2012
—E—-=F ===
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBT T
Consideration (non-cash) RE (FERE) 34,000 3,060
Net assets: BEEFE:
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEBEEER 325 5,783
Other receivables H b fE W SRR 72,400 200
Property, plant and equipment W% BB kEE 10 -
Income tax payables TP IS (16,701) =
Other payables H fib & 5B (22,034) (816)
34,000 5,167
Non-controlling interest FEPERR M A - (2,531)
34,000 2,636
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHTB AR MK EE - 424
Net cash outflow arising on disposal of HEMBAREENRE
subsidiaries: R
Cash consideration received BKREeRE - (630)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed BEHERESRRESEFEER 325 5,783
Cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries B EWERQRRIE SR 325 5,153
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40 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group follows the guidance of IAS37 “Provisions,

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” to determine
when should contingent liabilities be recognised, which

requires significant judgement.

A contingent liability will be disclosed when a possible
obligation has arisen, but its existence has to be confirmed
by future events outside the Group’s control, or when it
is not possible to calculate the amount. Realisation of any
contingent liabilities not currently recognised or disclosed
could have a material impact on the Group's financial

position.

The Group reviews significant outstanding litigations in
order to assess the need for provisions. Among the factors
considered are the nature of the litigation, legal processes
and potential level of damages, the opinions and views
of the legal counsel, and the management’s intentions to
respond to the litigations. To the extent the estimates and
judgements do not reflect the actual outcome, this could
materially affect the results for the period and the financial

position.

(a) Lawsuits between the Group and Shenyang
Media Corporation
On 26 July 2011,

unilaterally terminated the comprehensive cooperation

Shenyang Media Corporation

contract with the Group.

The Group received a summons issued by the Shenyang
Intermediate People’s Court in Liaoning Province
(the “Shenyang Intermediate People’s Court”) on 25
October 2011, where Shenyang Media Corporation
sued the Group for, among others, a total sum of
RMB17,328,767 being the outstanding advertising fees
payable by the Group to Shenyang Media Corporation

(“Case 1").

40
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40 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(a) Lawsuits between the Group and Shenyang

Media Corporation (continued)

On 22 December 2011, the Group filed summons of
claim to the Higher People’s Court of Liaoning Province
(the “Higher People’s Court”) against Shenyang
Daily Agency and Shenyang Evening News Media
Corporation Limited, where the Group sued Shenyang
Daily Agency and Shenyang Media Corporation for,
among others, a total sum of RMB105,579,352, being
the outstanding advertising fees payable by Shenyang
Daily Agency and Shenyang Media Corporation (“Case
2") to the Group.

On 8 March 2012, the Group received a civil
judgement issued by the Higher People’s Court in
relation to Case 2, pursuant to which the Higher
People’s Court decided to refer the case back to the
Shenyang Intermediate People’s Court. As advised by
the PRC legal counsel, the Group lodged an appeal to
the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC (the “Supreme
People’s Court”) on 13 March 2012 requesting the
Supreme People’s Court to overrule the Higher People’s

Court’s decision.

On 30 August 2012, the Group received a judgement
of first instance awarded by the Shenyang Intermediate
People’s Court in relation to Case 7, in which
the Group was ordered to pay Shenyang Media
Corporation RMB17,250,398 as advertising fees
together with court fees within 10 days after the
judgement becomes effective. On 6 September 2012,
the Group lodged an appeal to the Higher People’s
Court to seek to revoke the judgement of first

instance.
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40 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(a) Lawsuits between the Group and Shenyang

Media Corporation (continued)

On 27 December 2012, Higher People’s Court of
Liaoning Province ordered the judgement of first
instance issued by the Shenyang Intermediate People’s
Court on 30 August 2012 be dismissed and a retrial
of the case at the Shenyang Intermediate People’s
Court was ordered (“Case 1”). On 25 June 2013, the
Shenyang Intermediate People’s Court commenced
the retrial of the case and the case is once again in its
first instance. The management believes that it is not
probable that this litigation would result in a material

outflow of economic benefits from the Group.

On 5 December 2013, a civil judgement was issued by
the Supreme People’s Court in relation to Case 2. It is
ruled that the civil judgement dated 8 March 2012 by
the Higher People’s Court of Liaoning Province should
be dismissed, and that the case shall be handled by
the Higher People’s Court of Liaoning Province. The
management believes that it is not probable that
this litigation would result in any material outflow of

economic benefits from the Group.

The Group is currently waiting for further instructions
from the courts and will notify the shareholders of any

progress in the litigation in a timely manner.

Nevertheless, the management takes into consideration
the economic reasons relating to Shenyang Daily
Agency's and Shenyang Media Corporation’s financial
and liquidity difficulties and has made provision for
loss or provision for impairment of the RMB43,780,000
deposit and prepayment paid to Shenyang Media

Corporation as at 31 December 2012.
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40 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Enforcement order issued by Yueyang City

Intermediate People’s Court (“Yueyang
Intermediate People’s Court”) against the
Group

On 4 June 2012, Yueyanglin Paper Co., Ltd. filed a civil
claim against Southeast Express and Lifestyle Express in
respect of an outstanding payment of RMB31,859,018

relating to certain sales made in prior years.

On 10 July 2012, the Yueyang Intermediate People’s
Court made a civil judgement that Southeast Express
and Lifestyle Express shall pay Yueyanglin Paper Co.,

Ltd. the aforesaid amount.

On 26 October 2012, the Yueyang Intermediate
People’s Court ruled that in view of intentional transfer
of assets among Southeast Express, Lifestyle Express,
and the Group, the court freezes the cash assets of the
Group’s wholly owned subsidiaries, including Fuzhou
Aohai Advertisement Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou AoHai")
and Kunming AoHai Advertising Co., Ltd. (“Kunming
AoHai”) up to a maximum value of RMB31,859,018

(“Freezing Order”).
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40 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Enforcement order issued by Yueyang City

Intermediate People’s Court (“Yueyang
Intermediate People’s Court”) against the
Group (continued)

On 8 November 2012, the Group appealed to the
Yueyang Intermediate People’s Court against the
Freezing Order. The Freezing Order was revoked on
30 January 2013. Yueyanglin Paper Co., Ltd. has
subsequently lodged an appeal to the Higher People’s
Court of Hunan Province against this decision, but on
22 August 2013, the Higher People’s Court dismissed
the appeal application by Yueyanglin Paper Co., Ltd.

However, the Yueyang Intermediate People’s Court
issued two enforcement judgements in favour of
Yueyanglin Paper Co., Ltd. on 22 September 2013. The
court judged to draw cash deposits of RMB22,000,000
out of the bank accounts of Fuzhou AoHai and to
freeze advertising fee of up to RMB14,000,000
expected to be paid by Fuzhou AoHai and Kunming
AoHai to Southeast Express and Lifestyle Express. The
Group has subsequently appealed to the Yueyang
Intermediate People’s Court against the court’s
decision together with other economic losses and

damages on the reputation of the Group.

On 17 February 2014, the Yueyang Intermediate
People’s Court dismissed the appeal application by
the Group. As advised by the PRC legal counsel, the
Group lodged an appeal to the Higher People’s Court
of Hunan Province (the “Higher People's Court”)
against the above-mentioned decision of the Yueyang
Intermediate People’s Court. An application is lodged
to the Higher People’s Court to dismiss the above-
mentioned enforcement judgements and refund the
improperly drawn amount of RMB22,000,000 to the
Group.
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40 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

41

(b) Enforcement order issued by Yueyang City

Intermediate People’s Court (“Yueyang
Intermediate People’s Court”) against the
Group (continued)
According to the advice from the Group’s PRC legal
counsel, the management believes that it is not
probable that this enforcement order would result in a
material outflow of economic benefits from the Group.
Accordingly, no provision for loss was made in respect
of the deduction of RMB22,000,000 cash deposits and
the freezing of up to RMB14,000,000 advertising fee
payables as at 31 December 2013.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has placed deposits
totaling RMB50,000,000 to certain commercial customers
in the PRC for the exclusive rights to provide marketing
and promotion services for several real estate projects.
In January 2014, the Group was offered residential and
commercial properties from the commercial customers as an
alternative settlement method for the deposits placed, and
the original marketing and promotion services agreements
would then be terminated. As a result, on 17 February
2014, the Group entered into termination agreements with
the aforementioned commercial customers to terminate the
marketing and promotion services agreements and accepted
the alternative settlement method. Management believes
such arrangements would not affect the recoverability of the

amounts outstanding as at 31 December 2013.
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